


KSB Pumps Company Limited



KSB - Technology that makes its mark

Two symbols, three letters: pumps, valves and KSB are all closely connected – thematically and visually.
Wherever there are �uids to be transported, controlled or shut off, customers globally rely on our 
expertise and products. The KSB brand promises them competent advice, excellent quality and to 
preliability along with guaranteed after sales service that they can count on, worldwide.

In 1959, “The KSB Group” established its �rst Asian subsidiary in Lahore – Pakistan, while built its �rst 
factory in Hassanabdal in 1964. After becoming a Public Limited Company in 1979, KSB Pakistan 
received its �rst ISO Certi�cation in 1997, and moved on to become the First Foundry based Engineering 
Company in Pakistan that was QHSE Certi�ed for ISO 9001, ISO 14001 & ISO 18001 Certi�cations for 
complete Integrated Management System Certi�cation by TUV, Germany. Continuing its commitment to 
quality and excellence, KSB Pakistan has successfully completed its six decades of operations in Pakistan.

KSB Pumps Company Limited is a leading international supplier of pumps, valves and related systems for 
industrial applications, building services, process engineering, energy conversion, water treatment, water 
transport, solids transportation and other related applications. KSB combines innovative technology and 
excellent service to provide intelligent solutions. This approach means that KSB is close to its customers, 
providing them with pumps, valves and systems for almost all applications involving the transportation 
of liquids.

Over the years, KSB Pakistan has developed a diversi�ed and motivated pool of human resource and 
today the Company employs more than 400 pro�cient people that operates through its sales of�ces in 
Lahore, Karachi, Rawalpindi and Multan. To enable easy access to its customers, KSB Pakistan has a 
nation wide operating network of Franchise & Dealers, also known as KSB Exclusive Partners and KSB 
Authorized Dealers respectively. In addition to these, the Company also has an ef�cient Customer Service 
Department comprising of quali�ed and experienced personnel: KSB’s comprehensive service includes 
bespoke solutions for all customer applications which ensures the running of pumps & systems ef�ciently.

Today KSB Pakistan stands as a market leader in its line of business and is a benchmark for new entrants. 
The Company’s products, quality standards, people, business partners and leadership have all contributed 
to imprint this company’s score in the history of Pakistan.

PUMPS



2020 in Figures

Order intake

millionPKR

PKR
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million23.636

EBIT

millionPKR 3,606
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Vision
KSB provides the best solution worldwide through technology to make its mark. 

Mission Statement 

We aim to manufacture and market a wide range of standard and engineered pumps and castings of 

world class quality. Our efforts are directed to have delighted customers in the water, sewage, oil, energy, 

industry and construction sectors. In line with the Group's strategy, we are committed to develop into a 

center of excellence in water application pumps and be a strong regional player. We want to market 

valves, complete system solutions and foundry products including patterns for captive, automotive and 

other industries. We will develop a world class human resource with highly motivated and empowered 

employees. The measure of our success is, being a clear market leader, achieving quantum growth and 

providing attractive returns to stakeholders.  

Strategic Objective
To defend high market share in a growing but competitive market area & continuously expand product 

& service offerings in order to strengthen the position as a complete solution provider in the market.   
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Values
Trust
Trust has to be earned. It requires a level of credibility, which each of us should seek to achieve and  actively 
develop through reliability and professionalism in our day - to - day work.

Honesty
The overall interest of the Company has top priority in our work and ranks ahead of departmental and 
individual interests. What we do therefore should not serve to gain advantage at the expense of others. 
Integrity and appropriate level of modesty are de�ning elements of the way we present ourselves.

Responsibility
Responsibility means accepting the consequences of one's actions. This especially applies to each and every 
one of us in our work. And it also applies to our Company in its business and social relations.

Professionalism
We have a good command of the techniques and methods we need for our work, and seek to continually 
acquire further knowledge to improve our effectiveness and ef�ciency. In the search of solutions to 
problems we apply due care and act with foresight.

Appreciation
We are attentive to others and further our cooperation by showing respect and appreciation. Remaining 
receptive and open to other people and ideas enables us to learn from each other and develop together. 
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Sustainability at KSB

To achieve this, we have a comprehensive sustainability management system in place, develop future-oriented 
products and implement global management systems in line with international standards such as ISO 9001, ISO 
14001, ISO 45001 and ISO 26000.

Our sustainability principles including our quality, environmental protection, occupational health and safety 
guidelines serve as benchmarks which guide our actions. They apply at all locations and for all companies within 
the KSB Group.     

    Delivering enhanced customer value
    Managing for sustainable pro�tability
    Managing processes effectively
    Fostering and encouraging innovation
    and creativity 
    Developing our employees’ skills
    Following the principles of the International

    Labour Organisation and the United Nations         
    Global Compact
    Using natural resources and energy economically
    Continuously improving the energy ef�ciency of     
    our products
    Respecting the rules of free competition    
    

KSB makes its customers’ plants safer, more energy-ef�cient and more cost-effective by providing 
�rst-class products and excellent service. With this commitment we seek to achieve sustained pro�table 
growth and successfully shape our future.

Our endeavours are guided by a set of common values and behaviours which characterize both work processes at 
KSB and our relations with our customers and other partners. 

We understand sustainability to mean a focus on environmental, economic and social values. As well as the 
responsible use of resources and the environment, this also includes our responsibility to our employees and our 
social commitment.

We are continuously improving our products, processes and services to meet the requirements of sustainable 
development and set new standards.

As a company we focus on
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Quality Guidelines

Achieve maximum customer satisfaction
Our customers set the standard for the quality of our 
products and services. We satisfy their wishes in full 
and on time.

Promote quality awareness
We ensure that all our employees are highly quali�ed 
by providing them with ongoing training and 
comprehensive information. Each of our managers 
champions a high-quality mindset.

All employees are focused on their customers
The principle of customer-supplier relations also 
applies internally: Colleagues further along the work 
process are also customers; work completed for them 
must be impeccable.

Avoid mistakes instead of remedying them
We establish causes so that we can prevent errors and 
put a stop to them.

Improve quality
The continuous improvement of work processes, meth-
ods of work and the work environment secures our 
leading position in the market.

Involve suppliers
In fair and open partnership we support our suppliers 
in the pursuit of shared quality objectives.
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Environmental Protection, Occupational
Health and Safety Guidelines 

Publicise environmental relevance
We talk about the environmental relevance of our 
products, processes and services. 

Promote awareness of environmental issues, 
occupational health and safety 
To protect the environment and our employees we 
implement measures that go beyond what is required 
by law. 

Strengthen our employees’ sense of responsibility
Our employees are quick to recognise situations that 
could harm the environment or jeopardise safety and 
pass on the appropriate information.
  
Recognise and avoid risks
We constantly and systematically review the impact of 
our production processes on people and the environment. 
By recognising risks, we can take any preventive action 

that may be necessary in good time. We review the 
environmental impact of new production processes 
and products right from the development stage, and 
minimise or avoid this as far as technologically and 
economically feasible. In the process, we take account 
of both occupational health and safety.       

Comply with requirements 
Using the procedures de�ned in the Integrated 
Management System, we monitor our activities to 
ensure compliance both with national legislation and 
our own policies for the environment, occupational 
health and safety. 

Ensure third-party �rms meet obligations
We require third-party �rms working at our sites to 
observe country-speci�c laws in the areas of environ-
mental protection, occupational health and safety, and 
to comply with our own provisions and speci�cations. 
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KSB - the brand standing for quality, 
expertise, reliability and a global
perspective  

KSB is a leading international supplier of pumps, valves and related systems for the Industrial applica-
tions, building services, process engineering, energy conversion, water treatment, water transport, solids 
transport and other areas of application. KSB combines innovative technology and excellent service to 
provide intelligent solutions. This approach means that KSB employees are close to customers all over the 
world, providing them with pumps, valves and systems for almost all applications involving the transpor-
tation of liquids. A comprehensive range of services rounds off this customer-focused portfolio.

KSB has been growing continuously since it was founded in 1871. Today, the Group has a presence all 
over the globe with its own sales and marketing companies, manufacturing facilities and service opera-
tions. KSB Pumps Company Limited, established in July 1959 in Lahore, Pakistan, is also a proud subsidi-
ary of KSB Group. KSB Pakistan runs the largest state of the art manufacturing facility in the country in 
Hassanabdal and a full-�edged Foundry. The Company is ISO 9001 certi�ed since 1994 and lately has 
added ISO-14001 and 45001 certi�cations for complete Integrated Management System certi�ed by TUV, 
Germany. A range of global certi�cations of the company’s products and locations is a proof that KSB's 
work in all areas is in compliance with the very latest quality standards - from energy engineering to build-
ing services.          
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Over the years KSB Pakistan has developed a diversi�ed and motivated pool of human resources and 
today the Company employs around 300 pro�cient people and operates through its Sales of�ces in 
Lahore, Karachi, Rawalpindi and Multan. To enable easy access to its customers, KSB Pakistan has started 
operating through a Franchise network, KSB Partners, across the country and a widespread dealer 
network alongside. In addition, the Company has full-�edged Service Department and state of the art 
service facility comprising quali�ed and experienced personnel: KSB’s comprehensive service includes 
bespoke solutions for all customer applications, and ensures that pumps and systems are running 
ef�ciently. KSB offers professional services under the brand name                                at a global scale, for 
products by KSB but also other manufacturers. The main advantage in this is our widespread network of 
easy-to-reach service centre. 
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Board of Directors

Dr. Sven Baumgarten joined KSB Aktiengesellschaft (now KSB SE & Co. KGaA) in 1997 and started 

his career in the R&D division for Engineered Pumps in Frankenthal / Germany. After various 

management positions in the Global Project Business organization of KSB (Vice President Sales 

Energy & Desalination, 2010 - 2015), Dr. Baumgarten became Managing Director of KSB Pumps 

and Valves (Pty) Ltd. in South Africa as well as Vice President Sub-Saharan Africa from 2015 to 

2019. Since 2019 he is MD of KSB Middle East FZE in UAE and also in charge of the entire KSB 

Region Middle East, Africa & Russia as Regional Executive Of�cer.      

Dr. Sven Baumgarten
Chairman Board of Directors

Mr. Akhtar is the Chief Executive Of�cer of KSB Pakistan. He is an Electrical Engineer by profession 

and has a Masters degree in Manufacturing Systems Engineering from Pennsylvania USA. Having an 

extensive and diversi�ed experience in Sales, Marketing, Operations and Manufacturing areas, he is 

a certi�ed director from PICG, Pakistan & is the Member of Board of Governers of National 

Management Foundation (LUMS), LEAD Pakistan. He is also member of Board of Management 

NAVTTC (National Vocational and Technical Training Commision) and the Vice President of 

Pakistan Foundry Association and President of  Punjab Region of GPCCI.

Mohammad Masud Akhtar
Managing Director

Mr. Dieter Antonius Pott is member Board of Directors KSB Pakistan and is also member Audit 

Committee. After various senior positions of Finance & Accounting in different organizations he 

joined KSB SE & Co.KGaA Germany in 2017 as Global Executive Of�cer Finance/Accounting.        

Dieter Antonius Pott
Director

Mr. Awan is Regional CFO and is responsible to oversee the Financial Management function of   

MEA and East Europe regions. Having a diversi�ed professional experience of above 27 years in 

multinational environments, Mr. Awan holds the fellow membership of  ICMAP, ICSP and is also the 

Certi�ed Director from PICG.  

Sajid Mahmood Awan
Director
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Mr. Bilgrami is a Director and Member of the HR&R Committee of KSB Pakistan. He previously 

was President & CEO of Bankislami Pakistan. He has a vast experience in the banking �eld and has 

also served on Boards and Committees of various companies.    

Hasan Aziz Bilgrami
Director 

Mr. Jamal Nasim,  is a Director & the Chairman of the Audit Committee of KSB Pakistan. He is 

Managing Director, Industrial Development Bank of Pakistan and has more than 39 years of profes-

sional experience with NDFC and IDBP, which includes Commercial Banking, Project Management, 

Operations, Treasury , Risk Management, Internal Audit and Compliance etc. He also has a substan-

tial experience of serving on the Boards of Directors of different companies in Textile, Sugar and 

Food sectors. He holds a Masters degree, in Business Administration, from Asian Institute of 

Management, Manila - Philippines.      

Jamal Nasim
Director

Mr. Shezada Mazhar is a Director  & Chairman HR&R Committee & Member Audit Committee of 

KSB Pakistan. He received his LL.M degree from University of Hull, U.K and is Ex-Justice of Lahore 

High Court & Senior Advocate of Supreme Court of Pakistan. He has represented in number of High 

Pro�le cases in the Superior Courts.  

Shezada Mazhar
Director

Ms. Aziz has over 25 years of �nancial sector experience on senior positions and holds the of�ce of 

CEO/Managing Director of Joint Venture Pak Brunei Investment Company. She is a quali�ed 

Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) and serving on the board of directors of various �nancial 

institutions and industries.           

Ayesha Aziz
Director
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Dr. Sven Baumgarten
Chairman Board of Directors
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Chairman’s Review

I am pleased to present annual review for the year ended December 31, 2020.

The coronavirus pandemic played havoc with global economic activity. Following the global trends, 
Pakistan’s already struggling economy also posted a negative GDP growth in year 2020. Outlook for 
2021 is positive and should bring good business opportunities for KSB Pakistan. Despite facing COVID 
effects, the company’s results remained positive with a total turnover of PKR 3.6 billion and pro�t before 
tax of PKR 23 million. During this dif�cult year, KSB Pakistan’s board steered the company in the best 
interest of its shareholders for sustainable performance.

KSB Pakistan mainly serves Water, Industry, Building Service and Energy sectors, in local as well as in 
international market, with a wide range of premium products including pumps, pump castings, automo-
tive parts, and clean drinking water solutions through Ultra Filtration (UF) & Reverse Osmosis (RO) 
plants. The operations are supported by world class after sale service named.

KSB Pakistan’s board is represented by dedicated individuals bringing wealth of experience and expertise 
in Finance, Legal and Business Management. KSB Pakistan has an inclusive board, compliant with the 
requirement of female representation. The Board members are fully acquainted with their �duciary duties 
and most of the members have acquired certi�cations under Directors’ Training Program as prescribed by 
SECP. 

During year 2020, regular meetings of the board and its committees took place. Due deliberations were 
carried out before exercising guidance or giving consent on the matters placed before the board. The 
decision making process involves active participation by board members and valuable contribution by 
independent directors. 

Under Annual Board Performance Evaluation Mechanism, performance of all board members remained 
highly satisfactory.

I would like to thank fellow Board Members and all other stakeholders for their trust and continued 
support.
            

Dr. Sven Baumgarten
Chairman
Lahore: March 17, 2021
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Management Committee

Mohammad Masud Akhtar

Managing Director

Syed Tariq Ali
Director Operations

Muhammad Imran Malik
Director Sales & 

Strategic Marketing

Muhammad Omer Siddiqui
Head - Product Management &  
Leading Application Center

Saeed Hussain
Head - Internal Audit

Shahzad Saleem
Head - Human Resource & IT 

Matraf Rasul
GM Materials

Faryal Zafar
Chief Financial Of�cer

Shahzad Umer
Head - QHSE

Omer Saljouk
GM Services

Faisal Aman Khan
Company Secretary
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Sales Offices

KSB Exclusive Partners

Lahore 
16/2 Sir Aga Khan Road Lahore. 
 Ph: (042) 111 572 786, 36304173 
Fax: (042) 36366192, 36368878
Email: info@ksb.com.pk

Multan
Golden Heights, Nusrat Road, Multan. 
Ph: (061) 111 572 786 Fax: (061) 4541784
Email: info@ksb.com.pk

Rawalpindi
Racecourse Landmark, 299-A, Main 
Peshawar Road, Rawalpindi Cantt
Tel: +92 51 5491481-82 Fax: +92 51 5491237
Email: info@ksb.com.pk

Karachi
307 & 308, 3rd Floor Parsa Tower, Block 6, 
PECHS Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi
Ph: (021) 111 572 786 Fax: (021) 34388302
Email: info@ksb.com.pk

Sr. Channel City Location  Province Partners Contact#   Email

1
 

Dominar Engineers
 

Lahore
 65-A Ferozpur Road,  

   Link Samanabad Road,  Hammad Malik/ 0302-8744449/8 042-37500078  hammad.malik@de.com.pk
   near LOS    Syed Mehdi    

2

     

Sindh

 

Saquib Khawaja

 

0300-8203077

 

021-35390481/2

  

saquib@idea.com.pk   
    
 

Industrial 
Development

& Engineering 
Associates  PH-II

20-C Mezzanine Floor,
Indus Centre
 14th Com st

 DHA

3
    Balochistan Wali Muhammad 0300-8387668 081-2829635  gulistanmachinery@yahoo.com

 
Wali Muhammad 

& Co.  
Zonkiram Road Near 

Millennium Mall 

4
     

KPK
 

Atif Javed 
 

091-5285679
  pakatlantis@gmail.com

 Pak Atlantis
Pumps

       0345-5555939
   

5
    

Punjab
 

0300-4056939 
 

042-32801273
 

imran@biengr.com 
B&I

Engineering     
Imran You f sa
Arbab Bilal    

   

6

  

Quetta

Peshawar

Lahore

Karachi

   

Sindh

 

Abdul Qayyum

  

-3021 5156121-4 qayoomshaikh3@gmail.com Modern Technology
& Traders 

    0333-7299905 
0311-1000953

 
   

   

r,4th Floo  Building #
11-C/2  Lane-11 

Bukhari Commercial 
DHA Phase-6

Karachi

Punjab

House # 22, Q Block, 
Main Boulevard,

Gulberg II, Near Home 
Economics College 

3rd Floor, Mall Tower, 
35-The Mall, Peshawar 

Cantt. 
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Company Information
Board of Directors

Dr. Sven Baumgarten Chairman
Mohammad Masud Akhtar Managing Director
Sajid Mahmood Awan
Dieter Antonius Pott
Ayesha Aziz
Hasan Aziz Bilgrami
Shezada Mazhar
Jamal Nasim 

Company Secretary

Faisal Aman Khan

Management

Muhammad Imran Malik Sales & Strategic 
                                                Marketing
Faisal Aman Khan Corporate Affairs & IR
                                            Administration
Syed Tariq Ali                   Operations  
Faryal Zafar                            Finance & Control

Auditors

A.F. Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants

Legal Advisors

Mandviwala & Zafar

Bankers

Allied Bank Limited
BankIslami Pakistan Limited
Bank Alfalah Limited
Deutsche Bank AG
Habib Bank Limited
MCB Bank Limited
National Bank of Pakistan
United Bank Limited
Meezan Bank Limited

Audit Committee

Jamal Nasim Chairman
Dieter Antonius Pott Member
Shezada Mazhar Member

Secretary Audit Committee

Saeed Hussain

HR & R Committee

Shezada Mazhar Chairman 
Mohammad Masud Akhtar Member
Hasan Aziz Bilgrami     Member

Secretary HR & R Committee

Shahzad Saleem
 
Registered Office

16/2 Sir Aga Khan Road, Lahore - 54000.
Ph: (042) 36304173, 36370969
Fax: (042) 36368878, 36366192
Email: info@ksb.com.pk

Works

Hazara Road, Hassanabdal
Ph: (057) 2520236
Fax: (057) 2520237
Email: info@ksb.com.pk

Share Registrar

C DC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC House, 99-B, Block B, SMCHS
Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74000
Tel: (021) 111-111-500
Fax: (021) 34326053
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Notice of Annual General  Meeting
Notice is hereby given that the 64th Annual General 
Meeting of the members of KSB Pumps Company 
Limited, will be held on Tuesday, the 27th April, 
2021, at 3.30 p.m. Hotel Four Points Sheraton 
25-26 Egerton Road, Lahore, to transact the follow-
ing business:

1. To con�rm the minutes of the 63rd Annual  
 General Meeting held on May 21, 2020.

2. To consider and adopt the audited accounts of  
 the Company for the year ended December 31,  
 2020 and report of Auditors and Directors  
 thereon.

3. To approve and declare dividend of  5% for  
 the �nancial year ended December 31, 2020 as  
 recommended by the Directors.

4. To appoint auditors for the year 2021 and �x  
 their remuneration. M/s. A.F. Ferguson & Co.,  
 Chartered Accountants, the retiring auditors  
 offer themselves for re-appointment as auditors  
 of the Company.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
Faisal Aman Khan

Company Secretary

Lahore : April 01, 2021

NOTES:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at this 
meeting is entitled to appoint another member as 
proxy. Proxies in order to be effective must be 
received not later than 48 hours before the  t i m e 
appointed for the meeting. If a memberappoints 
more than one proxy and more than one instru-
ments of proxy are deposited by a member with 
the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be 
rendered invalid. Every proxy shall have the right to 
attend, speak and vote in place of the member 
appointing him/her at the meeting.      

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will 
remain closed from 20th April, 2021 to 27th April, 
2021 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in 
order at Company’s Registrar, M/s. CDC Share 
Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, 
Block B, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Kara-
chi-74400, by the close of business on 19th April, 
2021 will be in time to be passed for payment of 
dividend to the transferees.

The CDC account/sub account holders and/or the 
persons whose securities are in group account and 
their registration details are up-loaded as per the 
regulations, shall for identi�cation purpose have to 
produce their original Computerized National 
Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the 
time of attending the meeting.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ 
resolution / power of attorney with specimen signa-
ture of the nominee shall be produced at the time of 
the meeting.

Due to current COVID-19 situation and terms of 
Circular No. 4/2021 dated February, 15, 2021 of 
SECP, the Company has made arrangements for 
participation of the shareholders through 
Video-Link. The Members, who are willing to 
attend and participate in the AGM through 
Video-Link, are requested to register themselves by 
sending an email at companysecretary@ksb.com.pk 
with subject registration for AGM and by providing 
the following particulars.

Video-Link details and login credentials will be 
shared with those Members whose emails contain-
ing all the above particulars are received on or 
before April 23, 2021.

The shareholders, who wish to send comments/sug-
gestions on the agenda of AGM, can email the Com-
pany at companysecretary@ksb.com.pk and the 

2.

3.

4.

same will be discussed in the meeting and made part 
of the minutes of the meeting.

WITHHOLDING TAX ON DIVIDENDS

The Government of Pakistan through Finance Act, 
2019 has made certain amendments in the Income 
Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby different rates are 
prescribed for deduction of withholding Tax on the 
amount of dividend paid by the companies/banks. 
These tax rates are as follows:

(a) For �lers of income tax returns  15.0%
(b) For non-�lers of income tax returns   30.0%

To enable the Company to make tax deduction on 
the amount of cash dividend @15% instead of 30 % 
all shareholders whose names are not entered into 
the Active Tax- payers list (ATL) provided on the 
website of FBR, despite the fact that they are �lers, 
are advised to make sure that their names are 
entered into ATL before the date of payment of the 
cash dividend, otherwise tax on their cash dividend 
will be deducted @ 30 % instead of 15%.

The joint shareholders are requested to provide 
shareholding proportions of principal shareholders 
& joint shareholders as withholding tax will be 
determined separately on Filer/Non-�ler status 
based on their shareholding proportions otherwise 
it will be assumed that shares are equally held.

The Corporate shareholders having CDC account 
are required to have their National Tax Number 

(NTN) updated with their respective participants, 
whereas physical shareholders should send a copy of 
their NTN Certi�cate to the Company or Compa-
ny’s Share Registrar, M/s. CDC Share Registrar 
Services Limited. The shareholders while sending 
NTN or NTN Certi�cate, as the case may be, must 
quote Company name and their respective folio 
numbers.

For any query/clari�cation/information, the share-
holders may contact the Company, and/or the Share 
Registrar

UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND/SHARES

Shareholders who could not collect their dividend / 
physical shares are advised to contact our Share 
Registrar to collect / enquire about their unclaimed 
dividend or shares, if any. In compliance with 
Section 244 of the Companies Act 2017, after 
having completed the stipulated procedure, all such 
dividend and shares outstanding for a period of 
three (3) years or more from the date due and 
payable shall be deposited to the credit of the Feder-
al Government in case of unclaimed dividend and in 
case of shares, shall be delivered to the SECP

ELECTRONIC DIVIDEND MANDATE

Under section 242 of the Companies Act 2017, it is 
mandatory for all listed Companies to pay cash 

dividend to its shareholders only through electronic 
mode directly into the bank account designated by 
the entitled shareholders.

In order to receive dividend directly into their bank 
account, shareholders are requested (if not already 
provided) to �ll in Bank Mandate Form for 
Electronic Credit of Cash Dividend available in the 
Annual Report and also on the Company’s website 
and send it duly signed along with a copy of CNIC 
to the Share Registrar of the Company, CDC 
House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S, Main 
Sharah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400, in case of physical 
shares.

In case shares are held in CDC, electronic dividend 
mandate form must be directly submitted to share-
holder’s brokers/participant/CDC account services.

In case of non-receipt of information, the Company 
will be constrained to withhold payment of dividend 
to shareholders till provision of prescribed details.

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF THE 
COMPANY

SECP through its noti�cation SRO 470(1) /2016 
dated May 31, 2016 has allowed the Companies 
circulations of annual audited accounts to the Mem-
bers through CD/DVD/USB at their registered 
addresses. The Company has sent the annual report 

for the year ended December 31, 2020 in the form 
of CD. Any member requiring printed copy of the 
annual report 2020 may send a request using 
standard request form placed on Company website

Audited �nancial statements & reports can be 
downloaded from the website of the Company 
www.ksb.com.pk.

The members of the Company who wish to receive 
soft copy of Annual Report are requested to send 
their e-mail addresses. The consent form for 
electronic transmission could be downloaded from 
the Company Website: www.ksb.com.pk.

Name of the
Shareholder CNIC No.S. No. Folio No. Mobile Registered

Email Address
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Notice is hereby given that the 64th Annual General 
Meeting of the members of KSB Pumps Company 
Limited, will be held on Tuesday, the 27th April, 
2021, at 3.30 p.m. Hotel Four Points Sheraton 
25-26 Egerton Road, Lahore, to transact the follow-
ing business:

1. To con�rm the minutes of the 63rd Annual  
 General Meeting held on May 21, 2020.

2. To consider and adopt the audited accounts of  
 the Company for the year ended December 31,  
 2020 and report of Auditors and Directors  
 thereon.

3. To approve and declare dividend of  5% for  
 the �nancial year ended December 31, 2020 as  
 recommended by the Directors.

4. To appoint auditors for the year 2021 and �x  
 their remuneration. M/s. A.F. Ferguson & Co.,  
 Chartered Accountants, the retiring auditors  
 offer themselves for re-appointment as auditors  
 of the Company.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
Faisal Aman Khan

Company Secretary

Lahore : April 01, 2021

NOTES:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at this 
meeting is entitled to appoint another member as 
proxy. Proxies in order to be effective must be 
received not later than 48 hours before the  t i m e 
appointed for the meeting. If a memberappoints 
more than one proxy and more than one instru-
ments of proxy are deposited by a member with 
the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be 
rendered invalid. Every proxy shall have the right to 
attend, speak and vote in place of the member 
appointing him/her at the meeting.      

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will 
remain closed from 20th April, 2021 to 27th April, 
2021 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in 
order at Company’s Registrar, M/s. CDC Share 
Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, 
Block B, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Kara-
chi-74400, by the close of business on 19th April, 
2021 will be in time to be passed for payment of 
dividend to the transferees.

The CDC account/sub account holders and/or the 
persons whose securities are in group account and 
their registration details are up-loaded as per the 
regulations, shall for identi�cation purpose have to 
produce their original Computerized National 
Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the 
time of attending the meeting.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ 
resolution / power of attorney with specimen signa-
ture of the nominee shall be produced at the time of 
the meeting.

Due to current COVID-19 situation and terms of 
Circular No. 4/2021 dated February, 15, 2021 of 
SECP, the Company has made arrangements for 
participation of the shareholders through 
Video-Link. The Members, who are willing to 
attend and participate in the AGM through 
Video-Link, are requested to register themselves by 
sending an email at companysecretary@ksb.com.pk 
with subject registration for AGM and by providing 
the following particulars.

Video-Link details and login credentials will be 
shared with those Members whose emails contain-
ing all the above particulars are received on or 
before April 23, 2021.

The shareholders, who wish to send comments/sug-
gestions on the agenda of AGM, can email the Com-
pany at companysecretary@ksb.com.pk and the 

same will be discussed in the meeting and made part 
of the minutes of the meeting.

WITHHOLDING TAX ON DIVIDENDS

The Government of Pakistan through Finance Act, 
2019 has made certain amendments in the Income 
Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby different rates are 
prescribed for deduction of withholding Tax on the 
amount of dividend paid by the companies/banks. 
These tax rates are as follows:

(a) For �lers of income tax returns  15.0%
(b) For non-�lers of income tax returns   30.0%

To enable the Company to make tax deduction on 
the amount of cash dividend @15% instead of 30 % 
all shareholders whose names are not entered into 
the Active Tax- payers list (ATL) provided on the 
website of FBR, despite the fact that they are �lers, 
are advised to make sure that their names are 
entered into ATL before the date of payment of the 
cash dividend, otherwise tax on their cash dividend 
will be deducted @ 30 % instead of 15%.

The joint shareholders are requested to provide 
shareholding proportions of principal shareholders 
& joint shareholders as withholding tax will be 
determined separately on Filer/Non-�ler status 
based on their shareholding proportions otherwise 
it will be assumed that shares are equally held.

The Corporate shareholders having CDC account 
are required to have their National Tax Number 

(NTN) updated with their respective participants, 
whereas physical shareholders should send a copy of 
their NTN Certi�cate to the Company or Compa-
ny’s Share Registrar, M/s. CDC Share Registrar 
Services Limited. The shareholders while sending 
NTN or NTN Certi�cate, as the case may be, must 
quote Company name and their respective folio 
numbers.

For any query/clari�cation/information, the share-
holders may contact the Company, and/or the Share 
Registrar

UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND/SHARES

Shareholders who could not collect their dividend / 
physical shares are advised to contact our Share 
Registrar to collect / enquire about their unclaimed 
dividend or shares, if any. In compliance with 
Section 244 of the Companies Act 2017, after 
having completed the stipulated procedure, all such 
dividend and shares outstanding for a period of 
three (3) years or more from the date due and 
payable shall be deposited to the credit of the Feder-
al Government in case of unclaimed dividend and in 
case of shares, shall be delivered to the SECP

ELECTRONIC DIVIDEND MANDATE

Under section 242 of the Companies Act 2017, it is 
mandatory for all listed Companies to pay cash 

dividend to its shareholders only through electronic 
mode directly into the bank account designated by 
the entitled shareholders.

In order to receive dividend directly into their bank 
account, shareholders are requested (if not already 
provided) to �ll in Bank Mandate Form for 
Electronic Credit of Cash Dividend available in the 
Annual Report and also on the Company’s website 
and send it duly signed along with a copy of CNIC 
to the Share Registrar of the Company, CDC 
House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S, Main 
Sharah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400, in case of physical 
shares.

In case shares are held in CDC, electronic dividend 
mandate form must be directly submitted to share-
holder’s brokers/participant/CDC account services.

In case of non-receipt of information, the Company 
will be constrained to withhold payment of dividend 
to shareholders till provision of prescribed details.

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF THE 
COMPANY

SECP through its noti�cation SRO 470(1) /2016 
dated May 31, 2016 has allowed the Companies 
circulations of annual audited accounts to the Mem-
bers through CD/DVD/USB at their registered 
addresses. The Company has sent the annual report 

for the year ended December 31, 2020 in the form 
of CD. Any member requiring printed copy of the 
annual report 2020 may send a request using 
standard request form placed on Company website

Audited �nancial statements & reports can be 
downloaded from the website of the Company 
www.ksb.com.pk.

The members of the Company who wish to receive 
soft copy of Annual Report are requested to send 
their e-mail addresses. The consent form for 
electronic transmission could be downloaded from 
the Company Website: www.ksb.com.pk.

5.

6.

7.
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Notice is hereby given that the 64th Annual General 
Meeting of the members of KSB Pumps Company 
Limited, will be held on Tuesday, the 27th April, 
2021, at 3.30 p.m. Hotel Four Points Sheraton 
25-26 Egerton Road, Lahore, to transact the follow-
ing business:

1. To con�rm the minutes of the 63rd Annual  
 General Meeting held on May 21, 2020.

2. To consider and adopt the audited accounts of  
 the Company for the year ended December 31,  
 2020 and report of Auditors and Directors  
 thereon.

3. To approve and declare dividend of  5% for  
 the �nancial year ended December 31, 2020 as  
 recommended by the Directors.

4. To appoint auditors for the year 2021 and �x  
 their remuneration. M/s. A.F. Ferguson & Co.,  
 Chartered Accountants, the retiring auditors  
 offer themselves for re-appointment as auditors  
 of the Company.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
Faisal Aman Khan

Company Secretary

Lahore : April 01, 2021

NOTES:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at this 
meeting is entitled to appoint another member as 
proxy. Proxies in order to be effective must be 
received not later than 48 hours before the  t i m e 
appointed for the meeting. If a memberappoints 
more than one proxy and more than one instru-
ments of proxy are deposited by a member with 
the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be 
rendered invalid. Every proxy shall have the right to 
attend, speak and vote in place of the member 
appointing him/her at the meeting.      

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will 
remain closed from 20th April, 2021 to 27th April, 
2021 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in 
order at Company’s Registrar, M/s. CDC Share 
Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, 
Block B, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Kara-
chi-74400, by the close of business on 19th April, 
2021 will be in time to be passed for payment of 
dividend to the transferees.

The CDC account/sub account holders and/or the 
persons whose securities are in group account and 
their registration details are up-loaded as per the 
regulations, shall for identi�cation purpose have to 
produce their original Computerized National 
Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the 
time of attending the meeting.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ 
resolution / power of attorney with specimen signa-
ture of the nominee shall be produced at the time of 
the meeting.

Due to current COVID-19 situation and terms of 
Circular No. 4/2021 dated February, 15, 2021 of 
SECP, the Company has made arrangements for 
participation of the shareholders through 
Video-Link. The Members, who are willing to 
attend and participate in the AGM through 
Video-Link, are requested to register themselves by 
sending an email at companysecretary@ksb.com.pk 
with subject registration for AGM and by providing 
the following particulars.

Video-Link details and login credentials will be 
shared with those Members whose emails contain-
ing all the above particulars are received on or 
before April 23, 2021.

The shareholders, who wish to send comments/sug-
gestions on the agenda of AGM, can email the Com-
pany at companysecretary@ksb.com.pk and the 

same will be discussed in the meeting and made part 
of the minutes of the meeting.

WITHHOLDING TAX ON DIVIDENDS

The Government of Pakistan through Finance Act, 
2019 has made certain amendments in the Income 
Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby different rates are 
prescribed for deduction of withholding Tax on the 
amount of dividend paid by the companies/banks. 
These tax rates are as follows:

(a) For �lers of income tax returns  15.0%
(b) For non-�lers of income tax returns   30.0%

To enable the Company to make tax deduction on 
the amount of cash dividend @15% instead of 30 % 
all shareholders whose names are not entered into 
the Active Tax- payers list (ATL) provided on the 
website of FBR, despite the fact that they are �lers, 
are advised to make sure that their names are 
entered into ATL before the date of payment of the 
cash dividend, otherwise tax on their cash dividend 
will be deducted @ 30 % instead of 15%.

The joint shareholders are requested to provide 
shareholding proportions of principal shareholders 
& joint shareholders as withholding tax will be 
determined separately on Filer/Non-�ler status 
based on their shareholding proportions otherwise 
it will be assumed that shares are equally held.

The Corporate shareholders having CDC account 
are required to have their National Tax Number 

(NTN) updated with their respective participants, 
whereas physical shareholders should send a copy of 
their NTN Certi�cate to the Company or Compa-
ny’s Share Registrar, M/s. CDC Share Registrar 
Services Limited. The shareholders while sending 
NTN or NTN Certi�cate, as the case may be, must 
quote Company name and their respective folio 
numbers.

For any query/clari�cation/information, the share-
holders may contact the Company, and/or the Share 
Registrar

UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND/SHARES

Shareholders who could not collect their dividend / 
physical shares are advised to contact our Share 
Registrar to collect / enquire about their unclaimed 
dividend or shares, if any. In compliance with 
Section 244 of the Companies Act 2017, after 
having completed the stipulated procedure, all such 
dividend and shares outstanding for a period of 
three (3) years or more from the date due and 
payable shall be deposited to the credit of the Feder-
al Government in case of unclaimed dividend and in 
case of shares, shall be delivered to the SECP

ELECTRONIC DIVIDEND MANDATE

Under section 242 of the Companies Act 2017, it is 
mandatory for all listed Companies to pay cash 

dividend to its shareholders only through electronic 
mode directly into the bank account designated by 
the entitled shareholders.

In order to receive dividend directly into their bank 
account, shareholders are requested (if not already 
provided) to �ll in Bank Mandate Form for 
Electronic Credit of Cash Dividend available in the 
Annual Report and also on the Company’s website 
and send it duly signed along with a copy of CNIC 
to the Share Registrar of the Company, CDC 
House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S, Main 
Sharah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400, in case of physical 
shares.

In case shares are held in CDC, electronic dividend 
mandate form must be directly submitted to share-
holder’s brokers/participant/CDC account services.

In case of non-receipt of information, the Company 
will be constrained to withhold payment of dividend 
to shareholders till provision of prescribed details.

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF THE 
COMPANY

SECP through its noti�cation SRO 470(1) /2016 
dated May 31, 2016 has allowed the Companies 
circulations of annual audited accounts to the Mem-
bers through CD/DVD/USB at their registered 
addresses. The Company has sent the annual report 

for the year ended December 31, 2020 in the form 
of CD. Any member requiring printed copy of the 
annual report 2020 may send a request using 
standard request form placed on Company website

Audited �nancial statements & reports can be 
downloaded from the website of the Company 
www.ksb.com.pk.

The members of the Company who wish to receive 
soft copy of Annual Report are requested to send 
their e-mail addresses. The consent form for 
electronic transmission could be downloaded from 
the Company Website: www.ksb.com.pk.

8.
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Mohammad Masud Akhtar
Chief Executive O�cer & MD - KSB Pakistan
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Directors’ Report to the 
Shareholders
The Directors of KSB Pumps Company Limited are pleased to present the Annual Report along with the 
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 together with Auditor’s report.

THE ECONOMY

Global Economy
Global economy seems emerging from severe recession caused by COVID-19 pandemic. Having 
contracted by around 4% in year 2020, global economic output is expected to expand at 4% in 2021 and 
to moderate at 3.8% in 2022. The forecast is improved from previous estimates but is still below pre-crisis 
level. Most emerging markets and developing economies were severely disrupted by the pandemic effects. 
Going forward, all markets expect growth however the extent of recovery is dependent on country speci�c 
factors. Advanced economies anticipate good recovery due to widespread vaccination and overall policy 
support. Growth in East Asia and Paci�c region is expected to rebound mainly due to strong recovery in 
Chinese economy. Middle East, North Africa and Sub Sahara regions expect weaker growth. Oil price is 
increasing and the rising trend is expected to continue based on OPEC+ strategy to manage the supplies. 
Increase in overall consumption, improvements in trade, and support due to ongoing vaccination would 
remain key contributions to strengthen the global economic output. Downward risks still predominate 
including the possibility of recurrent waves of COVID, delays in vaccine procurement and distribution, 
pandemic effects on investments and human capital, and �nancial stress triggered by surge in debt levels. 
Multilateral cooperation in form of relief efforts, vaccine availability for vulnerable population, and 
policies to provide debt re�nancing for poor and debt burdened countries should remain priorities at 
global level.

Pakistan’s Economy
Burdened with monetary and �scal tightening measures, Pakistan economy was blown off course by 
COVID-19 pandemic. Fiscal year 2020 was marked with negative growth. In order to soften the impact 
of deterioration, Government and SBP took various relief measures including reduction in policy rate to 
7%, deferment of long term loans, provision of loans against payment of salaries and wages etc. These 
measures along with other steps to contain the spread of virus had positive impact on overall activity. 
Resultantly economic conditions began to improve, however, recurring wave of COVID pandemic has 
slowed down the pace of recovery. Agriculture and Industry, especially Large Scale Manufacturing, 
picked up. Another major sector, Services, which collapsed under pandemic effects, has shown 
improvement in post-lockdown period due to increase in mobility of people and delivery in services, 
however given the future risks it is likely that recovery will be slower than expected. On the back of 
incentives offered by Government, construction sector is expected to grow, also giving boost to the allied 
manufacturing industry. Increase in inward remittances contributed towards improvement in current 
account and forex reserves. Resultantly Pak rupee has also strengthened against dollar. On the other 
hand, increasing oil prices pose a risk of increase in already rising import bill in the future periods. 
Recently, there has been uptick in in�ation but forecast for the �scal year remains within a range of 7% 
to 9%. Public sector activity is expected to resume, and accelerate in the second half of year, however, 
continued �scal consolidation measures would have slowdown impact. Geo-political problems in the 
region prevail. Security and Law & Order situation remained satisfactory. Internal political situation 
remains unstable being another threat to overall economic activity in the country. The extent of COVID 
disease is unknown due to limited testing facilities. Moreover, risk of recurrence of disease and delay in 
availability of vaccine may further affect the economic recovery process. Economic growth for �scal year 
is expected to remain positive however subdued - GDP growth outlook ranges from 0.5% to 1.5% based 
on various sets of projections available for the current �scal year.
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THE  COMPANY

Financial Results

KSB Pakistan, amid challenging economic conditions worsened by COVID-19 pandemic, was able to 
sustain the external pressures in year 2020. Slow start in �rst quarter was followed by a sharp decline in 
activity in second quarter of year 2020, owing to lockdown implemented as a result of increase in COVID 
cases. Operations remained closed for a couple of weeks however later resumed under strict compliance 
of the SOPs. Thus the production activity continued during the second quarter, and we were able to 
follow product delivery timelines after the overall activity picked up in third quarter. Negative results in 
�rst half were offset by healthy numbers recorded in second half of the year. Overall results remained 
positive as re�ected from the below shown key indicators for the year 2020 in comparison with last year 
2019:

Pumps & Valves

Year 2020 has been a turbulent year because of the COVID pandemic followed by series of lockdowns. 
The economic slowdown and sluggish development activity in the public sector was another constant 
factor hurting KSB Pakistan's business in all major market sectors. Our export business which anticipated 
signi�cant growth was affected by worldwide business activity and supply chain disruptions. Despite all 
challenges, the company was able to secure a few major projects from WASA Lahore which helped 
steering business activity in the water market area, Order intake from General Industry & Petrochemical 

markets was hampered owing to sluggish market demand. Thanks to our Alternate Channel Network, 
through which we managed to sustain our market share and pro�table business during the year.

Our robust product diversi�cation and expansion program along with regular marketing and customer 
focused campaigns continues to support us not only to increase the market share in respective segments 
but also to explore new business horizons.

KSB Pakistan Projects has been restructured in the overall business approach.There has been a reasonable 
growth in order intake in water and general industry market areas. Primary order intake was achieved 
from WASA Lahore against existing and new O&M contracts. The company successfully completed 
execution of mega project near Karachi (the project awarded by Karachi Water and Sewerage Board for 
construction of pump station of 100 MGD capacity).This project successfully passed stage 1 of 
commissioning in 2020 and was handed over to the customer after completion; defect liability period is 
currently in process.Closure of in-hand projects in an ef�cient and cost-effective manner will be the prime 
focus in the current year, in addition to acquiring new projects in water �ltration and treatment.

Production

KSB Pakistan operations, in line with global strategy and market 
demand, has been continuously working on lean projects in order to 
optimise overall cost while enhancing productivity and ef�ciency.    
Special focus remained on process optimisation in machining, 
assembly, testing and inspection areas, with Value Stream Mapping 
(VSM) techniques and small Kaizen blitz being basis of 
improvements. Total Preventive Maintenance (TPM) initiatives 
resulted in enhanced accuracy, machine availability and productivity 
levels.

Skill development of personnel and continuous process improvement, in accordance with updated quality 
standards and changing requirements in dynamic business environment, has been among key priorities for 
the organization. 

               Rupees in ‘000’

 Sales 

Pro�t Before Interest and Tax

 3,755,532    
 731,937   
 287,454    
 116,915   
 87,880  

Earnings per share (EPS) 6.66 

20192020
3,606,605

594,517
158,594
23,636
16,382

1.24
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THE  COMPANY

Financial Results

KSB Pakistan, amid challenging economic conditions worsened by COVID-19 pandemic, was able to 
sustain the external pressures in year 2020. Slow start in �rst quarter was followed by a sharp decline in 
activity in second quarter of year 2020, owing to lockdown implemented as a result of increase in COVID 
cases. Operations remained closed for a couple of weeks however later resumed under strict compliance 
of the SOPs. Thus the production activity continued during the second quarter, and we were able to 
follow product delivery timelines after the overall activity picked up in third quarter. Negative results in 
�rst half were offset by healthy numbers recorded in second half of the year. Overall results remained 
positive as re�ected from the below shown key indicators for the year 2020 in comparison with last year 
2019:

Pumps & Valves

Year 2020 has been a turbulent year because of the COVID pandemic followed by series of lockdowns. 
The economic slowdown and sluggish development activity in the public sector was another constant 
factor hurting KSB Pakistan's business in all major market sectors. Our export business which anticipated 
signi�cant growth was affected by worldwide business activity and supply chain disruptions. Despite all 
challenges, the company was able to secure a few major projects from WASA Lahore which helped 
steering business activity in the water market area, Order intake from General Industry & Petrochemical 

markets was hampered owing to sluggish market demand. Thanks to our Alternate Channel Network, 
through which we managed to sustain our market share and pro�table business during the year.

Our robust product diversi�cation and expansion program along with regular marketing and customer 
focused campaigns continues to support us not only to increase the market share in respective segments 
but also to explore new business horizons.

KSB Pakistan Projects has been restructured in the overall business approach.There has been a reasonable 
growth in order intake in water and general industry market areas. Primary order intake was achieved 
from WASA Lahore against existing and new O&M contracts. The company successfully completed 
execution of mega project near Karachi (the project awarded by Karachi Water and Sewerage Board for 
construction of pump station of 100 MGD capacity).This project successfully passed stage 1 of 
commissioning in 2020 and was handed over to the customer after completion; defect liability period is 
currently in process.Closure of in-hand projects in an ef�cient and cost-effective manner will be the prime 
focus in the current year, in addition to acquiring new projects in water �ltration and treatment.

Production

KSB Pakistan operations, in line with global strategy and market 
demand, has been continuously working on lean projects in order to 
optimise overall cost while enhancing productivity and ef�ciency.    
Special focus remained on process optimisation in machining, 
assembly, testing and inspection areas, with Value Stream Mapping 
(VSM) techniques and small Kaizen blitz being basis of 
improvements. Total Preventive Maintenance (TPM) initiatives 
resulted in enhanced accuracy, machine availability and productivity 
levels.

Skill development of personnel and continuous process improvement, in accordance with updated quality 
standards and changing requirements in dynamic business environment, has been among key priorities for 
the organization. 

NUMBER OF PUMPS
PRODUCED

2,949
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Foundry

Foundry business from automotive sector exhibited upward trends in the second half of year 2020 and a 
healthy revenue was recorded for the period. On production side, cutting cost of non-conformance 
continued to remain one of major measures by utilising Magma software to improve the gating feeding 
system. This enabled us to control rejections and achieve enhanced casting yield. Induction of new shot 
blast machine and expansion in fettling area would further increase ef�ciency and capacity to meet future 
business demands. Kaizen teams have been working together to further improve overall product quality 
and operations capacity both for own castings and automotive business.

Overall production plan for year 2021 shows growth from year 2020, with opportunities in pipeline from 
local and international market, which will enable us meet our production targets for the current year. 

Quality, Environment, Occupational Health and Safety

“KSB makes its customers’ plants safer, more energy-ef�cient and more cost-effective by providing 
�rst-class products and excellent service. With this commitment we seek to achieve sustained pro�table 
growth and successfully shape our future.”
 
KSB Pumps Company Limited is certi�ed for the Integrated Management System (ISO 9001, ISO 14001 
& ISO 45001). Our products, processes and services are regularly reviewed and upgraded to meet the 
requirements of sustainable development and new standards.

KSB Pakistan site is ‘MbK- Made by KSB” certi�ed by our principles. The certi�cation means that the 
product produced in Pakistan meets the criteria and quality as if it was made in Germany. 

As a result of being fully compliant to national and international standards of Health, Safety and 
environment sustainability, KSB Pakistan succeeded to achieve another National Annual Award for 
Environment Excellence, being 14th consecutive award.
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Service business came to halt as COVID cases increased and lockdown was imposed in the end of �rst 
quarter of year 2020. Activity resumed in third quarter although with after-effects of slowdown. Public 
sector spending remained very low, shifting our focus to Industry and Energy sectors which responded 
with good order intake in the second half of year 2020. Another focus was to improve pro�tability by 
increasing contribution margin and cutting costs.

In year 2020, KSB SupremeServ successfully executed its �rst export order from KSB Turkey for reverse 
engineering of parts.

Human Resource

2020 has been a year of unprecedented challenges and uncertainty that 
further strengthened our belief that capable & committed people of 
KSB are instrumental in sustaining the organization through even in 
the most turbulent times. COVID – 19 posed various challenges 
related to physical as well as mental health, managing deliverables 
while adopting to remote work arrangements, uncertainties in the 
market and the stress of all these factors on both the organization as 
well as its employees.
 
The organization had a comprehensive business continuity strategy in place to adapt the technology 
infrastructure which not only enabled seamless remote working facilities to our employees but also 
ensured that our business teams were able to provide the required products, operational support and 
maintenance service to our clients who were providing essential services. A lot of focus was put on 
employee wellness and health care where the organization ensured subsidized COVID tests and enhanced 
medical coverage for any associated cases of infection. Effected employees were offered special paid leaves 
to deal with COVID symptoms or infection, while continued communication to create awareness and 
vigilance were conducted. 

We expect 2021 to be a year of hope, growth and opportunities with COVID vaccine coming to Pakistan 
and the 2nd wave going down. We continue to strengthen our leadership pipeline and talent bench 
strength so that the organization is well prepared to capitalize on opportunities created as a result of 
economic resurgence.

TRAINING 
MANHOURS

1,733
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Enterprise Risk Management

“Risks are potential future developments or events that can lead to damage or loss. They result from the 
uncertainty of future events. A risk is therefore every condition, situation or state that can, at present 
and/or in future, prevent the KSB Group or an individual Group company from achieving its business 
goals and completing its tasks.”

KSB’s risk management system is designed to identify and evaluate current and potential threats to the 
achievement of objectives as early as possible, and prevent or at least limit business losses through 
adequate measures. The aim is to prevent any threat to the existence of KSB and to create lasting value 
through improved business decisions.

Financial Risk Factor

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of �nancial risks: market risk (including currency risk, 
other price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk 
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of �nancial markets and seeks to minimize 
potential adverse effects on the �nancial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Finance Department under the principles and policies approved by 
the Board of Directors (The Board). The Board provides principles for overall risk management as well as 
policies covering speci�c areas such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment 
of excess liquidity. All treasury related transactions are carried out within the parameters of these policies 
under the guidelines provided by the Group Treasury and State Bank of Pakistan.

Market Risk

Market risk includes currency risk, other price risk and interest rate risk.
 
Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash �ows of a �nancial instrument will 
�uctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company operates internationally and is 
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the 
US dollar and the Euro. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognized 
assets and liabilities. 

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash �ows of a �nancial instrument will 
�uctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency 
risk), whether those changes are caused by factors speci�c to the individual �nancial instrument or its 
issuer, or factors affecting all similar �nancial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not 
exposed to equity price risk since there are no investments in equity securities. The Company is also not 
exposed to commodity price risk since it has a diverse portfolio of commodity suppliers.

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash �ows of a �nancial instrument will 
�uctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company has no signi�cant long-term 
interest-bearing assets. The Company's interest rate risk arises from long term and short term borrowings. 
Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Company to cash �ow interest rate risk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the risk of �nancial loss being caused if counter party fails to discharge an 
obligation. Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and other receivables. Credit risk of the Company 
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arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and �nancial institutions, as well as credit 
exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables and committed transactions. The management 
assesses the credit quality of the customers, taking into account their �nancial position, past experience 
and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with 
limits set by the board. The utilization of credit limits is regularly monitored and major sales to retail 
customers are settled in cash. For banks and �nancial institutions, only independently rated parties with 
a strong credit rating are accepted.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Company will encounter dif�culties in meeting obligations 
associated with �nancial liabilities.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining suf�cient cash, the availability of funding through 
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic nature of the Company's 
businesses, the Company's �nance department maintains �exibility in funding by maintaining �nancial 
availability under committed credit lines.

Management monitors the forecasts of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected 
cash �ow. This is generally carried out in accordance with practice and limits set by the Company. These 
limits vary by location to take into account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates. In 
addition, the Company's liquidity management policy involves projecting cash �ows in each quarter and 
considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet its liabilities; monitoring statement of �nancial 
position liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements; and maintaining debt 
�nancing plans.

Capital Risk Management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit 
rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholders' value. The 
Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic 
conditions. Capital includes ordinary share capital and reserves.

Corporate Social Responsibility - KSB CARE

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is one of the vital elements of the company’s overall objectives. 
KSB believes in sustainable growth while making effective contribution towards well-being of the 
community at large.
 
Working under the banner of KSB Care, we continue to perform our role as a responsible corporate entity 
contributing towards social welfare mainly in Education and Health sectors. Scholarships are provided to 
able and deserving students enrolled in various schools and colleges situated in the vicinity of our works 
at Hassanabdal. KSB also offers internships, apprenticeships, training opportunities, educational visits 
and study projects to students. By aiding in construction of class rooms, provision of furniture and �xtures 
and drinking water for schools, we have been supporting educational institutions to develop their 
infrastructure.

In Health sector, in year 2020, we contributed towards construction of special pathway for disabled 
persons and provision of wheel chairs in District Attock. Further, food packages were distributed among 
COVID affectees in Hassanabdal.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

Pumps & Valves

Business prospects for Pumps & Valves seem optimistic both in standard and high-end engineered 
markets for all major sectors. Though, 1st half is expected to remain with usual business numbers, the 
government sector activity is anticipated to gear up in the second half of the year bringing in few good 
opportunities, especially in the water/wastewater market area. However, order intake will depend on 
timely release of funds. As the pandemic effects subside and availability of vaccine is ensured around the 
globe, export business is expected to resume in the year 2021 and a healthy turnover is foreseen based on 
orders in hand and business opportunities to come. 

Efforts to secure order intake from bigger projects like Jamila Disposal Station and Chungi No 09 
up-gradation, will remain intact in year 2021. Considering our specialization in this �eld, these projects 
are being targeted on a turnkey basis. Expansion of KSB Pakistan's market share and achievement of 
sustainable growth in future remains key focal point.

KSB SupremeServ aims to achieve volume growth in the current year by targeting business opportunities 
in Industry sector including Reverse Engineering. Activity in the public sector is expected to resume and 
we are looking forward to realize reasonable order intake from public sector in year 2021. We are looking 
forward to revival in oil & gas and energy sectors. Necessary actions will be taken to enhance capabilities 
in reverse engineering in order for us to bene�t from future opportunities in this high potential business 
segment.
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APPROPRIATION

RESULT FOR THE YEAR        Rupees
              ‘000’ 

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Pumps & Valves

Business prospects for Pumps & Valves seem optimistic both in standard and high-end engineered 
markets for all major sectors. Though, 1st half is expected to remain with usual business numbers, the 
government sector activity is anticipated to gear up in the second half of the year bringing in few good 
opportunities, especially in the water/wastewater market area. However, order intake will depend on 
timely release of funds. As the pandemic effects subside and availability of vaccine is ensured around the 
globe, export business is expected to resume in the year 2021 and a healthy turnover is foreseen based on 
orders in hand and business opportunities to come. 

Efforts to secure order intake from bigger projects like Jamila Disposal Station and Chungi No 09 
up-gradation, will remain intact in year 2021. Considering our specialization in this �eld, these projects 
are being targeted on a turnkey basis. Expansion of KSB Pakistan's market share and achievement of 
sustainable growth in future remains key focal point.

KSB SupremeServ aims to achieve volume growth in the current year by targeting business opportunities 
in Industry sector including Reverse Engineering. Activity in the public sector is expected to resume and 
we are looking forward to realize reasonable order intake from public sector in year 2021. We are looking 
forward to revival in oil & gas and energy sectors. Necessary actions will be taken to enhance capabilities 
in reverse engineering in order for us to bene�t from future opportunities in this high potential business 
segment.

23,637
Provision for taxation (7,254)

16,383
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - Net of Tax 12,632

497
Available for appropriation 29,512
Appropriated as under 
- Transfer to general reserve 22,500
- Proposed dividend @ Rs. 0.50 per share 6,600

412
29,100

AUDITORS

The present auditors, A.F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and offer themselves for 
reappointment. As suggested by the Audit Committee the Board of Directors has recommended their 
reappointment as auditors of the Company for the year ending December 31, 2021.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board of Directors has already adopted a Code of Conduct. The compliance with the Code of 
Conduct is compulsory for all employees at all levels. The Code has also been placed on the Company’s 
website.

MATERIAL CHANGES

There have been no material changes since December 31, 2020 and the company has not entered into any 
commitment, which would affect its �nancial position at the balance sheet date.

HOLDING COMPANY

The Company’s holding company is KSB SE & Co. KGaA Germany.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors presently comprises eight individuals out of which three are independent and 4 
are non- executive members. 

The Chairman of the Board is other than the CEO and non-executive Director.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

During the year, four Board Meetings were held and the number of Meetings attended by each Director 
is given hereunder:

S. No. Name of Director No. of Meetings
  A t t e n d e d
01. Dr. Sven Baumgarten 4
02. Mr. M. Masud Akhtar 4
03. Mr. Sajid Mahmood Awan 4
04. Mr. Dieter Antonius Pott 4
05. Ms. Ayesha Aziz 1
06. Mr. Hasan Aziz Bilgrami 3
07. Mr. Jamal Nasim 4
08. Mr. Shezada Mazhar 4
 
Leave of absence was granted to Directors who could not attend the Board Meetings.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

An Audit Committee of the Board has been in existence since the enforcement of the Code of Corporate 
Governance which comprises three non-executive Directors. The Members of the Board Audit Committee 
and attendance by each member was as follows:

During the year, four meetings of the Committee were held. The Committee has its terms of reference 
which were determined by the Board of Directors in accordance with the guidelines provided in the listing 
regulations.

HUMAN RESOURCE & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors has constituted the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee (HR&R), 
which comprises three Directors. The members of the HR&R Committee and attendance by each member 
was as follows:

S. No. Name of Director No. of Meetings
  A t t e n d e d

1. Mr. Jamal Nasim -  Chairman Independent Director 4
2. Mr. Dieter Antonius Pott -  Member Non-Executive Director 4
3. Mr. Shezada Mazhar -  Member Independent Director 4

S. No. Name of Director No. of Meetings Attended
  
1. Mr. Shezada Mazhar - Chairman 1
2. Mr. Hasan Aziz Bilgrami - Member 1
3. Mr. Mohammad Masud Akhtar - Member 1
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy-For Attending Meetings of the Board

1. No Director shall determine his own remuneration.

2. Meeting fee of each Director other than regularly paid Managing Director or full time working   
 Director for attending meetings of the Board shall be determined by Board of Directors.

3. Remuneration shall be suf�cient to encourage value addition.

4. Remuneration shall be suf�cient to attract and retain Directors needed to govern the Company   
 successfully.

5. Remuneration shall not be at a level that could be perceived to compromise their independence.

6. The Directors shall be entitled for travelling, boarding and lodging and other expenses for attending  
 Board Meetings.
 

CORPORATE AND FINANCE REPORTING FRAME WORK

• The �nancial statements together with the notes thereon have been drawn up by the Management in  
 conformity with the Companies Act, 2017. These statements present fairly the Company’s state of  
 affairs, the results of its operations, cash �ow and changes in equity.

• Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.

• Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of �nancial   
 statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgement.

• The International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation  
 of �nancial statements and any departures there from has been adequately disclosed and explained.

• The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and   
 monitored.

• There are no signi�cant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

• There has been no material departure from the Best Practices of Corporate Governance, as detailed 
 in the Listing Regulations.

• There has been no departure from the best practices of transfer pricing.

• The key operating and �nancial data for the last six years is annexed.

• The value of investments including accrued interest based on respective audited accounts of funds 
 are as follows:

 1. Provident Fund 31.12.2019 : Rs. 226.42Million. 
 2. Gratuity Fund   31.12.2019 : Rs.168.87Million.

• To the best of our knowledge, no trading of shares of the Company by CEO, Directors, Company  
 Secretary, CFO, their spouses and minor children has been carried out.
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The statement of pattern of the shareholding of the Company as at December 31, 2020 is annexed with 
the report.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The performance of CEO is assessed through the evaluation system developed by the KSB Group. The 
evaluation is conducted on �nancial and non-�nancial parameters including the KSB Values.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors take this opportunity to thank all stakeholders, valued customers, shareholders, bankers, 
suppliers, franchise partners and dealers of the Company for their valuable support throughout the year. 
They are also thankful for the excellent support and guidance provided by the parent Company, M/s. KSB 
SE & Co. KGaA.

The Board expresses gratitude to entire KSB team for its resilience and hard work especially during this 
dif�cult year.

On behalf of the Board

  

March 17, 2021 
Lahore. Chief Executive 

Mohammad Masud Akhtar Shezada Mazhar
Director
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Vertical Analysis

 2020        2019 
Rs. in '000’  Rs. in '000’ 

     
    

     

    

    

    
 

    

    

     

     

    
 

     
     

    
     

 
     

     
 

     

     

     

     

 
 

     

     
 

     

     

 

Balance Sheet

Net worth / shareholders equity

Non current liabilities

Short term running �nances/bank borrowings

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities

Total liabilities and equity

Fixed Assets

Long Term Loans and Deposits

Deferred Taxation

Current Assets 

Total Assets

Pro�t and Loss Account

Sales 

Cost of sales

Gross Pro�t / (Loss)

Distribution and marketing costs

Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

Other operating income

Operating Pro�t / (Loss)

Finance Cost

Pro�t / (Loss) before tax

Taxation

Pro�t / (Loss) for the year

 

1,967,112 

 344,785 

 904,448 

 1,476,941 

 4,693,286 

 1,088,677 

 70,909 

 -   

 3,533,700 

 4,693,286 

 3,606,605 

 (3,012,089)

 594,516 

 (303,269)

 (205,732)

 (11,771)

 84,849 

 158,593 

 (134,957)

 23,636 

 (7,254)

 16,382 

41.91%

7.35%

19.27%

31.47%

100.00%

23.20%

1.51%

0.00%

75.29%

100.00%

100.00%

-83.52%

16.48%

-8.41%

-5.70%

-0.33%

2.35%

4.40%

-3.74%

0.66%

-0.20%

0.45%

 

1,957,898 

 273,575 

 1,211,456 

 1,497,734 

 4,940,663 

 1,196,996 

 69,256 

 -   

 3,674,411 

 4,940,663 

 3,755,532 

 (3,021,989)

 733,543 

 (308,778)

 (223,890)

 (8,920)

 95,498 

 287,453 

 (170,538)

 116,915 

 (29,035)

 87,880 

39.63%

5.54%

24.52%

30.31%

100.00%

24.23%

1.40%

0.00%

74.37%

100.00%

100.00%

-80.47%

19.53%

-8.22%

-5.96%

-0.24%

2.54%

7.65%

-4.54%

3.11%

-0.77%

2.34%

%age%age
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2018        2017  
Rs. in '000’  Rs. in '000’ 

2016      2015 
Rs. in '000’  Rs. in '000’ 

 1,901,553 

 433,783 

 966,760 

 1,819,574 

 5,121,670 

 1,269,796 

 74,314 

 -   

 3,777,560 

 5,121,670 

 4,952,915 

 (4,289,529)

 663,386 

 (342,263)

 (222,830)

 (18,994)

 226,665 

 305,963 

 (54,467)

 251,496 

 (55,459)

 196,037 

37.13%

8.47%

18.88%

35.53%

100.00%

24.79%

1.45%

0.00%

73.76%

100.00%

100.00%

-86.61%

13.39%

-6.91%

-4.50%

-0.38%

4.58%

6.18%

-1.10%

5.08%

-1.12%

3.96%

 1,871,369 

 413,515 

 269,215 

 2,232,091 

 4,786,190 

 1,245,786 

 13,044 

 -   

 3,527,360 

 4,786,190 

 5,115,215 

 (3,970,150)

 1,145,066 

 (334,702)

 (244,767)

 (59,219)

 60,854 

 567,231 

 (27,908)

 539,324 

 (143,255)

 396,068 

39.10%

8.64%

5.62%

46.64%

100.00%

26.03%

0.27%

0.00%

73.70%

100.00%

100.00%

-77.61%

22.39%

-6.54%

-4.79%

-1.16%

1.19%

11.09%

-0.55%

10.54%

-2.80%

7.74%

 1,593,217 

 137,703 

 150,059 

 1,753,672 

 3,634,651 

 486,675 

 16,508 

 -   

 3,131,467 

 3,634,651 

 4,950,602 

 (3,902,841)

 1,047,762 

 (310,023)

 (225,841)

 (38,852)

 69,061 

 542,106 

 (32,617)

 509,489 

 (131,793)

 377,696 

43.83%

3.79%

4.13%

48.25%

100.00%

13.39%

0.45%

0.00%

86.16%

100.00%

100.00%

-78.84%

21.16%

-6.26%

-4.56%

-0.78%

1.40%

10.95%

-0.66%

10.29%

-2.66%

7.63%

 

1,310,250 

 83,728 

 381,372 

 1,605,920 

 3,381,271 

 417,795 

 15,188 

 -   

 2,948,287 

 3,381,271 

 4,007,244 

 (3,099,652)

 907,592 

 (328,342)

 (188,149)

 (36,911)

 53,644 

 407,834 

 (39,156)

 368,678 

 (91,312)

 277,366 

38.75%

2.48%

11.28%

47.49%

100.00%

12.36%

0.45%

0.00%

87.19%

100.00%

100.00%

-77.35%

22.65%

-8.19%

-4.70%

-0.92%

1.34%

10.18%

-0.98%

9.20%

-2.28%

6.92%

%age %age %age%age
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Horizontal Analysis

 2020 2019 Change 2019 2018 Change  2018 

 Rs. in '000 Rs. in '000 % Rs. in '000 Rs. in '000 %  Rs. in '000 

 
        

        

        

        
 

        

        

        
  

        

        
 

        
        

       
        

 
        

 
 

        

        

        

        

        
 

        

        
 

        

        
 

Balance Sheet

Net worth / shareholders equity

Non current liabilities

Short term running �nances/bank borrowings

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities

Total liabilities and equity

Fixed Assets

Long Term Loans and Deposits

Deferred Taxation

Current Assets 

Total Assets

Pro�t and Loss Account

Sales 

Cost of sales

Gross Pro�t / (Loss)

Distribution and marketing costs

Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

Other operating income

Operating Pro�t / (Loss)

Finance Cost

Pro�t / (Loss) before tax

Taxation

Pro�t / (Loss) for the year

 

1,967,112 

 344,785 

 904,448 

 1,476,941 

 4,693,286 

 1,088,677 

 70,909 

 -   

 3,533,700 

 4,693,286 

 3,606,605 

 (3,012,089)

 594,516 

 (303,269)

 (205,732)

 (11,771)

 84,849 

 158,593 

 (134,957)

 23,636 

 (7,254)

 16,382 

 1,957,898 

 273,575 

 1,211,456 

 1,497,734 

 4,940,663 

 1,196,996 

 69,256 

 -   

 3,674,411 

 4,940,663 

 3,755,532 

 (3,021,989)

 733,543 

 (308,778)

 (223,890)

 (8,920)

 95,498 

 287,453 

 (170,538)

 116,915 

 (29,035)

 87,880 

0.47%

26.03%

-25.34%

-1.39%

-5.01%

-9.05%

2.39%

0%

-3.83%

-5.01%

-3.97%

-0.33%

-18.95%

-1.78%

-8.11%

31.96%

-11.15%

-44.83%

-20.86%

-79.78%

-75.02%

-81.36%

 1,957,898 

 273,575 

 1,211,456 

 1,497,734 

 4,940,663 

 1,196,996 

 69,256 

 -   

 3,674,411 

 4,940,663 

 3,755,532 

 (3,021,989)

 733,543 

 (308,778)

 (223,890)

 (8,920)

 95,498 

 287,453 

 (170,538)

 116,915 

 (29,035)

 87,880 

 1,901,553 

 433,783 

 966,760 

 1,819,574 

 5,121,670 

 1,269,796 

 74,314 

 -   

 3,777,560 

 5,121,670 

 4,952,915 

 (4,289,529)

 663,386 

 (342,263)

 (222,830)

 (18,994)

 226,665 

 305,963 

 (54,467)

 251,496 

 (55,459)

 196,037 

2.96%

-36.93%

25.31%

-17.69%

-3.53%

-5.73%

-6.81%

0%

-2.73%

-3.53%

-24.18%

-29.55%

10.58%

-9.78%

0.48%

-53.04%

-57.87%

-6.05%

213.11%

-53.51%

-47.65%

-55.17%

 

1,901,553 

 433,783 

 966,760 

 1,819,574 

 5,121,670 

 1,269,796 

 74,314 

 -   

 3,777,560 

 5,121,670 

 4,952,915 

 (4,289,529)

 663,386 

 (342,263)

 (222,830)

 (18,994)

 226,665 

 305,963 

 (54,467)

 251,496 

 (55,459)

 196,037 
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2017 Change 2017 2016 Change 2016 2015 Change 2015 2014 Change

Rs. in '000 % Rs. in '000 Rs. in '000 % Rs. in '000 Rs. in '000 % Rs. in '000 Rs. in '000 %

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          
          
          
          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

 

1,871,369 

 413,515 

 269,215 

 2,232,091 

 4,786,190 

 1,245,786 

 13,044 

 -   

 3,527,360 

 4,786,190 

 5,115,215 

 (3,970,150)

 1,145,066 

 (334,702)

 (244,767)

 (59,219)

 60,854 

 567,231 

 (27,908)

 539,324 

 (143,255)

 396,068 

1.61%

4.90%

259.10%

-18.48%

7.01%

1.93%

469.71%

0%

7.09%

7.01%

-3.17%

8.04%

-42.07%

2.26%

-8.96%

-67.93%

272.47%

-46.06%

95.17%

-53.37%

-61.29%

-50.50%

 

1,871,369 

 413,515 

 269,215 

 2,232,091 

 4,786,190 

 1,245,786 

 13,044 

 -   

 3,527,360 

 4,786,190 

 5,115,215 

 (3,970,150)

 1,145,066 

 (334,702)

 (244,767)

 (59,219)

 60,854 

 567,231 

 (27,908)

 539,324 

 (143,255)

 396,068 

 1,593,217 

 137,703 

 150,059 

 1,753,672 

 3,634,651 

 486,675 

 16,508 

 -   

 3,131,467 

 3,634,651 

 4,950,602 

 (3,902,841)

 1,047,762 

 (310,023)

 (225,841)

 (38,852)

 69,061 

 542,106 

 (32,617)

 509,489 

 (131,793)

 377,696 

17.46%

200.30%

79.41%

27.28%

31.68%

155.98%

-20.98%

0%

12.64%

31.68%

3.33%

1.72%

9.29%

7.96%

8.38%

52.42%

-11.88%

4.63%

-14.44%

5.86%

8.70%

4.86%

 

1,593,217 

 137,703 

 150,059 

 1,753,672 

 3,634,651 

 486,675 

 16,508 

 -   

 3,131,467 

 3,634,651 

 4,950,602 

 (3,902,841)

 1,047,762 

 (310,023)

 (225,841)

 (38,852)

 69,061 

 542,106 

 (32,617)

 509,489 

 (131,793)

 377,696 

 1,310,250 

 83,728 

 381,372 

 1,605,920 

 3,381,271 

 417,795 

 15,188 

 -   

 2,948,287 

 3,381,271 

 4,007,244 

 (3,099,652)

 907,592 

 (328,342)

 (188,149)

 (36,911)

 53,644 

 407,834 

 (39,156)

 368,678 

 (91,312)

 277,366 

21.60%

64.46%

-60.65%

9.20%

7.49%

16.49%

8.69%

0%

6.21%

7.49%

23.54%

25.91%

15.44%

-5.58%

20.03%

5.26%

28.74%

32.92%

-16.70%

38.19%

44.33%

36.17%

 1,310,250 

 83,728 

 381,372 

 1,605,920 

 3,381,271 

 417,795 

 15,188 

 -   

 2,948,287 

 3,381,271 

 4,007,244 

 (3,099,652)

 907,592 

 (328,342)

 (188,149)

 (36,911)

 53,644 

 407,834 

 (39,156)

 368,678 

 (91,312)

 277,366 

 1,101,515 

 79,193 

 529,272 

 1,197,407 

 2,907,387 

 364,296 

 12,463 

 -   

 2,530,628 

 2,907,387 

 3,152,062 

 (2,454,451)

 697,611 

 (243,578)

 (184,984)

 (29,673)

 60,158 

 299,535 

 (47,435)

 252,099 

 (65,110)

 186,989 

18.95%

5.73%

-27.94%

34.12%

16.30%

14.69%

21.87%

0%

16.50%

16.30%

27.13%

26.29%

30.10%

34.80%

1.71%

24.39%

-10.83%

36.16%

-17.45%

46.24%

40.24%

48.33%
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Statement of Value Addition

 

                    Rs. in ‘000’   Rs. in ‘000’

Value Addition         

    

 
    
 Value Distribution     
 

 
 Marketing, admin. & other expenses 
(excluding employees' cost)  
 

    
 Employees cost     

 - Salaries, wages, amenities and sta� welfare  
 - Workers' profit particiaption fund  

 
 Government     
 - Taxes  &  Duties  
 - Workers' welfare fund  

 
 Shareholders     
 - Dividend  
 - Bonus shares  

 
 Retained in business for future growth     
 
   - Retained profit  

   
    

 Finance cost      

 

Net sales 
Other income 

 3,606,605 

 84,849 

  3,755,532 

 95,498

3,691,454

 2,546,279

 255,367 

100.00  3,851,030

97.70

2.30

68.98

6.92

 2,609,487 

  270,212 

 

67.76

7.02

100.00

 584,123 15.82  3,851,030 15.18

 154,345 4.18   128,160 3.33

  6,600 0.18

0.27

   19,800 0.51

1.77

97.52

2.48

  582,879 

 1,244

   578,474 

 6,279 

15.79

0.03

15.02

0.16

   154,345 

 -

    125,774 

 2,386

4.18

0.00

3.27

0.06

    6,600 

 -

    9,783  68,080 

3.66 4.43 134,957   170,538 

100.00 100.00 3,691,454    3,851,030 

     19,800 

 -

0.18

0.00

0.51

0.00

69%

7%

16%

4% 1% 4%

Value Distribution 2020
Cost of sales

Marketing and admn.
Expenses

 Employees cost

Government taxes

 Shareholders

 Retained in business for
future growth

 Finance cost

68%

7%

15%

3%1%2% 4%

Value Distribution 2019

Cost of sales

Marketing and admn.
Expenses

 Employees cost

Government taxes

 Shareholders

 Retained in business
for future growth

 Finance cost



KSB Pakistan / Annual Report 2020

Key Financial Data for 6 Years

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 

    
      

 

      

      

 

  

      

 

      
     

 

     

     

   Rupees in ‘000’

 132,000 

 1,178,250 

 1,310,250 

 83,728 

 381,372

 

 1,605,920 

 1,987,292 

 2,071,021 

 3,381,271 

 417,795 

 15,188 

 -   

 2,948,287 

3,381,271 

 767,402 

 1,437,371 

 1,542,692

 

 1,896,068 

4,007,244 

 (3,099,652)

 907,592 

 (328,342)

 (188,149)

 (36,911)

 53,644

 

 407,834 

 (39,156)

 368,678 

 (91,312)

 277,366 
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Key Performance Indicators

Gross Margin 

Net profit to Sales

Return on equity

Return on capital employed

Return on assets

EBITDA

EBITDA margin

Inventroy turnover ratio

Inventory turnover in number of days

Debtor Turnover ratio

Collection period (Days)

Creditor turnover

Credit turnover in number of days

Opreating cycle

Total assets turnover ratio

Fixed assets turnover ratio

Price earning ratio

Cash dividend  per share

Dividend yield ratio

Dividend pay out ratio

Dividend cover ratio

Earnings Per Share 

Number of Shares

Debt Equity Ratio

Interest Cover ratio

Current Ratio

Acid test ratio

Break up value  per share

Market Value of shares - year end

Market Value of shares - high

Market Value of shares - low

Summary of cash flow statement

Operating activities

Investing activities

Financing Activities

Cash and cash equivalent- 

closing balance

%

%

%

%

%

Rupees in '000

%

Times

Days

Times

Days

Times

Days

Days

Times

Times

Times

Rupees

Times

Times

Times

Rupees

Number

Times

Times

Times

Rupees

Rupees

Rupees

Rupees

Rupees in '000

Rupees in '000

Rupees in '000

Rupees in '000

 16.48 

 0.45 

 0.83 

 6.86 

 0.35 

 317,942 

 8.82 

 2.39 

 153 

 1.73 

 211 

 2.16 

 169 

 195 

 0.77 

 3.31 

313 

0.5

 0.00 

 0.40 

 2.48 

 1.24

13,200 

0.59 : 1

 1.18

 

1.48 

 1.15

 

149.02

388.45

410.00

108.00

 127,114 

 (45,362)

 217,906

 

 (604,194)

 19.53 

 2.34 

 4.49 

 12.88 

 1.78 

 446,482 

 11.89 

 2.18 

 168 

 1.77 

 206 

 2.14 

 170 

 203 

 0.76 

3.14

25.53 

 1.50 

0.01 

 0.23 

 4.44 

 6.66 

 13,200 

0.70 : 1

 1.69 

 1.36 

 1.04 

 148.33 

169.96

182.97

85.00

 12,972 

 (82,895)

 (163,610)

 (903,852)

 13.39 

 3.96 

 10.31 

 13.10 

 3.83 

 432,375 

 8.73 

 2.74 

 133 

 2.49 

 146 

 2.48 

 147 

 133 

 0.97 

3.90

12.36 

 3.00 

 0.02 

 0.20 

 4.95 

 14.85 

 13,200 

0.65 : 1

 5.62 

 1.36 

 0.97 

144.06 

183.58

415.00

177.50

(630,000)

 (148,948)

 (188,013)

 (670,319)

 22.39 

 7.74 

 21.16 

 24.83 

 8.28 

 644,838 

 12.61 

 2.45 

 149 

 3.13 

 116 

 1.84 

 198 

 67 

 1.07 

4.11

10.20 

 12.02 

 0.04 

 0.40 

 2.50 

 30.01 

 13,200 

0.31 : 1

 20.33 

 1.41 

 1.00 

 141.77 

306.00

474.90

266.50

 765,492 

 (832,959)

 254,837

 

 296,642 

 21.16 

 7.63 

 23.71 

 31.32 

 10.39 

 610,421 

 12.33 

 2.99 

 122 

 3.18 

 115 

 2.32 

 157 

 80 

 1.36 

10.17

14.27 

 8.50 

0.02 

 0.30 

 3.37 

 28.61 

 13,200 

0.12 : 1

 16.62 

 1.64 

 1.18 

 120.70 

408.25

409.41

192.19

 493,411 

 (136,170)

 (49,101)

 109,272 

 22.65 

 6.92 

 21.17 

 29.26 

 8.20 

 471,536 

 11.77 

 2.47 

 148 

 2.79 

 131 

 2.01 

 182 

 97 

 1.19 

9.59

12.16 

 7.00 

0.03 

 0.33 

 3.00 

 21.01 

 13,200 

0.29 : 1

 10.42 

 1.48 

 1.10 

 99.26 

255.47

264.90

127.58

142,454 

(112,687)

 (65,395)

(198,868)

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
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Statement of Compliance 
with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
 Governance) Regulations, 2019 
KSB Pumps Company Limited
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

 
The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner: -

1. The total number of directors are 8 as per the following:
a. Male : 7
b. Female : 1

2. Composition of Board of Directors (the Board) is as follows:

       Category                      Names                             

 Independent Director Mr. Shezada Mazhar

  
Mr. Jamal Nasim
Ms. Ayesha Aziz

 Other Non-Executive Directors Dr. Sven Baumgarten
  Mr. Dieter Antonius Pott
  Mr. Hasan Aziz Bilgrami

Mr. Sajid Mahmood Awan

 Executive Directors Mr. Mohammad Masud Akhtar  

 Female Director Ms. Ayesha Aziz 

3. The Directors have con�rmed that none of them is serving as a Director in more than seven listed  
 companies, including this Company; 

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been  
 taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and signi�cant  
 policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of signi�cant  
 policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been  
 taken by the Board/ Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these   
 Regulations;  
7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director  
 elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the  
 Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board;

8. The Board of Directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of   
 Directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

Corporate Governance 49
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9. The Board remained fully compliant with the provisions regarding their Directors Training Program.  
 Five Directors have already acquired certi�cation under Directors Training Program. Company   
 provided information on the Code of Corporate Governance to foreign Directors and other Directors  
 regarding their duties and responsibilities;

10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Of�cer, Company Secretary and Head of  
 Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied  
 with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

11. Chief Financial Of�cer and Chief Executive duly endorsed the �nancial statements before approval of  
 the Board; 

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below, -

a) Audit Committee
 • Mr. Jamal Nasim    Chairman / Independent Director
 • Mr. Dieter Antonius Pott   Member / Non-Executive Director
 • Mr. Shezada Mazhar   Member / Independent Director
 • Mr. Saeed Hussain   Secretary / Head of Internal Audit
 

b) HR and Remuneration Committee
 • Mr. Shezada Mazhar   Chairman / Independent Director
 • Mr. Hasan Aziz Bilgrami  Member / Non-Executive Director
 • Mohammad Masud Akhtar  Member / Chief Executive Of�cer
 • Mr. Shahzad Saleem   Secretary / Head of HR
 

13. The ‘Terms of Reference’ of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to  
 the committees for compliance;

14. The frequency of meetings of the committees were as per following; 

a) Audit Committee

 The meetings of Audit Committee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of   
 interim and �nal results of the Company.

b) HR and Remuneration Committee

 One meeting of HR&R Committee was held during the year.

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function who is considered to be suitably quali�ed  
 and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company;

16. The statutory auditors of the company have con�rmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating  
 under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and  
 registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance  
 with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the  
 Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the �rm involved in  
 the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief  
 executive of�cer, chief �nancial of�cer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the  
 company;
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17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other  
 services except in accordance with the Companies Act, these regulations or any other regulatory  
 requirement and the auditors have con�rmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;  
 and

18. We con�rm that all other requirements of the Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the   
 regulations have been complied with.

 For and on behalf of the Board

March 17,  2021 Mohammad Masud Akhtar Shezada Mazhar
Lahore. Chief Executive Director
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Independent Auditor’s Review Report
To the Members of KSB Pumps Company Limited
Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of KSB Pumps Company Limited for the year 
ended December 31, 2020 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance re�ects the status of the Company's compliance with 
the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements 
of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various 
documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the �nancial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and 
internal control systems suf�cient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to 
consider whether the Board of Director’s statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an 
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are 
only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party 
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance 
does not appropriately re�ect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in 
the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020.

 

 

 
A.F.Ferguson & Co. 

    
Name of engagement partner: Amer Raza Mir 
Lahore 
Date: 6, 202  1

Chartered Accountants  

March 2
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT                                                         
TO THE MEMBERS OF KSB PUMPS COMPANY LIMITED 
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Opinion

We have audited the annexed �nancial statements of KSB Pumps Company Limited (the Company), which comprise 
the statement of �nancial position as at December 31, 2020, and the statement of pro�t or loss and other 
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash �ows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the �nancial statements, including a summary of signi�cant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of 
�nancial position, the statement of pro�t or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity 
and the statement of cash �ows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 
December 31, 2020 and of the pro�t and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash �ows for 
the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International 
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have ful�lled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suf�cient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most signi�cance in our audit of the 
�nancial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the �nancial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. 
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Following is the key audit matter:

Sr.
No

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

1 Revenue Recognition of Projects Our audit procedures included the following:

(Refer to note 28 to the annexed �nancial statements)

The Company generates a portion of its revenue from long 
term projects. Revenue from such projects is recognized 
over a period of time by measuring progress towards 
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation. The 
extent of progress towards completion is measured by 
using the input method whereby actual cost incurred to 
date is compared with the total estimated cost of the 
project.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company 
recognized an amount of Rs. 325 million as revenue from 
such projects. The application of the input method 
requires signi�cant management judgement when 
estimating the total cost to complete the project. This 
estimate is revaluated at the end of each reporting date to 
re�ect current circumstances.

We considered revenue from projects as a key audit matter 
due to signi�cant management judgement and estimation 
involved. 

- Obtained understanding of the internal processes used to 
record actual cost incurred;

- Obtained understanding of the cost estimation process 
and techniques adopted by the management for 
determination of estimated total cost to complete the 
project;

- Assessed the reliability of management’s estimates by 
comparing the actual results of delivered projects to 
previous estimates;

- Performed test of detail procedures over actual cost 
incurred during the year;

- Recalculated the percentage of completion and the 
revenue based on the extent of progress towards 
completion of the project. Checked the extent of progress 
towards completion by comparing actual costs as per the 
Company’s accounting records to the estimated total costs 
of the projects; and 

- Assessed the adequacy of related disclosures in the 
�nancial statements

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in 
the annual report, but does not include the �nancial statements of the Company and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the �nancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the �nancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the �nancial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the �nancial statements in accordance with 
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of 



Financial Statements56 KSB Pakistan / Annual Report 2020

Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of �nancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the �nancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s �nancial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the �nancial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
in�uence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these �nancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the �nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is suf�cient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are  
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
signi�cant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
�nancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the �nancial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the �nancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation. 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and signi�cant audit �ndings, including any signi�cant de�ciencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit. 

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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A.F.Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
     
Name of engagement partner: Mr. Amer Raza Mir.

Lahore
Date: March 26, 2021

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most signi�cance in the audit 
of the �nancial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest bene�ts of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

 a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017); 

 b) the statement of �nancial position, the statement of pro�t or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of  
  changes in equity and the statement of cash �ows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity  
  with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns; 

 c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the   
  Company’s business; and 

 d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the   
  company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr. Amer Raza Mir.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2020

2019
Note

2020
Rupees Rupees

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorised capital
  15,000,000 (2019: 15,000,000)
     ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Revenue reserves

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term �nances - secured
Deferred grant
Employees' retirement and other bene�ts
Deferred tax liabilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term �nances - secured
Current portion of deferred grant
Short term �nances - secured
Trade and other payables
Contract Liability
Unclaimed dividend
Due to provident fund
Provisions for other liabilities and charges

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.  

150,000,000

4,693,286,261

150,000,000

7
8
9

10

5
6

132,000,000 
1,835,112,034

1,967,112,034

132,000,000 
1,825,898,096

 
1,957,898,096

250,231,042 
4,368,548 

72,223,521 
17,962,164

344,785,275 

7
8

11
12
13

14
15

16

221,946,967 
12,200,537 

670,300,329 
1,393,225,998 

2,879,982 
10,083,405 
4,308,801 

66,442,933

2,381,388,952 

4,940,662,983

125,000,000 
 -   

90,691,148 
57,884,316

 
273,575,464 

125,000,000 
 -   

1,086,456,479 
1,402,720,697 

8,486,428 
9,945,891 
4,389,980 

72,189,948
 

2,709,189,423

Chairman  Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
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2019
Note

2020
Rupees Rupees

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Intangible assets
Capital work-in-progress
Long-term loans and deposits

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts
Contract Asset
Advances, deposits, prepayments 
and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

4,693,286,261

17
18
19
20
21

22
23
24
25

26

27

4,940,662,983

1,050,901,999 
 -   

14,083,051 
23,691,863 
70,909,142

 
1,159,586,055 

1,162,474,078 
 -   

17,651,049 
16,871,033 
69,256,113

 
1,266,252,273

115,804,122 
676,523,227 

1,396,912,186 
691,336,694

 
587,017,447 

66,106,530
 

3,533,700,206

73,912,997 
794,014,705 

1,305,532,619 
814,008,093

 
504,338,057 

182,604,239
 

3,674,410,710

Chairman  Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Profit or Loss and 
Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2020   

2019
Note

2020
Rupees Rupees

Sales
Cost of sales   
   
Gross profit 
   
   
Distribution and marketing expenses 
Administrative expenses   
Other operating expenses   
Other operating income   
Finance costs   
   
Profit before taxation
   
Taxation 
  
Pro�t after taxation
   
   
Other comprehensive income:   
   
Items not to be reclassi�ed to pro�t or loss in subsequent periods:   
 Remeasurement of de�ned bene�t plans - net of tax   
Items that may be reclassi�ed subsequently to pro�t or loss   
   
   
Total comprehensive income for the year
   
   
Earnings per share - basic & diluted Rupees 
  
   
   
The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.   
   
  

29,013,938 95,945,487

1.24 6.66

35

36

28
29

30
31
32
33
34

Chairman  Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer

3,606,605,276 
 (3,012,088,716)

594,516,560 

 (303,268,908)
 (205,732,123)
 (11,771,211)

 84,849,517 
 (134,957,259)

23,636,576 

  12,631,696 
 -   

 12,631,696 
 

 8,065,135 
 -   

 8,065,135

 (7,254,334)

16,382,242

  (29,034,913)

87,880,352 

  (311,084,949)
 (219,975,809)

 (8,920,042)
 95,497,880 

 (170,538,489)

116,915,265 

3,755,531,542 
(3,023,594,868)

 
731,936,674
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Chairman  Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer

Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended December 31, 2020

                            Revenue Reserve

Share  General  Unappropriated 
 Capital   Reserves  Profit  Total 

 Rupees   Rupees   Rupees   Rupees 

   
Balance as at January 1, 2019 132,000,000  1,580,600,000   188,952,609  1,901,552,609

   
Transfer to general reserve

Pro�t for the year ended December 31, 2019

  -    149,000,000 (149,000,000)  - 

  -     -     87,880,352 
Other comprehensive loss for the year  -     -     8,065,135

 87,880,352
 8,065,135 

   
Total comprehensive income for the year  -     -   95,945,487  95,945,487 

Transactions with owners in their 
   capacity as owners:

Final dividend for the year ended     
   December 31, 2018 Rs 3.00 per share   -     -     (39,600,000)  (39,600,000) 

Balance as at December 31, 2019 132,000,000 1,729,600,000  96,298,096  1,957,898,096
    
Transfer to general reserve -  76,000,000  (76,000,000)  -   

   
  -     -     

Other comprehensive income for the year
Pro�t for the year ended December 31, 2020

  -     -     

Total comprehensive income for the year  -    -  

 16,382,242
 12,631,696

 29,013,938

 16,382,242
 12,631,696

 29,013,938 

Transactions with owners in their 
   capacity as owners:

Final dividend for the year ended  
December 31, 2019 Rs 1.5 per share  

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.        

  -     -   (19,800,000)  (19,800,000) 

Balance as at December 31, 2020 132,000,000 1,805,600,000 29,512,034 1,967,112,034
   

 



The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.        
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Chairman  Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer

Statement of Cash Flows
 For the year ended December 31, 2020

 2020 2019
Note Rupees Rupees

  
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES    
   
Cash generated from operations  37   388,944,987  306,654,464
   
Finance costs paid    
Taxes paid  

  
Decrease / (increase) in long term loans and deposits - net  

   
  
Net cash generated from operating activities   127,114,194  12,972,008
  
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
  
Fixed capital expenditure including capital work in progress  
Expenditure incurred on acquisition of intangibles  
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  
  
Net cash used in investing activities  
  
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long term �nances-secured   
Repayment of long term �nances-secured   
Dividend paid
   

  
  

  
  

Net cash generated from/ (used in) financing activities

     
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents     
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year     

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.        

     

  
  

  
  

 
 

38

  
   
   

 (146,668,624)
 (91,085,205)
 (22,423,935)
 (1,653,029)

 (261,830,793)
 

 (150,805,429)
 (117,163,046)
 (30,771,368)

5,057,387

 (293,682,456)
 

  (59,838,230)
 (5,358,768)
 19,834,885 

 (45,362,113)

 

   (93,898,632)
 (19,112,946)

 30,116,743 

 (82,894,835)

   268,818,846 
 (31,250,000)
 (19,662,486)

 217,906,360 

(125,000,000)
 -   

 (38,610,752)

 (163,610,752)

 299,658,441 
 (903,852,240)

 (604,193,799)

 (233,533,579)
 (670,318,661)

 (903,852,240)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2020

Net cash generated from/ (used in) financing activities

     
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents     
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year     

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.        

     

1.1

2.1

2.2

2.2.1

1.

2.

Legal status and nature of business         
       

KSB Pumps Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on July 18, 1959 under the 
Companies Act, 1913 (now Companies Act, 2017) and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. 
The Company is a subsidiary of KSB SE & Co. KGaA and principally engaged in the manufacture and 
sale of industrial pumps, valves, castings and related parts and provision of after market services. The 
registered of�ce of the Company is situated at KSB Building, 16/2 Sir Agha Khan road, Lahore. The 
factory of the Company is situated at Hazara Road, Hassanabdal. The Company also has four regional 
of�ces. These regional of�ces are located in Lahore, Rawalpindi, Karachi and Multan.

Statement of compliance           
   

These �nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards 
as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:  
  
i) International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS') issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB) as noti�ed under the Companies Act, 2017; and      
        
ii) Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.     
         
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the 
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Initial application of standards, amendments or an interpretation to existing standards  
        
The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable to the Compa-
ny's �nancial statements covering annual periods, beginning on or after the following dates:
            
Standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting standards that are effec-
tive in current year and applicable / relevant to the Company's operations

Certain standards, amendments and interpretations to IFRS are effective for accounting periods begin-
ning on or after January 1, 2020 but are considered not to be relevant to the Company's operations 
(although they may affect the accounting for future transactions and events) and are, therefore, not 
detailed in these �nancial statements, except for the following:      
        
-Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors' regarding the de�nition of materiality. This was effective for account-
ing periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020. This amendment does not have a material impact on 
the Company's �nancial statements.         
     
- Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting which inter alia, has revised the de�nition of 
asset and liability, reinstated prudence as a component of neutrality and added guidance on different 
measurement basis. This was effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020. The 
applicability of the revised Conceptual Framework does not have a material impact on the Company's 
�nancial statements.          
    
- Amendments to IFRS 16 ' Leases' - COVID - 19 related rent concessions. As a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic, rent concessions have been granted to lessees which might take a variety of forms, including 
payment holidays and deferral of lease payments. In May 2020, the IASB made an amendment to IFRS 
16 Leases which provides lessees with an option to treat qualifying rent concessions in the same way as 
they would if they were not lease modi�cations. In many cases, this will result in accounting for the 
concessions as variable lease payments in the period in which they are granted. This amendment was 
applicable for accounting periods beginning on or after June 1, 2020. This amendment does not have a 
material impact on the Company's �nancial statements.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective 
and have not been early adopted by the company       
         
There are certain standards, amendments to the accounting standards and interpretations that are manda-
tory for the company's accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021 but are considered not 
to be relevant or material to the Company's operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these �nancial 
statements. Except for:          
- The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ('SECP') through SRO 229(I)/2019 dated Febru-
ary 14, 2019 noti�ed that the standard  IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’ would be effective for reporting 
period / year ending on or after June 30, 2019. However, SECP through SRO 985 (I)/ 2019 dated Septem-
ber 30, 2019 granted exemption from applying Expected credit loss based impairment model to �nancial 
assets due from the Government till June 30, 2021. The management of the Company believes that the 
application of this standard subsequent to June 30, 2021 will not have any material impact on the 
Company.

Basis of preparation           
   

Basis of measurement          
    
These �nancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for recogni-
tion of certain employee retirement bene�ts on the basis mentioned in note 4.2    
          
Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions     
         
The Company's signi�cant accounting policies are stated in note 4. Not all of these signi�cant policies 
require the management to make dif�cult, subjective or complex judgments or estimates. The following 
is intended to provide an understanding of the policies the management considers critical because of their 
complexity, judgment of estimation involved in their application and their impact on these �nancial 
statements. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These 
judgments involve assumptions or estimates in respect of future events and the actual results may differ 
from these estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of judgments or complexity or areas where 
assumptions and estimates are signi�cant to the �nancial statements, are as follows:

Employees' retirement and other benefits        
      
The Company uses the valuation performed by an independent actuary as the present value of its retire-
ment bene�t obligations. The Company also reviews for any indicators for impairment of property, plant 
and equipment on a regular basis. The valuation is based on assumptions as mentioned in note 4.2. Any 
changes in these assumptions in future years might affect gains and losses in those years.   
           
Provision for taxation          
    
Where there is uncertainty in income tax accounting i.e. when it is not probable that the tax authorities 
will accept the treatment, the impact of the uncertainty is measured using either the most likely amount 
or the expected value method, depending on which method better predicts the resolution of the uncertain-
ty as explained in note 4.1          
    
Useful lives, residual values and impairment of Property,plant and equipment   
           
The Company reviews the useful lives, residual values and indicators for impairment of Property, plant 
and equipment on regular basis. Any change in estimates in future years might affect the carrying 
amounts of the respective items of Property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the 
depreciation charge and impairment
.

Cost to complete the projects         
     
For project revenue recognition, the Company uses the input method for determining progress against 
performance obligations. Under this method, the cost incurred up to reporting date is divided by the total 
estimated costs of the project and the resultant ratio is applied to total revenue to determine the cumula-
tive revenue to be recognized. This method requires management judgement and estimation in determin-
ing the total estimated cost of the projects. The total cost estimates are based on the prices of materials 
and services applicable at each reporting date adjusted by taking impact of forecasted increases and 
expected completion date. Such estimates are reviewed at each reporting date to re�ect current circum-
stances. Any subsequent increases or decreases in total estimated cost are re�ected in pro�t or loss in the 
period in which they occur.

Stock-in-trade           
   
Stock-in-trade is carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The net realizable value of 
stock-in-trade is assessed for any diminution in their respective values. The net realizable value is 
determined with respect to estimated selling price less estimated expenditure to make the sale. Any change 
in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of stock-in-trade with the corresponding 
effect of the impairment.          
    
If the expected sale price less completion costs and costs to execute sales (net realizable value) is lower 
than the carrying amount, a write-down is recognized for the amount by the which the carrying amount 
exceeds its net realizable value. Provision is made in the �nancial statements for obsolete and slow moving 
stock-in-trade based on management estimate.

Impairment of financial assets         
     
The Company applied IFRS 9 simpli�ed approach to measure expected credit losses using a lifetime 
expected loss allowance for all trade debts except for government receivables. At each reporting date, the 
Company assesses the forward-looking basis for computation of the expected credit losses associated with 
the trade debts. For government receivables, the Company applied the requirements of IAS 39 by review-
ing the recoverability of debts to assess likely amount of bad debts and provision required thereon on an 
annual basis.           
   
Functional and presentation currency        
      
The �nancial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Company's functional and presentation 
currency.           
   

Summary of significant accounting policies        
      

The signi�cant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these �nancial statements are set out 
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 
            
Taxation           
   
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in statement of pro�t 
or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive 
income, in which case it is recognized in equity or other comprehensive income as the case may be.  
            
Current tax           
   
Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the 
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates 
or tax rates expected to apply to the pro�t for the year, if enacted after taking into account tax credits, 
rebates and exemptions, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered 

necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year 
for such years. Where there is uncertainty in income tax accounting i.e. when it is not probable that the 
tax authorities will accept the treatment, the impact of the uncertainty is measured using either the most 
likely amount or the expected value method, depending on which method better predicts the resolution 
of the uncertainty. Such Judgements are reassessed whenever circumstances have changed or there is new 
information that affects the judgement. Where, at the assessment stage, the taxation authorities have 
adopted a different tax treatment and the Company considers that the most likely outcome will be in 
favor of the Company, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

Deferred tax           
   
Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising 
from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the �nancial statements and the 
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable pro�t. Deferred tax liabilities are general-
ly recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent 
that it is probable that future taxable pro�ts will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.      
        
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when 
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the statement of 
pro�t or loss, except in the case of items charged or credited to equity in which case it is included in the 
statement of changes in equity.         
     
Employees' retirement and other benefits        
      
The main features of the schemes operated by the Company for its employees are as follows:   
           
Defined benefit plans          
    
The supervisory and managerial staff with minimum �ve years of continuous service with the Company 
are entitled to participate in an approved funded gratuity scheme. The actual return on the plan assets was 
Rs 18.35 million (2019: Rs 19.98 million). The actual return on plan assets represent the difference 
between the fair value of plan assets at beginning and end of the year after adjustments for contributions 
made by the Company as reduced by bene�ts paid during the year.     
         
The latest actuarial valuation for the approved funded gratuity scheme was carried out as at December 
31, 2020. Projected Unit Credit Method, using the following signi�cant assumptions is used for valuation 
of the scheme:

            
        2020  2019

Discount rate per annum       9.75%  11.25%
Expected rate of increase in salary level per annum   8.75%  10.25%
Expected rate of return per annum     9.75%  11.25%
Average duration of the de�ned bene�t obligation   5 years  5 years

Basis of mortality rates used 
    
            
The Company is expected to contribute Rs 17.04 million to the gratuity fund for the year ending 
December 31, 2021.          
    
The Company operates an un-funded bene�t scheme (ex-gratia) for its unionized staff. Under the scheme, 
members who have completed prescribed years of service with the Company are entitled to receive 20 

days last drawn basic pay for each completed year of service. Provision has been made to cover the obliga-
tion on the basis of actuarial valuation. The amount recognized in the statement of �nancial position 
represents the present value of de�ned bene�t obligation adjusted for unrecognized actuarial gains and 
losses.

The latest actuarial valuation for the un-funded gratuity scheme (ex-gratia) was carried out as at 
December 31, 2020. Projected Unit Credit Method, using the following signi�cant assumptions is used for 
valuation of the scheme:

        2020  2019
            
Discount rate per annum       9.75%  11.25%
Expected rate of increase in salary level per annum   8.75%  10.25%
Expected rate of return per annum     9.75%  11.25%
Average duration of the de�ned bene�t obligation   2 years  2 years

Basis of mortality rates used

           
The Company provides for the expected cost of accumulated compensated absences, when the employee 
renders the service that increases the entitlement to future compensated absences. Provision has been 
made to cover the obligation on the basis of actuarial valuation and charged to statement of pro�t or loss. 
The amount recognized in the statement of �nancial position represents the present value of de�ned 
bene�t obligation. Actuarial gains/losses are recognized immediately under IAS 19 "Employee bene�ts" 
in statement of pro�t or loss. Projected unit credit method, using the following signi�cant assumptions, is 
used for valution of the scheme: 

The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at December 31, 2020. Projected Unit Credit Method, 
using the following signi�cant assumptions is used for valuation of the scheme:

            
        2020  2019
            
Discount rate per annum       9.75%  11.25%
Expected rate of increase in salary level per annum   8.75%  10.25%
Expected rate of return per annum     9.75%  11.25%
Average duration of the de�ned bene�t obligation   1 year  1 year

Basis of mortality rates used         
   
            
Defined contribution plans         
     
The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal monthly 
contributions are made by the Company and employees to the fund at the rate of 10% of basic salary. 
Retirement bene�ts are payable to staff on completion of prescribed qualifying period of service under 
these schemes.           
   
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.  
            
Property, plant and equipment         
     
Property, plant and equipment except freehold land and leasehold land with superstructure are stated at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and any identi�ed accumulated impairment loss. Freehold land 
leasehold land with superstructure is stated at cost less any identi�ed impairment loss. Cost in relation to 
Company's manufactured assets includes direct cost of materials, labour and applicable manufacturing 
overheads.           
       



Legal status and nature of business         
       

KSB Pumps Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on July 18, 1959 under the 
Companies Act, 1913 (now Companies Act, 2017) and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. 
The Company is a subsidiary of KSB SE & Co. KGaA and principally engaged in the manufacture and 
sale of industrial pumps, valves, castings and related parts and provision of after market services. The 
registered of�ce of the Company is situated at KSB Building, 16/2 Sir Agha Khan road, Lahore. The 
factory of the Company is situated at Hazara Road, Hassanabdal. The Company also has four regional 
of�ces. These regional of�ces are located in Lahore, Rawalpindi, Karachi and Multan.

Statement of compliance           
   

These �nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards 
as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:  
  
i) International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS') issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB) as noti�ed under the Companies Act, 2017; and      
        
ii) Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.     
         
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the 
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Initial application of standards, amendments or an interpretation to existing standards  
        
The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable to the Compa-
ny's �nancial statements covering annual periods, beginning on or after the following dates:
            
Standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting standards that are effec-
tive in current year and applicable / relevant to the Company's operations

Certain standards, amendments and interpretations to IFRS are effective for accounting periods begin-
ning on or after January 1, 2020 but are considered not to be relevant to the Company's operations 
(although they may affect the accounting for future transactions and events) and are, therefore, not 
detailed in these �nancial statements, except for the following:      
        
-Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors' regarding the de�nition of materiality. This was effective for account-
ing periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020. This amendment does not have a material impact on 
the Company's �nancial statements.         
     
- Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting which inter alia, has revised the de�nition of 
asset and liability, reinstated prudence as a component of neutrality and added guidance on different 
measurement basis. This was effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020. The 
applicability of the revised Conceptual Framework does not have a material impact on the Company's 
�nancial statements.          
    
- Amendments to IFRS 16 ' Leases' - COVID - 19 related rent concessions. As a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic, rent concessions have been granted to lessees which might take a variety of forms, including 
payment holidays and deferral of lease payments. In May 2020, the IASB made an amendment to IFRS 
16 Leases which provides lessees with an option to treat qualifying rent concessions in the same way as 
they would if they were not lease modi�cations. In many cases, this will result in accounting for the 
concessions as variable lease payments in the period in which they are granted. This amendment was 
applicable for accounting periods beginning on or after June 1, 2020. This amendment does not have a 
material impact on the Company's �nancial statements.
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Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective 
and have not been early adopted by the company       
         
There are certain standards, amendments to the accounting standards and interpretations that are manda-
tory for the company's accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021 but are considered not 
to be relevant or material to the Company's operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these �nancial 
statements. Except for:          
- The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ('SECP') through SRO 229(I)/2019 dated Febru-
ary 14, 2019 noti�ed that the standard  IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’ would be effective for reporting 
period / year ending on or after June 30, 2019. However, SECP through SRO 985 (I)/ 2019 dated Septem-
ber 30, 2019 granted exemption from applying Expected credit loss based impairment model to �nancial 
assets due from the Government till June 30, 2021. The management of the Company believes that the 
application of this standard subsequent to June 30, 2021 will not have any material impact on the 
Company.

Basis of preparation           
   

Basis of measurement          
    
These �nancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for recogni-
tion of certain employee retirement bene�ts on the basis mentioned in note 4.2    
          
Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions     
         
The Company's signi�cant accounting policies are stated in note 4. Not all of these signi�cant policies 
require the management to make dif�cult, subjective or complex judgments or estimates. The following 
is intended to provide an understanding of the policies the management considers critical because of their 
complexity, judgment of estimation involved in their application and their impact on these �nancial 
statements. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These 
judgments involve assumptions or estimates in respect of future events and the actual results may differ 
from these estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of judgments or complexity or areas where 
assumptions and estimates are signi�cant to the �nancial statements, are as follows:

Employees' retirement and other benefits        
      
The Company uses the valuation performed by an independent actuary as the present value of its retire-
ment bene�t obligations. The Company also reviews for any indicators for impairment of property, plant 
and equipment on a regular basis. The valuation is based on assumptions as mentioned in note 4.2. Any 
changes in these assumptions in future years might affect gains and losses in those years.   
           
Provision for taxation          
    
Where there is uncertainty in income tax accounting i.e. when it is not probable that the tax authorities 
will accept the treatment, the impact of the uncertainty is measured using either the most likely amount 
or the expected value method, depending on which method better predicts the resolution of the uncertain-
ty as explained in note 4.1          
    
Useful lives, residual values and impairment of Property,plant and equipment   
           
The Company reviews the useful lives, residual values and indicators for impairment of Property, plant 
and equipment on regular basis. Any change in estimates in future years might affect the carrying 
amounts of the respective items of Property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the 
depreciation charge and impairment
.

3.

3.1

3.1.1

3.1.1.1

3.1.1.2

3.1.1.3

2.2.2 Cost to complete the projects         
     
For project revenue recognition, the Company uses the input method for determining progress against 
performance obligations. Under this method, the cost incurred up to reporting date is divided by the total 
estimated costs of the project and the resultant ratio is applied to total revenue to determine the cumula-
tive revenue to be recognized. This method requires management judgement and estimation in determin-
ing the total estimated cost of the projects. The total cost estimates are based on the prices of materials 
and services applicable at each reporting date adjusted by taking impact of forecasted increases and 
expected completion date. Such estimates are reviewed at each reporting date to re�ect current circum-
stances. Any subsequent increases or decreases in total estimated cost are re�ected in pro�t or loss in the 
period in which they occur.

Stock-in-trade           
   
Stock-in-trade is carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The net realizable value of 
stock-in-trade is assessed for any diminution in their respective values. The net realizable value is 
determined with respect to estimated selling price less estimated expenditure to make the sale. Any change 
in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of stock-in-trade with the corresponding 
effect of the impairment.          
    
If the expected sale price less completion costs and costs to execute sales (net realizable value) is lower 
than the carrying amount, a write-down is recognized for the amount by the which the carrying amount 
exceeds its net realizable value. Provision is made in the �nancial statements for obsolete and slow moving 
stock-in-trade based on management estimate.

Impairment of financial assets         
     
The Company applied IFRS 9 simpli�ed approach to measure expected credit losses using a lifetime 
expected loss allowance for all trade debts except for government receivables. At each reporting date, the 
Company assesses the forward-looking basis for computation of the expected credit losses associated with 
the trade debts. For government receivables, the Company applied the requirements of IAS 39 by review-
ing the recoverability of debts to assess likely amount of bad debts and provision required thereon on an 
annual basis.           
   
Functional and presentation currency        
      
The �nancial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Company's functional and presentation 
currency.           
   

Summary of significant accounting policies        
      

The signi�cant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these �nancial statements are set out 
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 
            
Taxation           
   
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in statement of pro�t 
or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive 
income, in which case it is recognized in equity or other comprehensive income as the case may be.  
            
Current tax           
   
Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the 
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates 
or tax rates expected to apply to the pro�t for the year, if enacted after taking into account tax credits, 
rebates and exemptions, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered 

necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year 
for such years. Where there is uncertainty in income tax accounting i.e. when it is not probable that the 
tax authorities will accept the treatment, the impact of the uncertainty is measured using either the most 
likely amount or the expected value method, depending on which method better predicts the resolution 
of the uncertainty. Such Judgements are reassessed whenever circumstances have changed or there is new 
information that affects the judgement. Where, at the assessment stage, the taxation authorities have 
adopted a different tax treatment and the Company considers that the most likely outcome will be in 
favor of the Company, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

Deferred tax           
   
Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising 
from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the �nancial statements and the 
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable pro�t. Deferred tax liabilities are general-
ly recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent 
that it is probable that future taxable pro�ts will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.      
        
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when 
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the statement of 
pro�t or loss, except in the case of items charged or credited to equity in which case it is included in the 
statement of changes in equity.         
     
Employees' retirement and other benefits        
      
The main features of the schemes operated by the Company for its employees are as follows:   
           
Defined benefit plans          
    
The supervisory and managerial staff with minimum �ve years of continuous service with the Company 
are entitled to participate in an approved funded gratuity scheme. The actual return on the plan assets was 
Rs 18.35 million (2019: Rs 19.98 million). The actual return on plan assets represent the difference 
between the fair value of plan assets at beginning and end of the year after adjustments for contributions 
made by the Company as reduced by bene�ts paid during the year.     
         
The latest actuarial valuation for the approved funded gratuity scheme was carried out as at December 
31, 2020. Projected Unit Credit Method, using the following signi�cant assumptions is used for valuation 
of the scheme:

            
        2020  2019

Discount rate per annum       9.75%  11.25%
Expected rate of increase in salary level per annum   8.75%  10.25%
Expected rate of return per annum     9.75%  11.25%
Average duration of the de�ned bene�t obligation   5 years  5 years

Basis of mortality rates used 
    
            
The Company is expected to contribute Rs 17.04 million to the gratuity fund for the year ending 
December 31, 2021.          
    
The Company operates an un-funded bene�t scheme (ex-gratia) for its unionized staff. Under the scheme, 
members who have completed prescribed years of service with the Company are entitled to receive 20 

days last drawn basic pay for each completed year of service. Provision has been made to cover the obliga-
tion on the basis of actuarial valuation. The amount recognized in the statement of �nancial position 
represents the present value of de�ned bene�t obligation adjusted for unrecognized actuarial gains and 
losses.

The latest actuarial valuation for the un-funded gratuity scheme (ex-gratia) was carried out as at 
December 31, 2020. Projected Unit Credit Method, using the following signi�cant assumptions is used for 
valuation of the scheme:

        2020  2019
            
Discount rate per annum       9.75%  11.25%
Expected rate of increase in salary level per annum   8.75%  10.25%
Expected rate of return per annum     9.75%  11.25%
Average duration of the de�ned bene�t obligation   2 years  2 years

Basis of mortality rates used

           
The Company provides for the expected cost of accumulated compensated absences, when the employee 
renders the service that increases the entitlement to future compensated absences. Provision has been 
made to cover the obligation on the basis of actuarial valuation and charged to statement of pro�t or loss. 
The amount recognized in the statement of �nancial position represents the present value of de�ned 
bene�t obligation. Actuarial gains/losses are recognized immediately under IAS 19 "Employee bene�ts" 
in statement of pro�t or loss. Projected unit credit method, using the following signi�cant assumptions, is 
used for valution of the scheme: 

The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at December 31, 2020. Projected Unit Credit Method, 
using the following signi�cant assumptions is used for valuation of the scheme:

            
        2020  2019
            
Discount rate per annum       9.75%  11.25%
Expected rate of increase in salary level per annum   8.75%  10.25%
Expected rate of return per annum     9.75%  11.25%
Average duration of the de�ned bene�t obligation   1 year  1 year

Basis of mortality rates used         
   
            
Defined contribution plans         
     
The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal monthly 
contributions are made by the Company and employees to the fund at the rate of 10% of basic salary. 
Retirement bene�ts are payable to staff on completion of prescribed qualifying period of service under 
these schemes.           
   
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.  
            
Property, plant and equipment         
     
Property, plant and equipment except freehold land and leasehold land with superstructure are stated at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and any identi�ed accumulated impairment loss. Freehold land 
leasehold land with superstructure is stated at cost less any identi�ed impairment loss. Cost in relation to 
Company's manufactured assets includes direct cost of materials, labour and applicable manufacturing 
overheads.           
       



Legal status and nature of business         
       

KSB Pumps Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on July 18, 1959 under the 
Companies Act, 1913 (now Companies Act, 2017) and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. 
The Company is a subsidiary of KSB SE & Co. KGaA and principally engaged in the manufacture and 
sale of industrial pumps, valves, castings and related parts and provision of after market services. The 
registered of�ce of the Company is situated at KSB Building, 16/2 Sir Agha Khan road, Lahore. The 
factory of the Company is situated at Hazara Road, Hassanabdal. The Company also has four regional 
of�ces. These regional of�ces are located in Lahore, Rawalpindi, Karachi and Multan.

Statement of compliance           
   

These �nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards 
as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:  
  
i) International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS') issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB) as noti�ed under the Companies Act, 2017; and      
        
ii) Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.     
         
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the 
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Initial application of standards, amendments or an interpretation to existing standards  
        
The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable to the Compa-
ny's �nancial statements covering annual periods, beginning on or after the following dates:
            
Standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting standards that are effec-
tive in current year and applicable / relevant to the Company's operations

Certain standards, amendments and interpretations to IFRS are effective for accounting periods begin-
ning on or after January 1, 2020 but are considered not to be relevant to the Company's operations 
(although they may affect the accounting for future transactions and events) and are, therefore, not 
detailed in these �nancial statements, except for the following:      
        
-Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors' regarding the de�nition of materiality. This was effective for account-
ing periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020. This amendment does not have a material impact on 
the Company's �nancial statements.         
     
- Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting which inter alia, has revised the de�nition of 
asset and liability, reinstated prudence as a component of neutrality and added guidance on different 
measurement basis. This was effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020. The 
applicability of the revised Conceptual Framework does not have a material impact on the Company's 
�nancial statements.          
    
- Amendments to IFRS 16 ' Leases' - COVID - 19 related rent concessions. As a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic, rent concessions have been granted to lessees which might take a variety of forms, including 
payment holidays and deferral of lease payments. In May 2020, the IASB made an amendment to IFRS 
16 Leases which provides lessees with an option to treat qualifying rent concessions in the same way as 
they would if they were not lease modi�cations. In many cases, this will result in accounting for the 
concessions as variable lease payments in the period in which they are granted. This amendment was 
applicable for accounting periods beginning on or after June 1, 2020. This amendment does not have a 
material impact on the Company's �nancial statements.
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Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective 
and have not been early adopted by the company       
         
There are certain standards, amendments to the accounting standards and interpretations that are manda-
tory for the company's accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021 but are considered not 
to be relevant or material to the Company's operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these �nancial 
statements. Except for:          
- The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ('SECP') through SRO 229(I)/2019 dated Febru-
ary 14, 2019 noti�ed that the standard  IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’ would be effective for reporting 
period / year ending on or after June 30, 2019. However, SECP through SRO 985 (I)/ 2019 dated Septem-
ber 30, 2019 granted exemption from applying Expected credit loss based impairment model to �nancial 
assets due from the Government till June 30, 2021. The management of the Company believes that the 
application of this standard subsequent to June 30, 2021 will not have any material impact on the 
Company.

Basis of preparation           
   

Basis of measurement          
    
These �nancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for recogni-
tion of certain employee retirement bene�ts on the basis mentioned in note 4.2    
          
Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions     
         
The Company's signi�cant accounting policies are stated in note 4. Not all of these signi�cant policies 
require the management to make dif�cult, subjective or complex judgments or estimates. The following 
is intended to provide an understanding of the policies the management considers critical because of their 
complexity, judgment of estimation involved in their application and their impact on these �nancial 
statements. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These 
judgments involve assumptions or estimates in respect of future events and the actual results may differ 
from these estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of judgments or complexity or areas where 
assumptions and estimates are signi�cant to the �nancial statements, are as follows:

Employees' retirement and other benefits        
      
The Company uses the valuation performed by an independent actuary as the present value of its retire-
ment bene�t obligations. The Company also reviews for any indicators for impairment of property, plant 
and equipment on a regular basis. The valuation is based on assumptions as mentioned in note 4.2. Any 
changes in these assumptions in future years might affect gains and losses in those years.   
           
Provision for taxation          
    
Where there is uncertainty in income tax accounting i.e. when it is not probable that the tax authorities 
will accept the treatment, the impact of the uncertainty is measured using either the most likely amount 
or the expected value method, depending on which method better predicts the resolution of the uncertain-
ty as explained in note 4.1          
    
Useful lives, residual values and impairment of Property,plant and equipment   
           
The Company reviews the useful lives, residual values and indicators for impairment of Property, plant 
and equipment on regular basis. Any change in estimates in future years might affect the carrying 
amounts of the respective items of Property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the 
depreciation charge and impairment
.

3.2

Cost to complete the projects         
     
For project revenue recognition, the Company uses the input method for determining progress against 
performance obligations. Under this method, the cost incurred up to reporting date is divided by the total 
estimated costs of the project and the resultant ratio is applied to total revenue to determine the cumula-
tive revenue to be recognized. This method requires management judgement and estimation in determin-
ing the total estimated cost of the projects. The total cost estimates are based on the prices of materials 
and services applicable at each reporting date adjusted by taking impact of forecasted increases and 
expected completion date. Such estimates are reviewed at each reporting date to re�ect current circum-
stances. Any subsequent increases or decreases in total estimated cost are re�ected in pro�t or loss in the 
period in which they occur.

Stock-in-trade           
   
Stock-in-trade is carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The net realizable value of 
stock-in-trade is assessed for any diminution in their respective values. The net realizable value is 
determined with respect to estimated selling price less estimated expenditure to make the sale. Any change 
in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of stock-in-trade with the corresponding 
effect of the impairment.          
    
If the expected sale price less completion costs and costs to execute sales (net realizable value) is lower 
than the carrying amount, a write-down is recognized for the amount by the which the carrying amount 
exceeds its net realizable value. Provision is made in the �nancial statements for obsolete and slow moving 
stock-in-trade based on management estimate.

Impairment of financial assets         
     
The Company applied IFRS 9 simpli�ed approach to measure expected credit losses using a lifetime 
expected loss allowance for all trade debts except for government receivables. At each reporting date, the 
Company assesses the forward-looking basis for computation of the expected credit losses associated with 
the trade debts. For government receivables, the Company applied the requirements of IAS 39 by review-
ing the recoverability of debts to assess likely amount of bad debts and provision required thereon on an 
annual basis.           
   
Functional and presentation currency        
      
The �nancial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Company's functional and presentation 
currency.           
   

Summary of significant accounting policies        
      

The signi�cant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these �nancial statements are set out 
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 
            
Taxation           
   
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in statement of pro�t 
or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive 
income, in which case it is recognized in equity or other comprehensive income as the case may be.  
            
Current tax           
   
Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the 
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates 
or tax rates expected to apply to the pro�t for the year, if enacted after taking into account tax credits, 
rebates and exemptions, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered 

3.1.1.4

3.1.1.5

3.1.1.6

4.
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necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year 
for such years. Where there is uncertainty in income tax accounting i.e. when it is not probable that the 
tax authorities will accept the treatment, the impact of the uncertainty is measured using either the most 
likely amount or the expected value method, depending on which method better predicts the resolution 
of the uncertainty. Such Judgements are reassessed whenever circumstances have changed or there is new 
information that affects the judgement. Where, at the assessment stage, the taxation authorities have 
adopted a different tax treatment and the Company considers that the most likely outcome will be in 
favor of the Company, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

Deferred tax           
   
Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising 
from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the �nancial statements and the 
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable pro�t. Deferred tax liabilities are general-
ly recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent 
that it is probable that future taxable pro�ts will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.      
        
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when 
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the statement of 
pro�t or loss, except in the case of items charged or credited to equity in which case it is included in the 
statement of changes in equity.         
     
Employees' retirement and other benefits        
      
The main features of the schemes operated by the Company for its employees are as follows:   
           
Defined benefit plans          
    
The supervisory and managerial staff with minimum �ve years of continuous service with the Company 
are entitled to participate in an approved funded gratuity scheme. The actual return on the plan assets was 
Rs 18.35 million (2019: Rs 19.98 million). The actual return on plan assets represent the difference 
between the fair value of plan assets at beginning and end of the year after adjustments for contributions 
made by the Company as reduced by bene�ts paid during the year.     
         
The latest actuarial valuation for the approved funded gratuity scheme was carried out as at December 
31, 2020. Projected Unit Credit Method, using the following signi�cant assumptions is used for valuation 
of the scheme:

            
        2020  2019

Discount rate per annum       9.75%  11.25%
Expected rate of increase in salary level per annum   8.75%  10.25%
Expected rate of return per annum     9.75%  11.25%
Average duration of the de�ned bene�t obligation   5 years  5 years

Basis of mortality rates used 
    
            
The Company is expected to contribute Rs 17.04 million to the gratuity fund for the year ending 
December 31, 2021.          
    
The Company operates an un-funded bene�t scheme (ex-gratia) for its unionized staff. Under the scheme, 
members who have completed prescribed years of service with the Company are entitled to receive 20 

days last drawn basic pay for each completed year of service. Provision has been made to cover the obliga-
tion on the basis of actuarial valuation. The amount recognized in the statement of �nancial position 
represents the present value of de�ned bene�t obligation adjusted for unrecognized actuarial gains and 
losses.

The latest actuarial valuation for the un-funded gratuity scheme (ex-gratia) was carried out as at 
December 31, 2020. Projected Unit Credit Method, using the following signi�cant assumptions is used for 
valuation of the scheme:

        2020  2019
            
Discount rate per annum       9.75%  11.25%
Expected rate of increase in salary level per annum   8.75%  10.25%
Expected rate of return per annum     9.75%  11.25%
Average duration of the de�ned bene�t obligation   2 years  2 years

Basis of mortality rates used

           
The Company provides for the expected cost of accumulated compensated absences, when the employee 
renders the service that increases the entitlement to future compensated absences. Provision has been 
made to cover the obligation on the basis of actuarial valuation and charged to statement of pro�t or loss. 
The amount recognized in the statement of �nancial position represents the present value of de�ned 
bene�t obligation. Actuarial gains/losses are recognized immediately under IAS 19 "Employee bene�ts" 
in statement of pro�t or loss. Projected unit credit method, using the following signi�cant assumptions, is 
used for valution of the scheme: 

The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at December 31, 2020. Projected Unit Credit Method, 
using the following signi�cant assumptions is used for valuation of the scheme:

            
        2020  2019
            
Discount rate per annum       9.75%  11.25%
Expected rate of increase in salary level per annum   8.75%  10.25%
Expected rate of return per annum     9.75%  11.25%
Average duration of the de�ned bene�t obligation   1 year  1 year

Basis of mortality rates used         
   
            
Defined contribution plans         
     
The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal monthly 
contributions are made by the Company and employees to the fund at the rate of 10% of basic salary. 
Retirement bene�ts are payable to staff on completion of prescribed qualifying period of service under 
these schemes.           
   
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.  
            
Property, plant and equipment         
     
Property, plant and equipment except freehold land and leasehold land with superstructure are stated at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and any identi�ed accumulated impairment loss. Freehold land 
leasehold land with superstructure is stated at cost less any identi�ed impairment loss. Cost in relation to 
Company's manufactured assets includes direct cost of materials, labour and applicable manufacturing 
overheads.           
       



Legal status and nature of business         
       

KSB Pumps Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on July 18, 1959 under the 
Companies Act, 1913 (now Companies Act, 2017) and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. 
The Company is a subsidiary of KSB SE & Co. KGaA and principally engaged in the manufacture and 
sale of industrial pumps, valves, castings and related parts and provision of after market services. The 
registered of�ce of the Company is situated at KSB Building, 16/2 Sir Agha Khan road, Lahore. The 
factory of the Company is situated at Hazara Road, Hassanabdal. The Company also has four regional 
of�ces. These regional of�ces are located in Lahore, Rawalpindi, Karachi and Multan.

Statement of compliance           
   

These �nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards 
as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:  
  
i) International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS') issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB) as noti�ed under the Companies Act, 2017; and      
        
ii) Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.     
         
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the 
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Initial application of standards, amendments or an interpretation to existing standards  
        
The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable to the Compa-
ny's �nancial statements covering annual periods, beginning on or after the following dates:
            
Standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting standards that are effec-
tive in current year and applicable / relevant to the Company's operations

Certain standards, amendments and interpretations to IFRS are effective for accounting periods begin-
ning on or after January 1, 2020 but are considered not to be relevant to the Company's operations 
(although they may affect the accounting for future transactions and events) and are, therefore, not 
detailed in these �nancial statements, except for the following:      
        
-Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors' regarding the de�nition of materiality. This was effective for account-
ing periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020. This amendment does not have a material impact on 
the Company's �nancial statements.         
     
- Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting which inter alia, has revised the de�nition of 
asset and liability, reinstated prudence as a component of neutrality and added guidance on different 
measurement basis. This was effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020. The 
applicability of the revised Conceptual Framework does not have a material impact on the Company's 
�nancial statements.          
    
- Amendments to IFRS 16 ' Leases' - COVID - 19 related rent concessions. As a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic, rent concessions have been granted to lessees which might take a variety of forms, including 
payment holidays and deferral of lease payments. In May 2020, the IASB made an amendment to IFRS 
16 Leases which provides lessees with an option to treat qualifying rent concessions in the same way as 
they would if they were not lease modi�cations. In many cases, this will result in accounting for the 
concessions as variable lease payments in the period in which they are granted. This amendment was 
applicable for accounting periods beginning on or after June 1, 2020. This amendment does not have a 
material impact on the Company's �nancial statements.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective 
and have not been early adopted by the company       
         
There are certain standards, amendments to the accounting standards and interpretations that are manda-
tory for the company's accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021 but are considered not 
to be relevant or material to the Company's operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these �nancial 
statements. Except for:          
- The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ('SECP') through SRO 229(I)/2019 dated Febru-
ary 14, 2019 noti�ed that the standard  IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’ would be effective for reporting 
period / year ending on or after June 30, 2019. However, SECP through SRO 985 (I)/ 2019 dated Septem-
ber 30, 2019 granted exemption from applying Expected credit loss based impairment model to �nancial 
assets due from the Government till June 30, 2021. The management of the Company believes that the 
application of this standard subsequent to June 30, 2021 will not have any material impact on the 
Company.

Basis of preparation           
   

Basis of measurement          
    
These �nancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for recogni-
tion of certain employee retirement bene�ts on the basis mentioned in note 4.2    
          
Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions     
         
The Company's signi�cant accounting policies are stated in note 4. Not all of these signi�cant policies 
require the management to make dif�cult, subjective or complex judgments or estimates. The following 
is intended to provide an understanding of the policies the management considers critical because of their 
complexity, judgment of estimation involved in their application and their impact on these �nancial 
statements. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These 
judgments involve assumptions or estimates in respect of future events and the actual results may differ 
from these estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of judgments or complexity or areas where 
assumptions and estimates are signi�cant to the �nancial statements, are as follows:

Employees' retirement and other benefits        
      
The Company uses the valuation performed by an independent actuary as the present value of its retire-
ment bene�t obligations. The Company also reviews for any indicators for impairment of property, plant 
and equipment on a regular basis. The valuation is based on assumptions as mentioned in note 4.2. Any 
changes in these assumptions in future years might affect gains and losses in those years.   
           
Provision for taxation          
    
Where there is uncertainty in income tax accounting i.e. when it is not probable that the tax authorities 
will accept the treatment, the impact of the uncertainty is measured using either the most likely amount 
or the expected value method, depending on which method better predicts the resolution of the uncertain-
ty as explained in note 4.1          
    
Useful lives, residual values and impairment of Property,plant and equipment   
           
The Company reviews the useful lives, residual values and indicators for impairment of Property, plant 
and equipment on regular basis. Any change in estimates in future years might affect the carrying 
amounts of the respective items of Property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the 
depreciation charge and impairment
.

Cost to complete the projects         
     
For project revenue recognition, the Company uses the input method for determining progress against 
performance obligations. Under this method, the cost incurred up to reporting date is divided by the total 
estimated costs of the project and the resultant ratio is applied to total revenue to determine the cumula-
tive revenue to be recognized. This method requires management judgement and estimation in determin-
ing the total estimated cost of the projects. The total cost estimates are based on the prices of materials 
and services applicable at each reporting date adjusted by taking impact of forecasted increases and 
expected completion date. Such estimates are reviewed at each reporting date to re�ect current circum-
stances. Any subsequent increases or decreases in total estimated cost are re�ected in pro�t or loss in the 
period in which they occur.

Stock-in-trade           
   
Stock-in-trade is carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The net realizable value of 
stock-in-trade is assessed for any diminution in their respective values. The net realizable value is 
determined with respect to estimated selling price less estimated expenditure to make the sale. Any change 
in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of stock-in-trade with the corresponding 
effect of the impairment.          
    
If the expected sale price less completion costs and costs to execute sales (net realizable value) is lower 
than the carrying amount, a write-down is recognized for the amount by the which the carrying amount 
exceeds its net realizable value. Provision is made in the �nancial statements for obsolete and slow moving 
stock-in-trade based on management estimate.

Impairment of financial assets         
     
The Company applied IFRS 9 simpli�ed approach to measure expected credit losses using a lifetime 
expected loss allowance for all trade debts except for government receivables. At each reporting date, the 
Company assesses the forward-looking basis for computation of the expected credit losses associated with 
the trade debts. For government receivables, the Company applied the requirements of IAS 39 by review-
ing the recoverability of debts to assess likely amount of bad debts and provision required thereon on an 
annual basis.           
   
Functional and presentation currency        
      
The �nancial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Company's functional and presentation 
currency.           
   

Summary of significant accounting policies        
      

The signi�cant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these �nancial statements are set out 
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 
            
Taxation           
   
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in statement of pro�t 
or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive 
income, in which case it is recognized in equity or other comprehensive income as the case may be.  
            
Current tax           
   
Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the 
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates 
or tax rates expected to apply to the pro�t for the year, if enacted after taking into account tax credits, 
rebates and exemptions, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered 
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necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year 
for such years. Where there is uncertainty in income tax accounting i.e. when it is not probable that the 
tax authorities will accept the treatment, the impact of the uncertainty is measured using either the most 
likely amount or the expected value method, depending on which method better predicts the resolution 
of the uncertainty. Such Judgements are reassessed whenever circumstances have changed or there is new 
information that affects the judgement. Where, at the assessment stage, the taxation authorities have 
adopted a different tax treatment and the Company considers that the most likely outcome will be in 
favor of the Company, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

Deferred tax           
   
Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising 
from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the �nancial statements and the 
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable pro�t. Deferred tax liabilities are general-
ly recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent 
that it is probable that future taxable pro�ts will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.      
        
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when 
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the statement of 
pro�t or loss, except in the case of items charged or credited to equity in which case it is included in the 
statement of changes in equity.         
     
Employees' retirement and other benefits        
      
The main features of the schemes operated by the Company for its employees are as follows:   
           
Defined benefit plans          
    
The supervisory and managerial staff with minimum �ve years of continuous service with the Company 
are entitled to participate in an approved funded gratuity scheme. The actual return on the plan assets was 
Rs 18.35 million (2019: Rs 19.98 million). The actual return on plan assets represent the difference 
between the fair value of plan assets at beginning and end of the year after adjustments for contributions 
made by the Company as reduced by bene�ts paid during the year.     
         
The latest actuarial valuation for the approved funded gratuity scheme was carried out as at December 
31, 2020. Projected Unit Credit Method, using the following signi�cant assumptions is used for valuation 
of the scheme:

            
        2020  2019

Discount rate per annum       9.75%  11.25%
Expected rate of increase in salary level per annum   8.75%  10.25%
Expected rate of return per annum     9.75%  11.25%
Average duration of the de�ned bene�t obligation   5 years  5 years

Basis of mortality rates used 
    
            
The Company is expected to contribute Rs 17.04 million to the gratuity fund for the year ending 
December 31, 2021.          
    
The Company operates an un-funded bene�t scheme (ex-gratia) for its unionized staff. Under the scheme, 
members who have completed prescribed years of service with the Company are entitled to receive 20 
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days last drawn basic pay for each completed year of service. Provision has been made to cover the obliga-
tion on the basis of actuarial valuation. The amount recognized in the statement of �nancial position 
represents the present value of de�ned bene�t obligation adjusted for unrecognized actuarial gains and 
losses.

The latest actuarial valuation for the un-funded gratuity scheme (ex-gratia) was carried out as at 
December 31, 2020. Projected Unit Credit Method, using the following signi�cant assumptions is used for 
valuation of the scheme:

        2020  2019
            
Discount rate per annum       9.75%  11.25%
Expected rate of increase in salary level per annum   8.75%  10.25%
Expected rate of return per annum     9.75%  11.25%
Average duration of the de�ned bene�t obligation   2 years  2 years

Basis of mortality rates used

           
The Company provides for the expected cost of accumulated compensated absences, when the employee 
renders the service that increases the entitlement to future compensated absences. Provision has been 
made to cover the obligation on the basis of actuarial valuation and charged to statement of pro�t or loss. 
The amount recognized in the statement of �nancial position represents the present value of de�ned 
bene�t obligation. Actuarial gains/losses are recognized immediately under IAS 19 "Employee bene�ts" 
in statement of pro�t or loss. Projected unit credit method, using the following signi�cant assumptions, is 
used for valution of the scheme: 

The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at December 31, 2020. Projected Unit Credit Method, 
using the following signi�cant assumptions is used for valuation of the scheme:

            
        2020  2019
            
Discount rate per annum       9.75%  11.25%
Expected rate of increase in salary level per annum   8.75%  10.25%
Expected rate of return per annum     9.75%  11.25%
Average duration of the de�ned bene�t obligation   1 year  1 year

Basis of mortality rates used         
   
            
Defined contribution plans         
     
The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal monthly 
contributions are made by the Company and employees to the fund at the rate of 10% of basic salary. 
Retirement bene�ts are payable to staff on completion of prescribed qualifying period of service under 
these schemes.           
   
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.  
            
Property, plant and equipment         
     
Property, plant and equipment except freehold land and leasehold land with superstructure are stated at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and any identi�ed accumulated impairment loss. Freehold land 
leasehold land with superstructure is stated at cost less any identi�ed impairment loss. Cost in relation to 
Company's manufactured assets includes direct cost of materials, labour and applicable manufacturing 
overheads.           
       



Legal status and nature of business         
       

KSB Pumps Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on July 18, 1959 under the 
Companies Act, 1913 (now Companies Act, 2017) and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. 
The Company is a subsidiary of KSB SE & Co. KGaA and principally engaged in the manufacture and 
sale of industrial pumps, valves, castings and related parts and provision of after market services. The 
registered of�ce of the Company is situated at KSB Building, 16/2 Sir Agha Khan road, Lahore. The 
factory of the Company is situated at Hazara Road, Hassanabdal. The Company also has four regional 
of�ces. These regional of�ces are located in Lahore, Rawalpindi, Karachi and Multan.

Statement of compliance           
   

These �nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards 
as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:  
  
i) International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS') issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB) as noti�ed under the Companies Act, 2017; and      
        
ii) Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.     
         
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the 
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Initial application of standards, amendments or an interpretation to existing standards  
        
The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable to the Compa-
ny's �nancial statements covering annual periods, beginning on or after the following dates:
            
Standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting standards that are effec-
tive in current year and applicable / relevant to the Company's operations

Certain standards, amendments and interpretations to IFRS are effective for accounting periods begin-
ning on or after January 1, 2020 but are considered not to be relevant to the Company's operations 
(although they may affect the accounting for future transactions and events) and are, therefore, not 
detailed in these �nancial statements, except for the following:      
        
-Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors' regarding the de�nition of materiality. This was effective for account-
ing periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020. This amendment does not have a material impact on 
the Company's �nancial statements.         
     
- Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting which inter alia, has revised the de�nition of 
asset and liability, reinstated prudence as a component of neutrality and added guidance on different 
measurement basis. This was effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020. The 
applicability of the revised Conceptual Framework does not have a material impact on the Company's 
�nancial statements.          
    
- Amendments to IFRS 16 ' Leases' - COVID - 19 related rent concessions. As a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic, rent concessions have been granted to lessees which might take a variety of forms, including 
payment holidays and deferral of lease payments. In May 2020, the IASB made an amendment to IFRS 
16 Leases which provides lessees with an option to treat qualifying rent concessions in the same way as 
they would if they were not lease modi�cations. In many cases, this will result in accounting for the 
concessions as variable lease payments in the period in which they are granted. This amendment was 
applicable for accounting periods beginning on or after June 1, 2020. This amendment does not have a 
material impact on the Company's �nancial statements.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective 
and have not been early adopted by the company       
         
There are certain standards, amendments to the accounting standards and interpretations that are manda-
tory for the company's accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021 but are considered not 
to be relevant or material to the Company's operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these �nancial 
statements. Except for:          
- The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ('SECP') through SRO 229(I)/2019 dated Febru-
ary 14, 2019 noti�ed that the standard  IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’ would be effective for reporting 
period / year ending on or after June 30, 2019. However, SECP through SRO 985 (I)/ 2019 dated Septem-
ber 30, 2019 granted exemption from applying Expected credit loss based impairment model to �nancial 
assets due from the Government till June 30, 2021. The management of the Company believes that the 
application of this standard subsequent to June 30, 2021 will not have any material impact on the 
Company.

Basis of preparation           
   

Basis of measurement          
    
These �nancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for recogni-
tion of certain employee retirement bene�ts on the basis mentioned in note 4.2    
          
Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions     
         
The Company's signi�cant accounting policies are stated in note 4. Not all of these signi�cant policies 
require the management to make dif�cult, subjective or complex judgments or estimates. The following 
is intended to provide an understanding of the policies the management considers critical because of their 
complexity, judgment of estimation involved in their application and their impact on these �nancial 
statements. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These 
judgments involve assumptions or estimates in respect of future events and the actual results may differ 
from these estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of judgments or complexity or areas where 
assumptions and estimates are signi�cant to the �nancial statements, are as follows:

Employees' retirement and other benefits        
      
The Company uses the valuation performed by an independent actuary as the present value of its retire-
ment bene�t obligations. The Company also reviews for any indicators for impairment of property, plant 
and equipment on a regular basis. The valuation is based on assumptions as mentioned in note 4.2. Any 
changes in these assumptions in future years might affect gains and losses in those years.   
           
Provision for taxation          
    
Where there is uncertainty in income tax accounting i.e. when it is not probable that the tax authorities 
will accept the treatment, the impact of the uncertainty is measured using either the most likely amount 
or the expected value method, depending on which method better predicts the resolution of the uncertain-
ty as explained in note 4.1          
    
Useful lives, residual values and impairment of Property,plant and equipment   
           
The Company reviews the useful lives, residual values and indicators for impairment of Property, plant 
and equipment on regular basis. Any change in estimates in future years might affect the carrying 
amounts of the respective items of Property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the 
depreciation charge and impairment
.

Cost to complete the projects         
     
For project revenue recognition, the Company uses the input method for determining progress against 
performance obligations. Under this method, the cost incurred up to reporting date is divided by the total 
estimated costs of the project and the resultant ratio is applied to total revenue to determine the cumula-
tive revenue to be recognized. This method requires management judgement and estimation in determin-
ing the total estimated cost of the projects. The total cost estimates are based on the prices of materials 
and services applicable at each reporting date adjusted by taking impact of forecasted increases and 
expected completion date. Such estimates are reviewed at each reporting date to re�ect current circum-
stances. Any subsequent increases or decreases in total estimated cost are re�ected in pro�t or loss in the 
period in which they occur.

Stock-in-trade           
   
Stock-in-trade is carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The net realizable value of 
stock-in-trade is assessed for any diminution in their respective values. The net realizable value is 
determined with respect to estimated selling price less estimated expenditure to make the sale. Any change 
in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of stock-in-trade with the corresponding 
effect of the impairment.          
    
If the expected sale price less completion costs and costs to execute sales (net realizable value) is lower 
than the carrying amount, a write-down is recognized for the amount by the which the carrying amount 
exceeds its net realizable value. Provision is made in the �nancial statements for obsolete and slow moving 
stock-in-trade based on management estimate.

Impairment of financial assets         
     
The Company applied IFRS 9 simpli�ed approach to measure expected credit losses using a lifetime 
expected loss allowance for all trade debts except for government receivables. At each reporting date, the 
Company assesses the forward-looking basis for computation of the expected credit losses associated with 
the trade debts. For government receivables, the Company applied the requirements of IAS 39 by review-
ing the recoverability of debts to assess likely amount of bad debts and provision required thereon on an 
annual basis.           
   
Functional and presentation currency        
      
The �nancial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Company's functional and presentation 
currency.           
   

Summary of significant accounting policies        
      

The signi�cant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these �nancial statements are set out 
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 
            
Taxation           
   
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in statement of pro�t 
or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive 
income, in which case it is recognized in equity or other comprehensive income as the case may be.  
            
Current tax           
   
Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the 
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates 
or tax rates expected to apply to the pro�t for the year, if enacted after taking into account tax credits, 
rebates and exemptions, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered 
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necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year 
for such years. Where there is uncertainty in income tax accounting i.e. when it is not probable that the 
tax authorities will accept the treatment, the impact of the uncertainty is measured using either the most 
likely amount or the expected value method, depending on which method better predicts the resolution 
of the uncertainty. Such Judgements are reassessed whenever circumstances have changed or there is new 
information that affects the judgement. Where, at the assessment stage, the taxation authorities have 
adopted a different tax treatment and the Company considers that the most likely outcome will be in 
favor of the Company, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

Deferred tax           
   
Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising 
from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the �nancial statements and the 
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable pro�t. Deferred tax liabilities are general-
ly recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent 
that it is probable that future taxable pro�ts will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.      
        
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when 
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the statement of 
pro�t or loss, except in the case of items charged or credited to equity in which case it is included in the 
statement of changes in equity.         
     
Employees' retirement and other benefits        
      
The main features of the schemes operated by the Company for its employees are as follows:   
           
Defined benefit plans          
    
The supervisory and managerial staff with minimum �ve years of continuous service with the Company 
are entitled to participate in an approved funded gratuity scheme. The actual return on the plan assets was 
Rs 18.35 million (2019: Rs 19.98 million). The actual return on plan assets represent the difference 
between the fair value of plan assets at beginning and end of the year after adjustments for contributions 
made by the Company as reduced by bene�ts paid during the year.     
         
The latest actuarial valuation for the approved funded gratuity scheme was carried out as at December 
31, 2020. Projected Unit Credit Method, using the following signi�cant assumptions is used for valuation 
of the scheme:

            
        2020  2019

Discount rate per annum       9.75%  11.25%
Expected rate of increase in salary level per annum   8.75%  10.25%
Expected rate of return per annum     9.75%  11.25%
Average duration of the de�ned bene�t obligation   5 years  5 years

Basis of mortality rates used 
    
            
The Company is expected to contribute Rs 17.04 million to the gratuity fund for the year ending 
December 31, 2021.          
    
The Company operates an un-funded bene�t scheme (ex-gratia) for its unionized staff. Under the scheme, 
members who have completed prescribed years of service with the Company are entitled to receive 20 

days last drawn basic pay for each completed year of service. Provision has been made to cover the obliga-
tion on the basis of actuarial valuation. The amount recognized in the statement of �nancial position 
represents the present value of de�ned bene�t obligation adjusted for unrecognized actuarial gains and 
losses.

The latest actuarial valuation for the un-funded gratuity scheme (ex-gratia) was carried out as at 
December 31, 2020. Projected Unit Credit Method, using the following signi�cant assumptions is used for 
valuation of the scheme:

        2020  2019
            
Discount rate per annum       9.75%  11.25%
Expected rate of increase in salary level per annum   8.75%  10.25%
Expected rate of return per annum     9.75%  11.25%
Average duration of the de�ned bene�t obligation   2 years  2 years

Basis of mortality rates used

           
The Company provides for the expected cost of accumulated compensated absences, when the employee 
renders the service that increases the entitlement to future compensated absences. Provision has been 
made to cover the obligation on the basis of actuarial valuation and charged to statement of pro�t or loss. 
The amount recognized in the statement of �nancial position represents the present value of de�ned 
bene�t obligation. Actuarial gains/losses are recognized immediately under IAS 19 "Employee bene�ts" 
in statement of pro�t or loss. Projected unit credit method, using the following signi�cant assumptions, is 
used for valution of the scheme: 

The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at December 31, 2020. Projected Unit Credit Method, 
using the following signi�cant assumptions is used for valuation of the scheme:

            
        2020  2019
            
Discount rate per annum       9.75%  11.25%
Expected rate of increase in salary level per annum   8.75%  10.25%
Expected rate of return per annum     9.75%  11.25%
Average duration of the de�ned bene�t obligation   1 year  1 year

Basis of mortality rates used         
   
            
Defined contribution plans         
     
The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal monthly 
contributions are made by the Company and employees to the fund at the rate of 10% of basic salary. 
Retirement bene�ts are payable to staff on completion of prescribed qualifying period of service under 
these schemes.           
   
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.  
            
Property, plant and equipment         
     
Property, plant and equipment except freehold land and leasehold land with superstructure are stated at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and any identi�ed accumulated impairment loss. Freehold land 
leasehold land with superstructure is stated at cost less any identi�ed impairment loss. Cost in relation to 
Company's manufactured assets includes direct cost of materials, labour and applicable manufacturing 
overheads.           
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Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is charged to the statement of pro�t or loss using the 
straight line method so as to write off the depreciable amount of the assets over their estimated useful lives 
at the rates mentioned in note 17 after taking into account their residual values.     
          
The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each �nancial year end, and adjusted if impact 
on depreciation is signi�cant. The Company's estimate of the residual value and useful life of its operating 
�xed assets as at December 31, 2020 has not required any adjustment.     
         
Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which an asset 
is acquired or capitalized, while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed 
off or retired from active use         
     
An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.      
        
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appro-
priate, only when it is probable that future economic bene�ts associated with the item will �ow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are 
charged to statement of pro�t or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and 
equipment may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to 
assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts. Where carrying values exceed the 
respective recoverable amounts, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting 
impairment loss is recognized in income currently. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair 
value less costs to sell and value-in-use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge 
is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful 
life.            
  
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic 
bene�ts are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset repre-
sented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in 
the statement of pro�t or loss and other comprehensive income.      
        
Intangible assets           
   
An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic bene�ts that are attributable to the 
asset will �ow to the entity and that the cost of such an asset can also be measured reliably. Intangible 
assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any identi�ed accumulated impairment loss. 
            
Amortization is charged to statement of pro�t or loss on straight line basis so as to write off the cost of 
an asset over its estimated useful life. Amortization on additions is charged from the month in which an 
asset is acquired or capitalized while no amortization is charged for the month in which the asset is 
disposed off. Amortization is being charged at the annual rate of 33.33 %.    
          
Useful lives of intangible operating assets are reviewed, at each date of statement of �nancial position and 
adjusted if the impact of amortization is signi�cant.       
       
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that intangible assets may 
be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amount of such assets are reviewed to assess whether 
they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective 
recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment 
loss is recognized in income currently. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less 
cost to sell and value-in-use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the amortization charge is adjusted 
in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

Capital work in progress          
    
All expenditure connected with speci�c assets incurred during installation and construction period 
and/or in transit are carried under capital work in progress. These are transferred to speci�c assets as 
and when assets are available for use. Capital work in progress is stated at cost, less any identi�ed 
impairment loss.
            
Investment property          
    
Property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for both is classi�ed as investment property. 
The investment property of the Company comprises building and is valued using the cost method i.e. at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and identi�ed accumulated impairment loss.    
          
Depreciation on building is charged to statement of pro�t or loss on the straight line method so as to write 
off the depreciable amount of a building over its estimated useful life. Investment property is being depre-
ciated at an effective rate of 4.85% per annum. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in 
which an asset is acquired or capitalized while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset 
is disposed off.            
   
The Company assesses at each statement of �nancial position date whether there is any indication that 
investment property may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are 
reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values 
exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the 
resulting impairment loss is recognized in statement of pro�t or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher 
of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the 
depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over 
its estimated useful life.          
    
The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as income or expense.

Stores, spares and loose tools         
     
Stores, spares and loose tools are valued at the lower of moving weighted average cost and net realizable 
value. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus any other charges associated with 
buying the inventory for its intended use.        
      
Net realizable value signi�es the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated 
costs necessarily to be incurred to make the sale. Provision is made in the �nancial statements for obsolete 
and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools based on management's estimate.    
          
Stock-in-trade           
   
Stock of raw materials except for those in transit, work-in-process and �nished goods are valued princi-
pally at the lower of moving weighted average cost and net realizable value. Cost of work-in-process and 
�nished goods comprise cost of direct materials, labour and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Mate-
rials in transit are stated at cost comprising invoice value and other charges paid thereon.   
           
Net realizable value signi�es the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs neces-
sary to be incurred in order to make the sale.If the expected net realizable value is lower than the carrying 
amount, a write-down is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its net realiz-
able value. Provision is made in the �nancial statements for obsolete and slow moving stock in trade based 
on management's estimate.

            
  

Trade debts and other receivables         
     
Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is 
unconditional, unless they contain signi�cant �nancing component in which case such are recognised at 
fair value. The Company holds the trade debts with the objective of collecting the contractual cash 
�ows and therefore measures the trade debts subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method.           

Cash and cash equivalents         
     
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of �nancial position at cost. For the purposes of 
statement of cash �ows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, cheques in 
hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other short term highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insigni�cant risk of change in value 
and short term �nances.          
    
Borrowings           
   
Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subse-
quently stated at amortized cost, any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the 
redemption value is recognized in the statement of pro�t or loss over the period of the borrowings using 
the effective interest method. Finance costs are accounted for on an accrual basis and are reported under 
accrued �nance costs to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.     
         
Borrowings are classi�ed as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the statement of �nancial position date.  
            
Borrowing costs           

General and speci�c borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for 
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substan-
tially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of 
speci�c borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs 
eligible for capitalisation.          
    
Trade and other payables         
     
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course 
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classi�ed as current liabilities if payment is due within 
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as 
non-current liabilities.          
    
Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the 
consideration to be paid in the future for the goods and/or services received, whether or not billed to the 
Company.           
   
Provisions           
   
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events and it is probable that an out�ow of resources embodying economic bene�ts will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each 
reporting date and adjusted to re�ect the current best estimate.      
        
            
  

Financial instruments          
    
Financial assets           
   
In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9, the Company classi�es its �nancial assets at amortised 
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through pro�t or loss on the basis of 
the Company’s business model for managing the �nancial assets and the contractual cash �ow character-
istics of the �nancial asset. Management determines the classi�cation of its �nancial assets at the time of 
initial recognition.           
   
Financial assets at amortized cost         
     
Financial assets at amortised cost are held within a business model whose objective is to hold �nancial 
assets in order to collect contractual cash �ows and the contractual terms of the �nancial asset give rise 
on speci�ed dates to cash �ows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding. Interest income from these �nancial assets, impairment losses, foreign exchange 
gains and losses, and gain or loss arising on derecognition are recognised directly in statement of pro�t 
or loss.            

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income     
         
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model whose 
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash �ows and selling �nancial assets and the contrac-
tual terms of the �nancial asset give rise on speci�ed dates to cash �ows that are solely payments of princi-
pal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.       
       
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss       
       
Financial assets at fair value through pro�t or loss are those �nancial assets which are either designated 
in this category or not classi�ed in any of the other categories. A gain or loss on debt investment that is 
subsequently measured at fair value through pro�t or loss is recognised in statement of pro�t or loss in 
the period in which it arises.         
     
Financial assets are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given and 
received respectively. These �nancial assets and liabilities are subsequently remeasured to fair value, 
amortized cost or cost as the case may be. Any gain or loss on the recognition and de-recognition of the 
�nancial assets and liabilities is included in the statement of pro�t or loss for the period in which it arises. 
            
Equity instrument �nancial assets / mutual funds are measured at fair value at and subsequent to initial 
recognition. Changes in fair value of these �nancial assets are normally recognised in statement of pro�t 
or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in statement of pro�t or loss when the 
Company’s right to receive payment is established. Where an election is made to present fair value gains 
and losses on equity instruments in other comprehensive income there is no subsequent reclassi�cation of 
fair value gains and losses to statement of pro�t or loss following the derecognition of the investment.  
            
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash �ows from the assets have expired or 
have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. 
Assets or liabilities that are not contractual in nature and that are created as a result of statutory require-
ments imposed by the Government are not the �nancial instruments of the Company.   
           
Impairment of financial assets         
     
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its �nancial 
assets carried at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company 
computes historical loss rates using the historical credit losses which are then adjusted to re�ect current 
and forward looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle 

the receivables. For trade debts other than Government, the Company applied the simpli�ed approach, 
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. To 
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk 
characteristics and the days past due. The Company recognises in statement of pro�t or loss, as an impair-
ment gain or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss 
allowance at the reporting date. Impairment testing of trade debts relating to Government owned entities, 
the Company applied the incurred loss method in accordance with the requirements of IAS 39 ' Financial 
Instruments - Recognition and Measurement' based on exemption provided by SECP for application of 
IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' on trade debts relating to Government owned entities.   
           
Financial liabilities          
    
All �nancial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument.         
     
A �nancial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expired. Where an existing �nancial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modi�ed, such an exchange or modi-
�cation is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the 
difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of pro�t or loss.   
           
Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities      
        
Financial assets and �nancial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the �nancial 
statements only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the 
Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.           

Foreign currency transactions and translation       
       
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pakistan Rupees (functional and presentation currency) 
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. All monetary assets and liabilities in 
foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting 
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses on translation are recognised in the statement of pro�t or loss. 
All non-monetary items are translated into Pakistan Rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the date of 
transaction or on the date when fair values are determined.      
        
Revenue recognition          
    
Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when the Company satis�es performance 
obligations by transferring the promised goods or services to its customers. Revenue is measured at fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable excluding discounts allowed to customers. A contract 
liability is recorded for advances received from customers against which performance obligations have 
not been satis�ed.           
   
Revenue is earned from sale of products and provision of after market services. Revenue associated with 
such transactions is recognized at a point in time upon satisfaction of the performance obligation by 
transfer of control of goods or when services are rendered to the customers. Sales of products include 
industrial pumps, valves, castings and related parts.       
       
Revenue from projects is recognized over time using the input method to determine the stage of comple-
tion of the project and the appropriate amount of revenue to be recognized at each reporting date. The 
stage of completion is measured by reference to the project costs incurred up to the reporting date as a 
percentage of total estimated costs for each project. The resultant percentage is then applied to estimated 
revenue from each project to determine the accumulated revenue upto the reporting date.   
           

Project costs are recognized when incurred. When the outcome of a project cannot be estimated reliably, 
project revenue is recognized only to the extent of project costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. 
When the outcome of a project can be estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract will be pro�t-
able, project revenue is recognized over time. When it is probable that total project costs will exceed total 
project revenue, the expected loss is recognized as an expense immediately in statement of pro�t or loss. 
            
Where the consideration received or the unconditional right to receive the consideration is in excess of the 
amount of performance obligations satis�ed, the differential is recognized as "contract liabilities". In case 
the performance obligations are satis�ed before the consideration is received or the right to consideration 
is established, the Company recognizes either a contract asset or a receivable in its statement of �nancial 
position, depending on whether something other than the passage of time is required before the consider-
ation is due.           
   
The Company provides only standard-type warranties, accounted for under IAS 37. Extended-type 
warranties, which treated as separate performance obligations under IFRS 15, are not provided. When 
determining the nature of warranty-related promises, the Company considers:    
          
- whether the customer has the option to separately purchase the warranty; and    

- whether all or part of the warranty provides the customer with an additional service beyond the basic 
assurance that it will perform in accordance with published speci�cations.     
         
Return on bank deposits is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding, 
at the applicable rate of return.         
     
Leases            
  
Lessee Accounting          
    
At inception of a contract, the company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on 
whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identi�ed asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range 
of different terms and conditions. Leases having lease term of less than 12 months are accounted for as 
short-term leases and the expense charged to pro�t or loss on straight line basis over the lease term.  
            
The lessee at the commencement of lease term shall recognize right of use asset and a lease liability. The 
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readi-
ly determined, the company's incremental borrowing rate.      
        
Lease payments include �xed payments, variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, 
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a 
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, payments of penalties for termi-
nating the lease, if the lease term re�ects the lessee exercising that option, less any lease incentives receiv-
able. The extension and termination options are incorporated in determination of lease term only when 
the company is reasonably certain to exercise these options.      
        
The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. It 
is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in �xed lease 
payments or an index or rate, change in the company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable 
under a residual value guarantee, or if the company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a 
purchase, extension or termination option. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount 
of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in the statement of pro�t or loss if the carrying amount of 
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.        
      
The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for 

any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and 
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the 
site on which it is located, less any lease incentive received. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a 
straight-line method over the lease term as this method most closely re�ects the expected pattern of 
consumption of future economic bene�ts. The right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any, 
and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

Lessor Accounting          
    
Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in income on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are 
added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognized as expense over the lease term on 
the same basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the statement of �nancial 
position based on their nature.         
     
Contingencies and commitments          
     
Contingent liability is disclosed when:        
      
- there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be con�rmed only by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Company; or           
   
- there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an out�ow of resources 
embodying economic bene�ts will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured with suf�cient reliability.        
      
Dividend and other appropriations        
      
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which the 
dividends are declared and approved. Appropriations of pro�t are re�ected in the statement of changes in 
equity in the period in which such appropriations are approved.      
        
Government grants          
    
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that 
the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants 
relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the pro�t or loss over the period necessary to match them 
with the costs that they are intended to compensate. 
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Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is charged to the statement of pro�t or loss using the 
straight line method so as to write off the depreciable amount of the assets over their estimated useful lives 
at the rates mentioned in note 17 after taking into account their residual values.     
          
The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each �nancial year end, and adjusted if impact 
on depreciation is signi�cant. The Company's estimate of the residual value and useful life of its operating 
�xed assets as at December 31, 2020 has not required any adjustment.     
         
Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which an asset 
is acquired or capitalized, while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed 
off or retired from active use         
     
An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.      
        
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appro-
priate, only when it is probable that future economic bene�ts associated with the item will �ow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are 
charged to statement of pro�t or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and 
equipment may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to 
assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts. Where carrying values exceed the 
respective recoverable amounts, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting 
impairment loss is recognized in income currently. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair 
value less costs to sell and value-in-use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge 
is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful 
life.            
  
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic 
bene�ts are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset repre-
sented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in 
the statement of pro�t or loss and other comprehensive income.      
        
Intangible assets           
   
An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic bene�ts that are attributable to the 
asset will �ow to the entity and that the cost of such an asset can also be measured reliably. Intangible 
assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any identi�ed accumulated impairment loss. 
            
Amortization is charged to statement of pro�t or loss on straight line basis so as to write off the cost of 
an asset over its estimated useful life. Amortization on additions is charged from the month in which an 
asset is acquired or capitalized while no amortization is charged for the month in which the asset is 
disposed off. Amortization is being charged at the annual rate of 33.33 %.    
          
Useful lives of intangible operating assets are reviewed, at each date of statement of �nancial position and 
adjusted if the impact of amortization is signi�cant.       
       
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that intangible assets may 
be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amount of such assets are reviewed to assess whether 
they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective 
recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment 
loss is recognized in income currently. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less 
cost to sell and value-in-use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the amortization charge is adjusted 
in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

Capital work in progress          
    
All expenditure connected with speci�c assets incurred during installation and construction period 
and/or in transit are carried under capital work in progress. These are transferred to speci�c assets as 
and when assets are available for use. Capital work in progress is stated at cost, less any identi�ed 
impairment loss.
            
Investment property          
    
Property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for both is classi�ed as investment property. 
The investment property of the Company comprises building and is valued using the cost method i.e. at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and identi�ed accumulated impairment loss.    
          
Depreciation on building is charged to statement of pro�t or loss on the straight line method so as to write 
off the depreciable amount of a building over its estimated useful life. Investment property is being depre-
ciated at an effective rate of 4.85% per annum. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in 
which an asset is acquired or capitalized while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset 
is disposed off.            
   
The Company assesses at each statement of �nancial position date whether there is any indication that 
investment property may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are 
reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values 
exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the 
resulting impairment loss is recognized in statement of pro�t or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher 
of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the 
depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over 
its estimated useful life.          
    
The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as income or expense.

Stores, spares and loose tools         
     
Stores, spares and loose tools are valued at the lower of moving weighted average cost and net realizable 
value. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus any other charges associated with 
buying the inventory for its intended use.        
      
Net realizable value signi�es the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated 
costs necessarily to be incurred to make the sale. Provision is made in the �nancial statements for obsolete 
and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools based on management's estimate.    
          
Stock-in-trade           
   
Stock of raw materials except for those in transit, work-in-process and �nished goods are valued princi-
pally at the lower of moving weighted average cost and net realizable value. Cost of work-in-process and 
�nished goods comprise cost of direct materials, labour and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Mate-
rials in transit are stated at cost comprising invoice value and other charges paid thereon.   
           
Net realizable value signi�es the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs neces-
sary to be incurred in order to make the sale.If the expected net realizable value is lower than the carrying 
amount, a write-down is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its net realiz-
able value. Provision is made in the �nancial statements for obsolete and slow moving stock in trade based 
on management's estimate.

            
  

Trade debts and other receivables         
     
Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is 
unconditional, unless they contain signi�cant �nancing component in which case such are recognised at 
fair value. The Company holds the trade debts with the objective of collecting the contractual cash 
�ows and therefore measures the trade debts subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method.           

Cash and cash equivalents         
     
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of �nancial position at cost. For the purposes of 
statement of cash �ows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, cheques in 
hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other short term highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insigni�cant risk of change in value 
and short term �nances.          
    
Borrowings           
   
Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subse-
quently stated at amortized cost, any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the 
redemption value is recognized in the statement of pro�t or loss over the period of the borrowings using 
the effective interest method. Finance costs are accounted for on an accrual basis and are reported under 
accrued �nance costs to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.     
         
Borrowings are classi�ed as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the statement of �nancial position date.  
            
Borrowing costs           

General and speci�c borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for 
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substan-
tially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of 
speci�c borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs 
eligible for capitalisation.          
    
Trade and other payables         
     
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course 
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classi�ed as current liabilities if payment is due within 
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as 
non-current liabilities.          
    
Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the 
consideration to be paid in the future for the goods and/or services received, whether or not billed to the 
Company.           
   
Provisions           
   
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events and it is probable that an out�ow of resources embodying economic bene�ts will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each 
reporting date and adjusted to re�ect the current best estimate.      
        
            
  

Financial instruments          
    
Financial assets           
   
In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9, the Company classi�es its �nancial assets at amortised 
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through pro�t or loss on the basis of 
the Company’s business model for managing the �nancial assets and the contractual cash �ow character-
istics of the �nancial asset. Management determines the classi�cation of its �nancial assets at the time of 
initial recognition.           
   
Financial assets at amortized cost         
     
Financial assets at amortised cost are held within a business model whose objective is to hold �nancial 
assets in order to collect contractual cash �ows and the contractual terms of the �nancial asset give rise 
on speci�ed dates to cash �ows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding. Interest income from these �nancial assets, impairment losses, foreign exchange 
gains and losses, and gain or loss arising on derecognition are recognised directly in statement of pro�t 
or loss.            

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income     
         
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model whose 
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash �ows and selling �nancial assets and the contrac-
tual terms of the �nancial asset give rise on speci�ed dates to cash �ows that are solely payments of princi-
pal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.       
       
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss       
       
Financial assets at fair value through pro�t or loss are those �nancial assets which are either designated 
in this category or not classi�ed in any of the other categories. A gain or loss on debt investment that is 
subsequently measured at fair value through pro�t or loss is recognised in statement of pro�t or loss in 
the period in which it arises.         
     
Financial assets are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given and 
received respectively. These �nancial assets and liabilities are subsequently remeasured to fair value, 
amortized cost or cost as the case may be. Any gain or loss on the recognition and de-recognition of the 
�nancial assets and liabilities is included in the statement of pro�t or loss for the period in which it arises. 
            
Equity instrument �nancial assets / mutual funds are measured at fair value at and subsequent to initial 
recognition. Changes in fair value of these �nancial assets are normally recognised in statement of pro�t 
or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in statement of pro�t or loss when the 
Company’s right to receive payment is established. Where an election is made to present fair value gains 
and losses on equity instruments in other comprehensive income there is no subsequent reclassi�cation of 
fair value gains and losses to statement of pro�t or loss following the derecognition of the investment.  
            
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash �ows from the assets have expired or 
have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. 
Assets or liabilities that are not contractual in nature and that are created as a result of statutory require-
ments imposed by the Government are not the �nancial instruments of the Company.   
           
Impairment of financial assets         
     
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its �nancial 
assets carried at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company 
computes historical loss rates using the historical credit losses which are then adjusted to re�ect current 
and forward looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle 

the receivables. For trade debts other than Government, the Company applied the simpli�ed approach, 
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. To 
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk 
characteristics and the days past due. The Company recognises in statement of pro�t or loss, as an impair-
ment gain or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss 
allowance at the reporting date. Impairment testing of trade debts relating to Government owned entities, 
the Company applied the incurred loss method in accordance with the requirements of IAS 39 ' Financial 
Instruments - Recognition and Measurement' based on exemption provided by SECP for application of 
IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' on trade debts relating to Government owned entities.   
           
Financial liabilities          
    
All �nancial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument.         
     
A �nancial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expired. Where an existing �nancial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modi�ed, such an exchange or modi-
�cation is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the 
difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of pro�t or loss.   
           
Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities      
        
Financial assets and �nancial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the �nancial 
statements only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the 
Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.           

Foreign currency transactions and translation       
       
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pakistan Rupees (functional and presentation currency) 
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. All monetary assets and liabilities in 
foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting 
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses on translation are recognised in the statement of pro�t or loss. 
All non-monetary items are translated into Pakistan Rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the date of 
transaction or on the date when fair values are determined.      
        
Revenue recognition          
    
Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when the Company satis�es performance 
obligations by transferring the promised goods or services to its customers. Revenue is measured at fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable excluding discounts allowed to customers. A contract 
liability is recorded for advances received from customers against which performance obligations have 
not been satis�ed.           
   
Revenue is earned from sale of products and provision of after market services. Revenue associated with 
such transactions is recognized at a point in time upon satisfaction of the performance obligation by 
transfer of control of goods or when services are rendered to the customers. Sales of products include 
industrial pumps, valves, castings and related parts.       
       
Revenue from projects is recognized over time using the input method to determine the stage of comple-
tion of the project and the appropriate amount of revenue to be recognized at each reporting date. The 
stage of completion is measured by reference to the project costs incurred up to the reporting date as a 
percentage of total estimated costs for each project. The resultant percentage is then applied to estimated 
revenue from each project to determine the accumulated revenue upto the reporting date.   
           

Project costs are recognized when incurred. When the outcome of a project cannot be estimated reliably, 
project revenue is recognized only to the extent of project costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. 
When the outcome of a project can be estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract will be pro�t-
able, project revenue is recognized over time. When it is probable that total project costs will exceed total 
project revenue, the expected loss is recognized as an expense immediately in statement of pro�t or loss. 
            
Where the consideration received or the unconditional right to receive the consideration is in excess of the 
amount of performance obligations satis�ed, the differential is recognized as "contract liabilities". In case 
the performance obligations are satis�ed before the consideration is received or the right to consideration 
is established, the Company recognizes either a contract asset or a receivable in its statement of �nancial 
position, depending on whether something other than the passage of time is required before the consider-
ation is due.           
   
The Company provides only standard-type warranties, accounted for under IAS 37. Extended-type 
warranties, which treated as separate performance obligations under IFRS 15, are not provided. When 
determining the nature of warranty-related promises, the Company considers:    
          
- whether the customer has the option to separately purchase the warranty; and    

- whether all or part of the warranty provides the customer with an additional service beyond the basic 
assurance that it will perform in accordance with published speci�cations.     
         
Return on bank deposits is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding, 
at the applicable rate of return.         
     
Leases            
  
Lessee Accounting          
    
At inception of a contract, the company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on 
whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identi�ed asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range 
of different terms and conditions. Leases having lease term of less than 12 months are accounted for as 
short-term leases and the expense charged to pro�t or loss on straight line basis over the lease term.  
            
The lessee at the commencement of lease term shall recognize right of use asset and a lease liability. The 
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readi-
ly determined, the company's incremental borrowing rate.      
        
Lease payments include �xed payments, variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, 
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a 
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, payments of penalties for termi-
nating the lease, if the lease term re�ects the lessee exercising that option, less any lease incentives receiv-
able. The extension and termination options are incorporated in determination of lease term only when 
the company is reasonably certain to exercise these options.      
        
The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. It 
is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in �xed lease 
payments or an index or rate, change in the company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable 
under a residual value guarantee, or if the company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a 
purchase, extension or termination option. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount 
of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in the statement of pro�t or loss if the carrying amount of 
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.        
      
The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for 

any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and 
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the 
site on which it is located, less any lease incentive received. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a 
straight-line method over the lease term as this method most closely re�ects the expected pattern of 
consumption of future economic bene�ts. The right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any, 
and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

Lessor Accounting          
    
Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in income on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are 
added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognized as expense over the lease term on 
the same basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the statement of �nancial 
position based on their nature.         
     
Contingencies and commitments          
     
Contingent liability is disclosed when:        
      
- there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be con�rmed only by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Company; or           
   
- there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an out�ow of resources 
embodying economic bene�ts will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured with suf�cient reliability.        
      
Dividend and other appropriations        
      
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which the 
dividends are declared and approved. Appropriations of pro�t are re�ected in the statement of changes in 
equity in the period in which such appropriations are approved.      
        
Government grants          
    
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that 
the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants 
relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the pro�t or loss over the period necessary to match them 
with the costs that they are intended to compensate. 
            
  
             
  
      
            
  
             
  
      



Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is charged to the statement of pro�t or loss using the 
straight line method so as to write off the depreciable amount of the assets over their estimated useful lives 
at the rates mentioned in note 17 after taking into account their residual values.     
          
The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each �nancial year end, and adjusted if impact 
on depreciation is signi�cant. The Company's estimate of the residual value and useful life of its operating 
�xed assets as at December 31, 2020 has not required any adjustment.     
         
Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which an asset 
is acquired or capitalized, while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed 
off or retired from active use         
     
An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.      
        
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appro-
priate, only when it is probable that future economic bene�ts associated with the item will �ow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are 
charged to statement of pro�t or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and 
equipment may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to 
assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts. Where carrying values exceed the 
respective recoverable amounts, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting 
impairment loss is recognized in income currently. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair 
value less costs to sell and value-in-use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge 
is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful 
life.            
  
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic 
bene�ts are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset repre-
sented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in 
the statement of pro�t or loss and other comprehensive income.      
        
Intangible assets           
   
An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic bene�ts that are attributable to the 
asset will �ow to the entity and that the cost of such an asset can also be measured reliably. Intangible 
assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any identi�ed accumulated impairment loss. 
            
Amortization is charged to statement of pro�t or loss on straight line basis so as to write off the cost of 
an asset over its estimated useful life. Amortization on additions is charged from the month in which an 
asset is acquired or capitalized while no amortization is charged for the month in which the asset is 
disposed off. Amortization is being charged at the annual rate of 33.33 %.    
          
Useful lives of intangible operating assets are reviewed, at each date of statement of �nancial position and 
adjusted if the impact of amortization is signi�cant.       
       
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that intangible assets may 
be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amount of such assets are reviewed to assess whether 
they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective 
recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment 
loss is recognized in income currently. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less 
cost to sell and value-in-use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the amortization charge is adjusted 
in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

Capital work in progress          
    
All expenditure connected with speci�c assets incurred during installation and construction period 
and/or in transit are carried under capital work in progress. These are transferred to speci�c assets as 
and when assets are available for use. Capital work in progress is stated at cost, less any identi�ed 
impairment loss.
            
Investment property          
    
Property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for both is classi�ed as investment property. 
The investment property of the Company comprises building and is valued using the cost method i.e. at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and identi�ed accumulated impairment loss.    
          
Depreciation on building is charged to statement of pro�t or loss on the straight line method so as to write 
off the depreciable amount of a building over its estimated useful life. Investment property is being depre-
ciated at an effective rate of 4.85% per annum. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in 
which an asset is acquired or capitalized while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset 
is disposed off.            
   
The Company assesses at each statement of �nancial position date whether there is any indication that 
investment property may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are 
reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values 
exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the 
resulting impairment loss is recognized in statement of pro�t or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher 
of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the 
depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over 
its estimated useful life.          
    
The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as income or expense.

Stores, spares and loose tools         
     
Stores, spares and loose tools are valued at the lower of moving weighted average cost and net realizable 
value. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus any other charges associated with 
buying the inventory for its intended use.        
      
Net realizable value signi�es the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated 
costs necessarily to be incurred to make the sale. Provision is made in the �nancial statements for obsolete 
and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools based on management's estimate.    
          
Stock-in-trade           
   
Stock of raw materials except for those in transit, work-in-process and �nished goods are valued princi-
pally at the lower of moving weighted average cost and net realizable value. Cost of work-in-process and 
�nished goods comprise cost of direct materials, labour and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Mate-
rials in transit are stated at cost comprising invoice value and other charges paid thereon.   
           
Net realizable value signi�es the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs neces-
sary to be incurred in order to make the sale.If the expected net realizable value is lower than the carrying 
amount, a write-down is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its net realiz-
able value. Provision is made in the �nancial statements for obsolete and slow moving stock in trade based 
on management's estimate.
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Trade debts and other receivables         
     
Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is 
unconditional, unless they contain signi�cant �nancing component in which case such are recognised at 
fair value. The Company holds the trade debts with the objective of collecting the contractual cash 
�ows and therefore measures the trade debts subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method.           

Cash and cash equivalents         
     
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of �nancial position at cost. For the purposes of 
statement of cash �ows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, cheques in 
hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other short term highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insigni�cant risk of change in value 
and short term �nances.          
    
Borrowings           
   
Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subse-
quently stated at amortized cost, any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the 
redemption value is recognized in the statement of pro�t or loss over the period of the borrowings using 
the effective interest method. Finance costs are accounted for on an accrual basis and are reported under 
accrued �nance costs to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.     
         
Borrowings are classi�ed as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the statement of �nancial position date.  
            
Borrowing costs           

General and speci�c borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for 
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substan-
tially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of 
speci�c borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs 
eligible for capitalisation.          
    
Trade and other payables         
     
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course 
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classi�ed as current liabilities if payment is due within 
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as 
non-current liabilities.          
    
Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the 
consideration to be paid in the future for the goods and/or services received, whether or not billed to the 
Company.           
   
Provisions           
   
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events and it is probable that an out�ow of resources embodying economic bene�ts will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each 
reporting date and adjusted to re�ect the current best estimate.      
        
            
  

Financial instruments          
    
Financial assets           
   
In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9, the Company classi�es its �nancial assets at amortised 
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through pro�t or loss on the basis of 
the Company’s business model for managing the �nancial assets and the contractual cash �ow character-
istics of the �nancial asset. Management determines the classi�cation of its �nancial assets at the time of 
initial recognition.           
   
Financial assets at amortized cost         
     
Financial assets at amortised cost are held within a business model whose objective is to hold �nancial 
assets in order to collect contractual cash �ows and the contractual terms of the �nancial asset give rise 
on speci�ed dates to cash �ows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding. Interest income from these �nancial assets, impairment losses, foreign exchange 
gains and losses, and gain or loss arising on derecognition are recognised directly in statement of pro�t 
or loss.            

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income     
         
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model whose 
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash �ows and selling �nancial assets and the contrac-
tual terms of the �nancial asset give rise on speci�ed dates to cash �ows that are solely payments of princi-
pal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.       
       
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss       
       
Financial assets at fair value through pro�t or loss are those �nancial assets which are either designated 
in this category or not classi�ed in any of the other categories. A gain or loss on debt investment that is 
subsequently measured at fair value through pro�t or loss is recognised in statement of pro�t or loss in 
the period in which it arises.         
     
Financial assets are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given and 
received respectively. These �nancial assets and liabilities are subsequently remeasured to fair value, 
amortized cost or cost as the case may be. Any gain or loss on the recognition and de-recognition of the 
�nancial assets and liabilities is included in the statement of pro�t or loss for the period in which it arises. 
            
Equity instrument �nancial assets / mutual funds are measured at fair value at and subsequent to initial 
recognition. Changes in fair value of these �nancial assets are normally recognised in statement of pro�t 
or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in statement of pro�t or loss when the 
Company’s right to receive payment is established. Where an election is made to present fair value gains 
and losses on equity instruments in other comprehensive income there is no subsequent reclassi�cation of 
fair value gains and losses to statement of pro�t or loss following the derecognition of the investment.  
            
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash �ows from the assets have expired or 
have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. 
Assets or liabilities that are not contractual in nature and that are created as a result of statutory require-
ments imposed by the Government are not the �nancial instruments of the Company.   
           
Impairment of financial assets         
     
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its �nancial 
assets carried at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company 
computes historical loss rates using the historical credit losses which are then adjusted to re�ect current 
and forward looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle 

the receivables. For trade debts other than Government, the Company applied the simpli�ed approach, 
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. To 
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk 
characteristics and the days past due. The Company recognises in statement of pro�t or loss, as an impair-
ment gain or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss 
allowance at the reporting date. Impairment testing of trade debts relating to Government owned entities, 
the Company applied the incurred loss method in accordance with the requirements of IAS 39 ' Financial 
Instruments - Recognition and Measurement' based on exemption provided by SECP for application of 
IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' on trade debts relating to Government owned entities.   
           
Financial liabilities          
    
All �nancial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument.         
     
A �nancial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expired. Where an existing �nancial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modi�ed, such an exchange or modi-
�cation is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the 
difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of pro�t or loss.   
           
Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities      
        
Financial assets and �nancial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the �nancial 
statements only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the 
Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.           

Foreign currency transactions and translation       
       
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pakistan Rupees (functional and presentation currency) 
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. All monetary assets and liabilities in 
foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting 
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses on translation are recognised in the statement of pro�t or loss. 
All non-monetary items are translated into Pakistan Rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the date of 
transaction or on the date when fair values are determined.      
        
Revenue recognition          
    
Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when the Company satis�es performance 
obligations by transferring the promised goods or services to its customers. Revenue is measured at fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable excluding discounts allowed to customers. A contract 
liability is recorded for advances received from customers against which performance obligations have 
not been satis�ed.           
   
Revenue is earned from sale of products and provision of after market services. Revenue associated with 
such transactions is recognized at a point in time upon satisfaction of the performance obligation by 
transfer of control of goods or when services are rendered to the customers. Sales of products include 
industrial pumps, valves, castings and related parts.       
       
Revenue from projects is recognized over time using the input method to determine the stage of comple-
tion of the project and the appropriate amount of revenue to be recognized at each reporting date. The 
stage of completion is measured by reference to the project costs incurred up to the reporting date as a 
percentage of total estimated costs for each project. The resultant percentage is then applied to estimated 
revenue from each project to determine the accumulated revenue upto the reporting date.   
           

Project costs are recognized when incurred. When the outcome of a project cannot be estimated reliably, 
project revenue is recognized only to the extent of project costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. 
When the outcome of a project can be estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract will be pro�t-
able, project revenue is recognized over time. When it is probable that total project costs will exceed total 
project revenue, the expected loss is recognized as an expense immediately in statement of pro�t or loss. 
            
Where the consideration received or the unconditional right to receive the consideration is in excess of the 
amount of performance obligations satis�ed, the differential is recognized as "contract liabilities". In case 
the performance obligations are satis�ed before the consideration is received or the right to consideration 
is established, the Company recognizes either a contract asset or a receivable in its statement of �nancial 
position, depending on whether something other than the passage of time is required before the consider-
ation is due.           
   
The Company provides only standard-type warranties, accounted for under IAS 37. Extended-type 
warranties, which treated as separate performance obligations under IFRS 15, are not provided. When 
determining the nature of warranty-related promises, the Company considers:    
          
- whether the customer has the option to separately purchase the warranty; and    

- whether all or part of the warranty provides the customer with an additional service beyond the basic 
assurance that it will perform in accordance with published speci�cations.     
         
Return on bank deposits is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding, 
at the applicable rate of return.         
     
Leases            
  
Lessee Accounting          
    
At inception of a contract, the company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on 
whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identi�ed asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range 
of different terms and conditions. Leases having lease term of less than 12 months are accounted for as 
short-term leases and the expense charged to pro�t or loss on straight line basis over the lease term.  
            
The lessee at the commencement of lease term shall recognize right of use asset and a lease liability. The 
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readi-
ly determined, the company's incremental borrowing rate.      
        
Lease payments include �xed payments, variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, 
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a 
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, payments of penalties for termi-
nating the lease, if the lease term re�ects the lessee exercising that option, less any lease incentives receiv-
able. The extension and termination options are incorporated in determination of lease term only when 
the company is reasonably certain to exercise these options.      
        
The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. It 
is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in �xed lease 
payments or an index or rate, change in the company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable 
under a residual value guarantee, or if the company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a 
purchase, extension or termination option. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount 
of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in the statement of pro�t or loss if the carrying amount of 
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.        
      
The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for 

any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and 
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the 
site on which it is located, less any lease incentive received. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a 
straight-line method over the lease term as this method most closely re�ects the expected pattern of 
consumption of future economic bene�ts. The right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any, 
and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

Lessor Accounting          
    
Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in income on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are 
added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognized as expense over the lease term on 
the same basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the statement of �nancial 
position based on their nature.         
     
Contingencies and commitments          
     
Contingent liability is disclosed when:        
      
- there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be con�rmed only by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Company; or           
   
- there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an out�ow of resources 
embodying economic bene�ts will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured with suf�cient reliability.        
      
Dividend and other appropriations        
      
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which the 
dividends are declared and approved. Appropriations of pro�t are re�ected in the statement of changes in 
equity in the period in which such appropriations are approved.      
        
Government grants          
    
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that 
the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants 
relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the pro�t or loss over the period necessary to match them 
with the costs that they are intended to compensate. 
            
  
             
  
      
            
  
             
  
      

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14



Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is charged to the statement of pro�t or loss using the 
straight line method so as to write off the depreciable amount of the assets over their estimated useful lives 
at the rates mentioned in note 17 after taking into account their residual values.     
          
The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each �nancial year end, and adjusted if impact 
on depreciation is signi�cant. The Company's estimate of the residual value and useful life of its operating 
�xed assets as at December 31, 2020 has not required any adjustment.     
         
Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which an asset 
is acquired or capitalized, while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed 
off or retired from active use         
     
An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.      
        
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appro-
priate, only when it is probable that future economic bene�ts associated with the item will �ow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are 
charged to statement of pro�t or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and 
equipment may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to 
assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts. Where carrying values exceed the 
respective recoverable amounts, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting 
impairment loss is recognized in income currently. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair 
value less costs to sell and value-in-use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge 
is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful 
life.            
  
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic 
bene�ts are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset repre-
sented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in 
the statement of pro�t or loss and other comprehensive income.      
        
Intangible assets           
   
An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic bene�ts that are attributable to the 
asset will �ow to the entity and that the cost of such an asset can also be measured reliably. Intangible 
assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any identi�ed accumulated impairment loss. 
            
Amortization is charged to statement of pro�t or loss on straight line basis so as to write off the cost of 
an asset over its estimated useful life. Amortization on additions is charged from the month in which an 
asset is acquired or capitalized while no amortization is charged for the month in which the asset is 
disposed off. Amortization is being charged at the annual rate of 33.33 %.    
          
Useful lives of intangible operating assets are reviewed, at each date of statement of �nancial position and 
adjusted if the impact of amortization is signi�cant.       
       
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that intangible assets may 
be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amount of such assets are reviewed to assess whether 
they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective 
recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment 
loss is recognized in income currently. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less 
cost to sell and value-in-use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the amortization charge is adjusted 
in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

Capital work in progress          
    
All expenditure connected with speci�c assets incurred during installation and construction period 
and/or in transit are carried under capital work in progress. These are transferred to speci�c assets as 
and when assets are available for use. Capital work in progress is stated at cost, less any identi�ed 
impairment loss.
            
Investment property          
    
Property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for both is classi�ed as investment property. 
The investment property of the Company comprises building and is valued using the cost method i.e. at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and identi�ed accumulated impairment loss.    
          
Depreciation on building is charged to statement of pro�t or loss on the straight line method so as to write 
off the depreciable amount of a building over its estimated useful life. Investment property is being depre-
ciated at an effective rate of 4.85% per annum. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in 
which an asset is acquired or capitalized while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset 
is disposed off.            
   
The Company assesses at each statement of �nancial position date whether there is any indication that 
investment property may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are 
reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values 
exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the 
resulting impairment loss is recognized in statement of pro�t or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher 
of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the 
depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over 
its estimated useful life.          
    
The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as income or expense.

Stores, spares and loose tools         
     
Stores, spares and loose tools are valued at the lower of moving weighted average cost and net realizable 
value. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus any other charges associated with 
buying the inventory for its intended use.        
      
Net realizable value signi�es the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated 
costs necessarily to be incurred to make the sale. Provision is made in the �nancial statements for obsolete 
and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools based on management's estimate.    
          
Stock-in-trade           
   
Stock of raw materials except for those in transit, work-in-process and �nished goods are valued princi-
pally at the lower of moving weighted average cost and net realizable value. Cost of work-in-process and 
�nished goods comprise cost of direct materials, labour and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Mate-
rials in transit are stated at cost comprising invoice value and other charges paid thereon.   
           
Net realizable value signi�es the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs neces-
sary to be incurred in order to make the sale.If the expected net realizable value is lower than the carrying 
amount, a write-down is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its net realiz-
able value. Provision is made in the �nancial statements for obsolete and slow moving stock in trade based 
on management's estimate.
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Trade debts and other receivables         
     
Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is 
unconditional, unless they contain signi�cant �nancing component in which case such are recognised at 
fair value. The Company holds the trade debts with the objective of collecting the contractual cash 
�ows and therefore measures the trade debts subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method.           

Cash and cash equivalents         
     
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of �nancial position at cost. For the purposes of 
statement of cash �ows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, cheques in 
hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other short term highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insigni�cant risk of change in value 
and short term �nances.          
    
Borrowings           
   
Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subse-
quently stated at amortized cost, any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the 
redemption value is recognized in the statement of pro�t or loss over the period of the borrowings using 
the effective interest method. Finance costs are accounted for on an accrual basis and are reported under 
accrued �nance costs to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.     
         
Borrowings are classi�ed as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the statement of �nancial position date.  
            
Borrowing costs           

General and speci�c borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for 
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substan-
tially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of 
speci�c borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs 
eligible for capitalisation.          
    
Trade and other payables         
     
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course 
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classi�ed as current liabilities if payment is due within 
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as 
non-current liabilities.          
    
Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the 
consideration to be paid in the future for the goods and/or services received, whether or not billed to the 
Company.           
   
Provisions           
   
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events and it is probable that an out�ow of resources embodying economic bene�ts will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each 
reporting date and adjusted to re�ect the current best estimate.      
        
            
  

Financial instruments          
    
Financial assets           
   
In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9, the Company classi�es its �nancial assets at amortised 
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through pro�t or loss on the basis of 
the Company’s business model for managing the �nancial assets and the contractual cash �ow character-
istics of the �nancial asset. Management determines the classi�cation of its �nancial assets at the time of 
initial recognition.           
   
Financial assets at amortized cost         
     
Financial assets at amortised cost are held within a business model whose objective is to hold �nancial 
assets in order to collect contractual cash �ows and the contractual terms of the �nancial asset give rise 
on speci�ed dates to cash �ows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding. Interest income from these �nancial assets, impairment losses, foreign exchange 
gains and losses, and gain or loss arising on derecognition are recognised directly in statement of pro�t 
or loss.            

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income     
         
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model whose 
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash �ows and selling �nancial assets and the contrac-
tual terms of the �nancial asset give rise on speci�ed dates to cash �ows that are solely payments of princi-
pal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.       
       
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss       
       
Financial assets at fair value through pro�t or loss are those �nancial assets which are either designated 
in this category or not classi�ed in any of the other categories. A gain or loss on debt investment that is 
subsequently measured at fair value through pro�t or loss is recognised in statement of pro�t or loss in 
the period in which it arises.         
     
Financial assets are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given and 
received respectively. These �nancial assets and liabilities are subsequently remeasured to fair value, 
amortized cost or cost as the case may be. Any gain or loss on the recognition and de-recognition of the 
�nancial assets and liabilities is included in the statement of pro�t or loss for the period in which it arises. 
            
Equity instrument �nancial assets / mutual funds are measured at fair value at and subsequent to initial 
recognition. Changes in fair value of these �nancial assets are normally recognised in statement of pro�t 
or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in statement of pro�t or loss when the 
Company’s right to receive payment is established. Where an election is made to present fair value gains 
and losses on equity instruments in other comprehensive income there is no subsequent reclassi�cation of 
fair value gains and losses to statement of pro�t or loss following the derecognition of the investment.  
            
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash �ows from the assets have expired or 
have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. 
Assets or liabilities that are not contractual in nature and that are created as a result of statutory require-
ments imposed by the Government are not the �nancial instruments of the Company.   
           
Impairment of financial assets         
     
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its �nancial 
assets carried at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company 
computes historical loss rates using the historical credit losses which are then adjusted to re�ect current 
and forward looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle 

the receivables. For trade debts other than Government, the Company applied the simpli�ed approach, 
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. To 
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk 
characteristics and the days past due. The Company recognises in statement of pro�t or loss, as an impair-
ment gain or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss 
allowance at the reporting date. Impairment testing of trade debts relating to Government owned entities, 
the Company applied the incurred loss method in accordance with the requirements of IAS 39 ' Financial 
Instruments - Recognition and Measurement' based on exemption provided by SECP for application of 
IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' on trade debts relating to Government owned entities.   
           
Financial liabilities          
    
All �nancial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument.         
     
A �nancial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expired. Where an existing �nancial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modi�ed, such an exchange or modi-
�cation is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the 
difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of pro�t or loss.   
           
Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities      
        
Financial assets and �nancial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the �nancial 
statements only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the 
Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.           

Foreign currency transactions and translation       
       
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pakistan Rupees (functional and presentation currency) 
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. All monetary assets and liabilities in 
foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting 
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses on translation are recognised in the statement of pro�t or loss. 
All non-monetary items are translated into Pakistan Rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the date of 
transaction or on the date when fair values are determined.      
        
Revenue recognition          
    
Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when the Company satis�es performance 
obligations by transferring the promised goods or services to its customers. Revenue is measured at fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable excluding discounts allowed to customers. A contract 
liability is recorded for advances received from customers against which performance obligations have 
not been satis�ed.           
   
Revenue is earned from sale of products and provision of after market services. Revenue associated with 
such transactions is recognized at a point in time upon satisfaction of the performance obligation by 
transfer of control of goods or when services are rendered to the customers. Sales of products include 
industrial pumps, valves, castings and related parts.       
       
Revenue from projects is recognized over time using the input method to determine the stage of comple-
tion of the project and the appropriate amount of revenue to be recognized at each reporting date. The 
stage of completion is measured by reference to the project costs incurred up to the reporting date as a 
percentage of total estimated costs for each project. The resultant percentage is then applied to estimated 
revenue from each project to determine the accumulated revenue upto the reporting date.   
           

Project costs are recognized when incurred. When the outcome of a project cannot be estimated reliably, 
project revenue is recognized only to the extent of project costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. 
When the outcome of a project can be estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract will be pro�t-
able, project revenue is recognized over time. When it is probable that total project costs will exceed total 
project revenue, the expected loss is recognized as an expense immediately in statement of pro�t or loss. 
            
Where the consideration received or the unconditional right to receive the consideration is in excess of the 
amount of performance obligations satis�ed, the differential is recognized as "contract liabilities". In case 
the performance obligations are satis�ed before the consideration is received or the right to consideration 
is established, the Company recognizes either a contract asset or a receivable in its statement of �nancial 
position, depending on whether something other than the passage of time is required before the consider-
ation is due.           
   
The Company provides only standard-type warranties, accounted for under IAS 37. Extended-type 
warranties, which treated as separate performance obligations under IFRS 15, are not provided. When 
determining the nature of warranty-related promises, the Company considers:    
          
- whether the customer has the option to separately purchase the warranty; and    

- whether all or part of the warranty provides the customer with an additional service beyond the basic 
assurance that it will perform in accordance with published speci�cations.     
         
Return on bank deposits is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding, 
at the applicable rate of return.         
     
Leases            
  
Lessee Accounting          
    
At inception of a contract, the company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on 
whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identi�ed asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range 
of different terms and conditions. Leases having lease term of less than 12 months are accounted for as 
short-term leases and the expense charged to pro�t or loss on straight line basis over the lease term.  
            
The lessee at the commencement of lease term shall recognize right of use asset and a lease liability. The 
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readi-
ly determined, the company's incremental borrowing rate.      
        
Lease payments include �xed payments, variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, 
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a 
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, payments of penalties for termi-
nating the lease, if the lease term re�ects the lessee exercising that option, less any lease incentives receiv-
able. The extension and termination options are incorporated in determination of lease term only when 
the company is reasonably certain to exercise these options.      
        
The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. It 
is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in �xed lease 
payments or an index or rate, change in the company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable 
under a residual value guarantee, or if the company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a 
purchase, extension or termination option. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount 
of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in the statement of pro�t or loss if the carrying amount of 
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.        
      
The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for 

any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and 
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the 
site on which it is located, less any lease incentive received. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a 
straight-line method over the lease term as this method most closely re�ects the expected pattern of 
consumption of future economic bene�ts. The right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any, 
and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

Lessor Accounting          
    
Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in income on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are 
added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognized as expense over the lease term on 
the same basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the statement of �nancial 
position based on their nature.         
     
Contingencies and commitments          
     
Contingent liability is disclosed when:        
      
- there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be con�rmed only by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Company; or           
   
- there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an out�ow of resources 
embodying economic bene�ts will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured with suf�cient reliability.        
      
Dividend and other appropriations        
      
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which the 
dividends are declared and approved. Appropriations of pro�t are re�ected in the statement of changes in 
equity in the period in which such appropriations are approved.      
        
Government grants          
    
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that 
the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants 
relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the pro�t or loss over the period necessary to match them 
with the costs that they are intended to compensate. 
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Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is charged to the statement of pro�t or loss using the 
straight line method so as to write off the depreciable amount of the assets over their estimated useful lives 
at the rates mentioned in note 17 after taking into account their residual values.     
          
The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each �nancial year end, and adjusted if impact 
on depreciation is signi�cant. The Company's estimate of the residual value and useful life of its operating 
�xed assets as at December 31, 2020 has not required any adjustment.     
         
Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which an asset 
is acquired or capitalized, while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed 
off or retired from active use         
     
An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.      
        
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appro-
priate, only when it is probable that future economic bene�ts associated with the item will �ow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are 
charged to statement of pro�t or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and 
equipment may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to 
assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts. Where carrying values exceed the 
respective recoverable amounts, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting 
impairment loss is recognized in income currently. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair 
value less costs to sell and value-in-use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge 
is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful 
life.            
  
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic 
bene�ts are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset repre-
sented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in 
the statement of pro�t or loss and other comprehensive income.      
        
Intangible assets           
   
An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic bene�ts that are attributable to the 
asset will �ow to the entity and that the cost of such an asset can also be measured reliably. Intangible 
assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any identi�ed accumulated impairment loss. 
            
Amortization is charged to statement of pro�t or loss on straight line basis so as to write off the cost of 
an asset over its estimated useful life. Amortization on additions is charged from the month in which an 
asset is acquired or capitalized while no amortization is charged for the month in which the asset is 
disposed off. Amortization is being charged at the annual rate of 33.33 %.    
          
Useful lives of intangible operating assets are reviewed, at each date of statement of �nancial position and 
adjusted if the impact of amortization is signi�cant.       
       
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that intangible assets may 
be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amount of such assets are reviewed to assess whether 
they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective 
recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment 
loss is recognized in income currently. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less 
cost to sell and value-in-use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the amortization charge is adjusted 
in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

Capital work in progress          
    
All expenditure connected with speci�c assets incurred during installation and construction period 
and/or in transit are carried under capital work in progress. These are transferred to speci�c assets as 
and when assets are available for use. Capital work in progress is stated at cost, less any identi�ed 
impairment loss.
            
Investment property          
    
Property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for both is classi�ed as investment property. 
The investment property of the Company comprises building and is valued using the cost method i.e. at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and identi�ed accumulated impairment loss.    
          
Depreciation on building is charged to statement of pro�t or loss on the straight line method so as to write 
off the depreciable amount of a building over its estimated useful life. Investment property is being depre-
ciated at an effective rate of 4.85% per annum. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in 
which an asset is acquired or capitalized while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset 
is disposed off.            
   
The Company assesses at each statement of �nancial position date whether there is any indication that 
investment property may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are 
reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values 
exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the 
resulting impairment loss is recognized in statement of pro�t or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher 
of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the 
depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over 
its estimated useful life.          
    
The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as income or expense.

Stores, spares and loose tools         
     
Stores, spares and loose tools are valued at the lower of moving weighted average cost and net realizable 
value. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus any other charges associated with 
buying the inventory for its intended use.        
      
Net realizable value signi�es the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated 
costs necessarily to be incurred to make the sale. Provision is made in the �nancial statements for obsolete 
and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools based on management's estimate.    
          
Stock-in-trade           
   
Stock of raw materials except for those in transit, work-in-process and �nished goods are valued princi-
pally at the lower of moving weighted average cost and net realizable value. Cost of work-in-process and 
�nished goods comprise cost of direct materials, labour and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Mate-
rials in transit are stated at cost comprising invoice value and other charges paid thereon.   
           
Net realizable value signi�es the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs neces-
sary to be incurred in order to make the sale.If the expected net realizable value is lower than the carrying 
amount, a write-down is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its net realiz-
able value. Provision is made in the �nancial statements for obsolete and slow moving stock in trade based 
on management's estimate.

            
  

Trade debts and other receivables         
     
Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is 
unconditional, unless they contain signi�cant �nancing component in which case such are recognised at 
fair value. The Company holds the trade debts with the objective of collecting the contractual cash 
�ows and therefore measures the trade debts subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method.           

Cash and cash equivalents         
     
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of �nancial position at cost. For the purposes of 
statement of cash �ows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, cheques in 
hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other short term highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insigni�cant risk of change in value 
and short term �nances.          
    
Borrowings           
   
Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subse-
quently stated at amortized cost, any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the 
redemption value is recognized in the statement of pro�t or loss over the period of the borrowings using 
the effective interest method. Finance costs are accounted for on an accrual basis and are reported under 
accrued �nance costs to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.     
         
Borrowings are classi�ed as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the statement of �nancial position date.  
            
Borrowing costs           

General and speci�c borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for 
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substan-
tially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of 
speci�c borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs 
eligible for capitalisation.          
    
Trade and other payables         
     
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course 
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classi�ed as current liabilities if payment is due within 
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as 
non-current liabilities.          
    
Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the 
consideration to be paid in the future for the goods and/or services received, whether or not billed to the 
Company.           
   
Provisions           
   
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events and it is probable that an out�ow of resources embodying economic bene�ts will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each 
reporting date and adjusted to re�ect the current best estimate.      
        
            
  

Financial instruments          
    
Financial assets           
   
In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9, the Company classi�es its �nancial assets at amortised 
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through pro�t or loss on the basis of 
the Company’s business model for managing the �nancial assets and the contractual cash �ow character-
istics of the �nancial asset. Management determines the classi�cation of its �nancial assets at the time of 
initial recognition.           
   
Financial assets at amortized cost         
     
Financial assets at amortised cost are held within a business model whose objective is to hold �nancial 
assets in order to collect contractual cash �ows and the contractual terms of the �nancial asset give rise 
on speci�ed dates to cash �ows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding. Interest income from these �nancial assets, impairment losses, foreign exchange 
gains and losses, and gain or loss arising on derecognition are recognised directly in statement of pro�t 
or loss.            

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income     
         
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model whose 
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash �ows and selling �nancial assets and the contrac-
tual terms of the �nancial asset give rise on speci�ed dates to cash �ows that are solely payments of princi-
pal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.       
       
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss       
       
Financial assets at fair value through pro�t or loss are those �nancial assets which are either designated 
in this category or not classi�ed in any of the other categories. A gain or loss on debt investment that is 
subsequently measured at fair value through pro�t or loss is recognised in statement of pro�t or loss in 
the period in which it arises.         
     
Financial assets are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given and 
received respectively. These �nancial assets and liabilities are subsequently remeasured to fair value, 
amortized cost or cost as the case may be. Any gain or loss on the recognition and de-recognition of the 
�nancial assets and liabilities is included in the statement of pro�t or loss for the period in which it arises. 
            
Equity instrument �nancial assets / mutual funds are measured at fair value at and subsequent to initial 
recognition. Changes in fair value of these �nancial assets are normally recognised in statement of pro�t 
or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in statement of pro�t or loss when the 
Company’s right to receive payment is established. Where an election is made to present fair value gains 
and losses on equity instruments in other comprehensive income there is no subsequent reclassi�cation of 
fair value gains and losses to statement of pro�t or loss following the derecognition of the investment.  
            
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash �ows from the assets have expired or 
have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. 
Assets or liabilities that are not contractual in nature and that are created as a result of statutory require-
ments imposed by the Government are not the �nancial instruments of the Company.   
           
Impairment of financial assets         
     
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its �nancial 
assets carried at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company 
computes historical loss rates using the historical credit losses which are then adjusted to re�ect current 
and forward looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle 
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the receivables. For trade debts other than Government, the Company applied the simpli�ed approach, 
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. To 
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk 
characteristics and the days past due. The Company recognises in statement of pro�t or loss, as an impair-
ment gain or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss 
allowance at the reporting date. Impairment testing of trade debts relating to Government owned entities, 
the Company applied the incurred loss method in accordance with the requirements of IAS 39 ' Financial 
Instruments - Recognition and Measurement' based on exemption provided by SECP for application of 
IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' on trade debts relating to Government owned entities.   
           
Financial liabilities          
    
All �nancial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument.         
     
A �nancial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expired. Where an existing �nancial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modi�ed, such an exchange or modi-
�cation is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the 
difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of pro�t or loss.   
           
Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities      
        
Financial assets and �nancial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the �nancial 
statements only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the 
Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.           

Foreign currency transactions and translation       
       
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pakistan Rupees (functional and presentation currency) 
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. All monetary assets and liabilities in 
foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting 
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses on translation are recognised in the statement of pro�t or loss. 
All non-monetary items are translated into Pakistan Rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the date of 
transaction or on the date when fair values are determined.      
        
Revenue recognition          
    
Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when the Company satis�es performance 
obligations by transferring the promised goods or services to its customers. Revenue is measured at fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable excluding discounts allowed to customers. A contract 
liability is recorded for advances received from customers against which performance obligations have 
not been satis�ed.           
   
Revenue is earned from sale of products and provision of after market services. Revenue associated with 
such transactions is recognized at a point in time upon satisfaction of the performance obligation by 
transfer of control of goods or when services are rendered to the customers. Sales of products include 
industrial pumps, valves, castings and related parts.       
       
Revenue from projects is recognized over time using the input method to determine the stage of comple-
tion of the project and the appropriate amount of revenue to be recognized at each reporting date. The 
stage of completion is measured by reference to the project costs incurred up to the reporting date as a 
percentage of total estimated costs for each project. The resultant percentage is then applied to estimated 
revenue from each project to determine the accumulated revenue upto the reporting date.   
           

Project costs are recognized when incurred. When the outcome of a project cannot be estimated reliably, 
project revenue is recognized only to the extent of project costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. 
When the outcome of a project can be estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract will be pro�t-
able, project revenue is recognized over time. When it is probable that total project costs will exceed total 
project revenue, the expected loss is recognized as an expense immediately in statement of pro�t or loss. 
            
Where the consideration received or the unconditional right to receive the consideration is in excess of the 
amount of performance obligations satis�ed, the differential is recognized as "contract liabilities". In case 
the performance obligations are satis�ed before the consideration is received or the right to consideration 
is established, the Company recognizes either a contract asset or a receivable in its statement of �nancial 
position, depending on whether something other than the passage of time is required before the consider-
ation is due.           
   
The Company provides only standard-type warranties, accounted for under IAS 37. Extended-type 
warranties, which treated as separate performance obligations under IFRS 15, are not provided. When 
determining the nature of warranty-related promises, the Company considers:    
          
- whether the customer has the option to separately purchase the warranty; and    

- whether all or part of the warranty provides the customer with an additional service beyond the basic 
assurance that it will perform in accordance with published speci�cations.     
         
Return on bank deposits is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding, 
at the applicable rate of return.         
     
Leases            
  
Lessee Accounting          
    
At inception of a contract, the company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on 
whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identi�ed asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range 
of different terms and conditions. Leases having lease term of less than 12 months are accounted for as 
short-term leases and the expense charged to pro�t or loss on straight line basis over the lease term.  
            
The lessee at the commencement of lease term shall recognize right of use asset and a lease liability. The 
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readi-
ly determined, the company's incremental borrowing rate.      
        
Lease payments include �xed payments, variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, 
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a 
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, payments of penalties for termi-
nating the lease, if the lease term re�ects the lessee exercising that option, less any lease incentives receiv-
able. The extension and termination options are incorporated in determination of lease term only when 
the company is reasonably certain to exercise these options.      
        
The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. It 
is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in �xed lease 
payments or an index or rate, change in the company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable 
under a residual value guarantee, or if the company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a 
purchase, extension or termination option. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount 
of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in the statement of pro�t or loss if the carrying amount of 
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.        
      
The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for 

any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and 
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the 
site on which it is located, less any lease incentive received. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a 
straight-line method over the lease term as this method most closely re�ects the expected pattern of 
consumption of future economic bene�ts. The right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any, 
and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

Lessor Accounting          
    
Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in income on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are 
added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognized as expense over the lease term on 
the same basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the statement of �nancial 
position based on their nature.         
     
Contingencies and commitments          
     
Contingent liability is disclosed when:        
      
- there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be con�rmed only by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Company; or           
   
- there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an out�ow of resources 
embodying economic bene�ts will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured with suf�cient reliability.        
      
Dividend and other appropriations        
      
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which the 
dividends are declared and approved. Appropriations of pro�t are re�ected in the statement of changes in 
equity in the period in which such appropriations are approved.      
        
Government grants          
    
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that 
the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants 
relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the pro�t or loss over the period necessary to match them 
with the costs that they are intended to compensate. 
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Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is charged to the statement of pro�t or loss using the 
straight line method so as to write off the depreciable amount of the assets over their estimated useful lives 
at the rates mentioned in note 17 after taking into account their residual values.     
          
The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each �nancial year end, and adjusted if impact 
on depreciation is signi�cant. The Company's estimate of the residual value and useful life of its operating 
�xed assets as at December 31, 2020 has not required any adjustment.     
         
Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which an asset 
is acquired or capitalized, while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed 
off or retired from active use         
     
An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.      
        
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appro-
priate, only when it is probable that future economic bene�ts associated with the item will �ow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are 
charged to statement of pro�t or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and 
equipment may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to 
assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts. Where carrying values exceed the 
respective recoverable amounts, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting 
impairment loss is recognized in income currently. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair 
value less costs to sell and value-in-use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge 
is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful 
life.            
  
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic 
bene�ts are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset repre-
sented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in 
the statement of pro�t or loss and other comprehensive income.      
        
Intangible assets           
   
An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic bene�ts that are attributable to the 
asset will �ow to the entity and that the cost of such an asset can also be measured reliably. Intangible 
assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any identi�ed accumulated impairment loss. 
            
Amortization is charged to statement of pro�t or loss on straight line basis so as to write off the cost of 
an asset over its estimated useful life. Amortization on additions is charged from the month in which an 
asset is acquired or capitalized while no amortization is charged for the month in which the asset is 
disposed off. Amortization is being charged at the annual rate of 33.33 %.    
          
Useful lives of intangible operating assets are reviewed, at each date of statement of �nancial position and 
adjusted if the impact of amortization is signi�cant.       
       
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that intangible assets may 
be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amount of such assets are reviewed to assess whether 
they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective 
recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment 
loss is recognized in income currently. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less 
cost to sell and value-in-use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the amortization charge is adjusted 
in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

Capital work in progress          
    
All expenditure connected with speci�c assets incurred during installation and construction period 
and/or in transit are carried under capital work in progress. These are transferred to speci�c assets as 
and when assets are available for use. Capital work in progress is stated at cost, less any identi�ed 
impairment loss.
            
Investment property          
    
Property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for both is classi�ed as investment property. 
The investment property of the Company comprises building and is valued using the cost method i.e. at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and identi�ed accumulated impairment loss.    
          
Depreciation on building is charged to statement of pro�t or loss on the straight line method so as to write 
off the depreciable amount of a building over its estimated useful life. Investment property is being depre-
ciated at an effective rate of 4.85% per annum. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in 
which an asset is acquired or capitalized while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset 
is disposed off.            
   
The Company assesses at each statement of �nancial position date whether there is any indication that 
investment property may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are 
reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values 
exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the 
resulting impairment loss is recognized in statement of pro�t or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher 
of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the 
depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over 
its estimated useful life.          
    
The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as income or expense.

Stores, spares and loose tools         
     
Stores, spares and loose tools are valued at the lower of moving weighted average cost and net realizable 
value. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus any other charges associated with 
buying the inventory for its intended use.        
      
Net realizable value signi�es the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated 
costs necessarily to be incurred to make the sale. Provision is made in the �nancial statements for obsolete 
and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools based on management's estimate.    
          
Stock-in-trade           
   
Stock of raw materials except for those in transit, work-in-process and �nished goods are valued princi-
pally at the lower of moving weighted average cost and net realizable value. Cost of work-in-process and 
�nished goods comprise cost of direct materials, labour and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Mate-
rials in transit are stated at cost comprising invoice value and other charges paid thereon.   
           
Net realizable value signi�es the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs neces-
sary to be incurred in order to make the sale.If the expected net realizable value is lower than the carrying 
amount, a write-down is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its net realiz-
able value. Provision is made in the �nancial statements for obsolete and slow moving stock in trade based 
on management's estimate.

            
  

Trade debts and other receivables         
     
Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is 
unconditional, unless they contain signi�cant �nancing component in which case such are recognised at 
fair value. The Company holds the trade debts with the objective of collecting the contractual cash 
�ows and therefore measures the trade debts subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method.           

Cash and cash equivalents         
     
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of �nancial position at cost. For the purposes of 
statement of cash �ows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, cheques in 
hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other short term highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insigni�cant risk of change in value 
and short term �nances.          
    
Borrowings           
   
Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subse-
quently stated at amortized cost, any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the 
redemption value is recognized in the statement of pro�t or loss over the period of the borrowings using 
the effective interest method. Finance costs are accounted for on an accrual basis and are reported under 
accrued �nance costs to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.     
         
Borrowings are classi�ed as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the statement of �nancial position date.  
            
Borrowing costs           

General and speci�c borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for 
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substan-
tially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of 
speci�c borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs 
eligible for capitalisation.          
    
Trade and other payables         
     
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course 
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classi�ed as current liabilities if payment is due within 
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as 
non-current liabilities.          
    
Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the 
consideration to be paid in the future for the goods and/or services received, whether or not billed to the 
Company.           
   
Provisions           
   
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events and it is probable that an out�ow of resources embodying economic bene�ts will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each 
reporting date and adjusted to re�ect the current best estimate.      
        
            
  

Financial instruments          
    
Financial assets           
   
In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9, the Company classi�es its �nancial assets at amortised 
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through pro�t or loss on the basis of 
the Company’s business model for managing the �nancial assets and the contractual cash �ow character-
istics of the �nancial asset. Management determines the classi�cation of its �nancial assets at the time of 
initial recognition.           
   
Financial assets at amortized cost         
     
Financial assets at amortised cost are held within a business model whose objective is to hold �nancial 
assets in order to collect contractual cash �ows and the contractual terms of the �nancial asset give rise 
on speci�ed dates to cash �ows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding. Interest income from these �nancial assets, impairment losses, foreign exchange 
gains and losses, and gain or loss arising on derecognition are recognised directly in statement of pro�t 
or loss.            

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income     
         
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model whose 
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash �ows and selling �nancial assets and the contrac-
tual terms of the �nancial asset give rise on speci�ed dates to cash �ows that are solely payments of princi-
pal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.       
       
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss       
       
Financial assets at fair value through pro�t or loss are those �nancial assets which are either designated 
in this category or not classi�ed in any of the other categories. A gain or loss on debt investment that is 
subsequently measured at fair value through pro�t or loss is recognised in statement of pro�t or loss in 
the period in which it arises.         
     
Financial assets are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given and 
received respectively. These �nancial assets and liabilities are subsequently remeasured to fair value, 
amortized cost or cost as the case may be. Any gain or loss on the recognition and de-recognition of the 
�nancial assets and liabilities is included in the statement of pro�t or loss for the period in which it arises. 
            
Equity instrument �nancial assets / mutual funds are measured at fair value at and subsequent to initial 
recognition. Changes in fair value of these �nancial assets are normally recognised in statement of pro�t 
or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in statement of pro�t or loss when the 
Company’s right to receive payment is established. Where an election is made to present fair value gains 
and losses on equity instruments in other comprehensive income there is no subsequent reclassi�cation of 
fair value gains and losses to statement of pro�t or loss following the derecognition of the investment.  
            
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash �ows from the assets have expired or 
have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. 
Assets or liabilities that are not contractual in nature and that are created as a result of statutory require-
ments imposed by the Government are not the �nancial instruments of the Company.   
           
Impairment of financial assets         
     
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its �nancial 
assets carried at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company 
computes historical loss rates using the historical credit losses which are then adjusted to re�ect current 
and forward looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle 
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the receivables. For trade debts other than Government, the Company applied the simpli�ed approach, 
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. To 
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk 
characteristics and the days past due. The Company recognises in statement of pro�t or loss, as an impair-
ment gain or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss 
allowance at the reporting date. Impairment testing of trade debts relating to Government owned entities, 
the Company applied the incurred loss method in accordance with the requirements of IAS 39 ' Financial 
Instruments - Recognition and Measurement' based on exemption provided by SECP for application of 
IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' on trade debts relating to Government owned entities.   
           
Financial liabilities          
    
All �nancial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument.         
     
A �nancial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expired. Where an existing �nancial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modi�ed, such an exchange or modi-
�cation is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the 
difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of pro�t or loss.   
           
Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities      
        
Financial assets and �nancial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the �nancial 
statements only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the 
Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.           

Foreign currency transactions and translation       
       
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pakistan Rupees (functional and presentation currency) 
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. All monetary assets and liabilities in 
foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting 
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses on translation are recognised in the statement of pro�t or loss. 
All non-monetary items are translated into Pakistan Rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the date of 
transaction or on the date when fair values are determined.      
        
Revenue recognition          
    
Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when the Company satis�es performance 
obligations by transferring the promised goods or services to its customers. Revenue is measured at fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable excluding discounts allowed to customers. A contract 
liability is recorded for advances received from customers against which performance obligations have 
not been satis�ed.           
   
Revenue is earned from sale of products and provision of after market services. Revenue associated with 
such transactions is recognized at a point in time upon satisfaction of the performance obligation by 
transfer of control of goods or when services are rendered to the customers. Sales of products include 
industrial pumps, valves, castings and related parts.       
       
Revenue from projects is recognized over time using the input method to determine the stage of comple-
tion of the project and the appropriate amount of revenue to be recognized at each reporting date. The 
stage of completion is measured by reference to the project costs incurred up to the reporting date as a 
percentage of total estimated costs for each project. The resultant percentage is then applied to estimated 
revenue from each project to determine the accumulated revenue upto the reporting date.   
           

Project costs are recognized when incurred. When the outcome of a project cannot be estimated reliably, 
project revenue is recognized only to the extent of project costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. 
When the outcome of a project can be estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract will be pro�t-
able, project revenue is recognized over time. When it is probable that total project costs will exceed total 
project revenue, the expected loss is recognized as an expense immediately in statement of pro�t or loss. 
            
Where the consideration received or the unconditional right to receive the consideration is in excess of the 
amount of performance obligations satis�ed, the differential is recognized as "contract liabilities". In case 
the performance obligations are satis�ed before the consideration is received or the right to consideration 
is established, the Company recognizes either a contract asset or a receivable in its statement of �nancial 
position, depending on whether something other than the passage of time is required before the consider-
ation is due.           
   
The Company provides only standard-type warranties, accounted for under IAS 37. Extended-type 
warranties, which treated as separate performance obligations under IFRS 15, are not provided. When 
determining the nature of warranty-related promises, the Company considers:    
          
- whether the customer has the option to separately purchase the warranty; and    

- whether all or part of the warranty provides the customer with an additional service beyond the basic 
assurance that it will perform in accordance with published speci�cations.     
         
Return on bank deposits is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding, 
at the applicable rate of return.         
     
Leases            
  
Lessee Accounting          
    
At inception of a contract, the company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on 
whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identi�ed asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range 
of different terms and conditions. Leases having lease term of less than 12 months are accounted for as 
short-term leases and the expense charged to pro�t or loss on straight line basis over the lease term.  
            
The lessee at the commencement of lease term shall recognize right of use asset and a lease liability. The 
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readi-
ly determined, the company's incremental borrowing rate.      
        
Lease payments include �xed payments, variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, 
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a 
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, payments of penalties for termi-
nating the lease, if the lease term re�ects the lessee exercising that option, less any lease incentives receiv-
able. The extension and termination options are incorporated in determination of lease term only when 
the company is reasonably certain to exercise these options.      
        
The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. It 
is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in �xed lease 
payments or an index or rate, change in the company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable 
under a residual value guarantee, or if the company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a 
purchase, extension or termination option. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount 
of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in the statement of pro�t or loss if the carrying amount of 
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.        
      
The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for 

any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and 
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the 
site on which it is located, less any lease incentive received. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a 
straight-line method over the lease term as this method most closely re�ects the expected pattern of 
consumption of future economic bene�ts. The right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any, 
and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

Lessor Accounting          
    
Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in income on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are 
added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognized as expense over the lease term on 
the same basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the statement of �nancial 
position based on their nature.         
     
Contingencies and commitments          
     
Contingent liability is disclosed when:        
      
- there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be con�rmed only by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Company; or           
   
- there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an out�ow of resources 
embodying economic bene�ts will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured with suf�cient reliability.        
      
Dividend and other appropriations        
      
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which the 
dividends are declared and approved. Appropriations of pro�t are re�ected in the statement of changes in 
equity in the period in which such appropriations are approved.      
        
Government grants          
    
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that 
the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants 
relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the pro�t or loss over the period necessary to match them 
with the costs that they are intended to compensate. 
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Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is charged to the statement of pro�t or loss using the 
straight line method so as to write off the depreciable amount of the assets over their estimated useful lives 
at the rates mentioned in note 17 after taking into account their residual values.     
          
The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each �nancial year end, and adjusted if impact 
on depreciation is signi�cant. The Company's estimate of the residual value and useful life of its operating 
�xed assets as at December 31, 2020 has not required any adjustment.     
         
Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which an asset 
is acquired or capitalized, while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed 
off or retired from active use         
     
An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.      
        
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appro-
priate, only when it is probable that future economic bene�ts associated with the item will �ow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are 
charged to statement of pro�t or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and 
equipment may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to 
assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts. Where carrying values exceed the 
respective recoverable amounts, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting 
impairment loss is recognized in income currently. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair 
value less costs to sell and value-in-use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge 
is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful 
life.            
  
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic 
bene�ts are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset repre-
sented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in 
the statement of pro�t or loss and other comprehensive income.      
        
Intangible assets           
   
An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic bene�ts that are attributable to the 
asset will �ow to the entity and that the cost of such an asset can also be measured reliably. Intangible 
assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any identi�ed accumulated impairment loss. 
            
Amortization is charged to statement of pro�t or loss on straight line basis so as to write off the cost of 
an asset over its estimated useful life. Amortization on additions is charged from the month in which an 
asset is acquired or capitalized while no amortization is charged for the month in which the asset is 
disposed off. Amortization is being charged at the annual rate of 33.33 %.    
          
Useful lives of intangible operating assets are reviewed, at each date of statement of �nancial position and 
adjusted if the impact of amortization is signi�cant.       
       
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that intangible assets may 
be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amount of such assets are reviewed to assess whether 
they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective 
recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment 
loss is recognized in income currently. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less 
cost to sell and value-in-use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the amortization charge is adjusted 
in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

Capital work in progress          
    
All expenditure connected with speci�c assets incurred during installation and construction period 
and/or in transit are carried under capital work in progress. These are transferred to speci�c assets as 
and when assets are available for use. Capital work in progress is stated at cost, less any identi�ed 
impairment loss.
            
Investment property          
    
Property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for both is classi�ed as investment property. 
The investment property of the Company comprises building and is valued using the cost method i.e. at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and identi�ed accumulated impairment loss.    
          
Depreciation on building is charged to statement of pro�t or loss on the straight line method so as to write 
off the depreciable amount of a building over its estimated useful life. Investment property is being depre-
ciated at an effective rate of 4.85% per annum. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in 
which an asset is acquired or capitalized while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset 
is disposed off.            
   
The Company assesses at each statement of �nancial position date whether there is any indication that 
investment property may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are 
reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values 
exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the 
resulting impairment loss is recognized in statement of pro�t or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher 
of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the 
depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over 
its estimated useful life.          
    
The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as income or expense.

Stores, spares and loose tools         
     
Stores, spares and loose tools are valued at the lower of moving weighted average cost and net realizable 
value. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus any other charges associated with 
buying the inventory for its intended use.        
      
Net realizable value signi�es the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated 
costs necessarily to be incurred to make the sale. Provision is made in the �nancial statements for obsolete 
and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools based on management's estimate.    
          
Stock-in-trade           
   
Stock of raw materials except for those in transit, work-in-process and �nished goods are valued princi-
pally at the lower of moving weighted average cost and net realizable value. Cost of work-in-process and 
�nished goods comprise cost of direct materials, labour and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Mate-
rials in transit are stated at cost comprising invoice value and other charges paid thereon.   
           
Net realizable value signi�es the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs neces-
sary to be incurred in order to make the sale.If the expected net realizable value is lower than the carrying 
amount, a write-down is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its net realiz-
able value. Provision is made in the �nancial statements for obsolete and slow moving stock in trade based 
on management's estimate.

            
  

Trade debts and other receivables         
     
Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is 
unconditional, unless they contain signi�cant �nancing component in which case such are recognised at 
fair value. The Company holds the trade debts with the objective of collecting the contractual cash 
�ows and therefore measures the trade debts subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method.           

Cash and cash equivalents         
     
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of �nancial position at cost. For the purposes of 
statement of cash �ows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, cheques in 
hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other short term highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insigni�cant risk of change in value 
and short term �nances.          
    
Borrowings           
   
Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subse-
quently stated at amortized cost, any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the 
redemption value is recognized in the statement of pro�t or loss over the period of the borrowings using 
the effective interest method. Finance costs are accounted for on an accrual basis and are reported under 
accrued �nance costs to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.     
         
Borrowings are classi�ed as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the statement of �nancial position date.  
            
Borrowing costs           

General and speci�c borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for 
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substan-
tially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of 
speci�c borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs 
eligible for capitalisation.          
    
Trade and other payables         
     
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course 
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classi�ed as current liabilities if payment is due within 
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as 
non-current liabilities.          
    
Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the 
consideration to be paid in the future for the goods and/or services received, whether or not billed to the 
Company.           
   
Provisions           
   
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events and it is probable that an out�ow of resources embodying economic bene�ts will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each 
reporting date and adjusted to re�ect the current best estimate.      
        
            
  

Financial instruments          
    
Financial assets           
   
In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9, the Company classi�es its �nancial assets at amortised 
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through pro�t or loss on the basis of 
the Company’s business model for managing the �nancial assets and the contractual cash �ow character-
istics of the �nancial asset. Management determines the classi�cation of its �nancial assets at the time of 
initial recognition.           
   
Financial assets at amortized cost         
     
Financial assets at amortised cost are held within a business model whose objective is to hold �nancial 
assets in order to collect contractual cash �ows and the contractual terms of the �nancial asset give rise 
on speci�ed dates to cash �ows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding. Interest income from these �nancial assets, impairment losses, foreign exchange 
gains and losses, and gain or loss arising on derecognition are recognised directly in statement of pro�t 
or loss.            

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income     
         
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model whose 
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash �ows and selling �nancial assets and the contrac-
tual terms of the �nancial asset give rise on speci�ed dates to cash �ows that are solely payments of princi-
pal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.       
       
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss       
       
Financial assets at fair value through pro�t or loss are those �nancial assets which are either designated 
in this category or not classi�ed in any of the other categories. A gain or loss on debt investment that is 
subsequently measured at fair value through pro�t or loss is recognised in statement of pro�t or loss in 
the period in which it arises.         
     
Financial assets are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given and 
received respectively. These �nancial assets and liabilities are subsequently remeasured to fair value, 
amortized cost or cost as the case may be. Any gain or loss on the recognition and de-recognition of the 
�nancial assets and liabilities is included in the statement of pro�t or loss for the period in which it arises. 
            
Equity instrument �nancial assets / mutual funds are measured at fair value at and subsequent to initial 
recognition. Changes in fair value of these �nancial assets are normally recognised in statement of pro�t 
or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in statement of pro�t or loss when the 
Company’s right to receive payment is established. Where an election is made to present fair value gains 
and losses on equity instruments in other comprehensive income there is no subsequent reclassi�cation of 
fair value gains and losses to statement of pro�t or loss following the derecognition of the investment.  
            
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash �ows from the assets have expired or 
have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. 
Assets or liabilities that are not contractual in nature and that are created as a result of statutory require-
ments imposed by the Government are not the �nancial instruments of the Company.   
           
Impairment of financial assets         
     
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its �nancial 
assets carried at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company 
computes historical loss rates using the historical credit losses which are then adjusted to re�ect current 
and forward looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle 

the receivables. For trade debts other than Government, the Company applied the simpli�ed approach, 
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. To 
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk 
characteristics and the days past due. The Company recognises in statement of pro�t or loss, as an impair-
ment gain or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss 
allowance at the reporting date. Impairment testing of trade debts relating to Government owned entities, 
the Company applied the incurred loss method in accordance with the requirements of IAS 39 ' Financial 
Instruments - Recognition and Measurement' based on exemption provided by SECP for application of 
IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' on trade debts relating to Government owned entities.   
           
Financial liabilities          
    
All �nancial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument.         
     
A �nancial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expired. Where an existing �nancial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modi�ed, such an exchange or modi-
�cation is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the 
difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of pro�t or loss.   
           
Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities      
        
Financial assets and �nancial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the �nancial 
statements only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the 
Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.           

Foreign currency transactions and translation       
       
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pakistan Rupees (functional and presentation currency) 
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. All monetary assets and liabilities in 
foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting 
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses on translation are recognised in the statement of pro�t or loss. 
All non-monetary items are translated into Pakistan Rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the date of 
transaction or on the date when fair values are determined.      
        
Revenue recognition          
    
Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when the Company satis�es performance 
obligations by transferring the promised goods or services to its customers. Revenue is measured at fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable excluding discounts allowed to customers. A contract 
liability is recorded for advances received from customers against which performance obligations have 
not been satis�ed.           
   
Revenue is earned from sale of products and provision of after market services. Revenue associated with 
such transactions is recognized at a point in time upon satisfaction of the performance obligation by 
transfer of control of goods or when services are rendered to the customers. Sales of products include 
industrial pumps, valves, castings and related parts.       
       
Revenue from projects is recognized over time using the input method to determine the stage of comple-
tion of the project and the appropriate amount of revenue to be recognized at each reporting date. The 
stage of completion is measured by reference to the project costs incurred up to the reporting date as a 
percentage of total estimated costs for each project. The resultant percentage is then applied to estimated 
revenue from each project to determine the accumulated revenue upto the reporting date.   
           

Project costs are recognized when incurred. When the outcome of a project cannot be estimated reliably, 
project revenue is recognized only to the extent of project costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. 
When the outcome of a project can be estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract will be pro�t-
able, project revenue is recognized over time. When it is probable that total project costs will exceed total 
project revenue, the expected loss is recognized as an expense immediately in statement of pro�t or loss. 
            
Where the consideration received or the unconditional right to receive the consideration is in excess of the 
amount of performance obligations satis�ed, the differential is recognized as "contract liabilities". In case 
the performance obligations are satis�ed before the consideration is received or the right to consideration 
is established, the Company recognizes either a contract asset or a receivable in its statement of �nancial 
position, depending on whether something other than the passage of time is required before the consider-
ation is due.           
   
The Company provides only standard-type warranties, accounted for under IAS 37. Extended-type 
warranties, which treated as separate performance obligations under IFRS 15, are not provided. When 
determining the nature of warranty-related promises, the Company considers:    
          
- whether the customer has the option to separately purchase the warranty; and    

- whether all or part of the warranty provides the customer with an additional service beyond the basic 
assurance that it will perform in accordance with published speci�cations.     
         
Return on bank deposits is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding, 
at the applicable rate of return.         
     
Leases            
  
Lessee Accounting          
    
At inception of a contract, the company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on 
whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identi�ed asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range 
of different terms and conditions. Leases having lease term of less than 12 months are accounted for as 
short-term leases and the expense charged to pro�t or loss on straight line basis over the lease term.  
            
The lessee at the commencement of lease term shall recognize right of use asset and a lease liability. The 
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readi-
ly determined, the company's incremental borrowing rate.      
        
Lease payments include �xed payments, variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, 
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a 
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, payments of penalties for termi-
nating the lease, if the lease term re�ects the lessee exercising that option, less any lease incentives receiv-
able. The extension and termination options are incorporated in determination of lease term only when 
the company is reasonably certain to exercise these options.      
        
The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. It 
is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in �xed lease 
payments or an index or rate, change in the company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable 
under a residual value guarantee, or if the company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a 
purchase, extension or termination option. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount 
of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in the statement of pro�t or loss if the carrying amount of 
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.        
      
The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for 
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any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and 
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the 
site on which it is located, less any lease incentive received. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a 
straight-line method over the lease term as this method most closely re�ects the expected pattern of 
consumption of future economic bene�ts. The right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any, 
and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

Lessor Accounting          
    
Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in income on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are 
added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognized as expense over the lease term on 
the same basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the statement of �nancial 
position based on their nature.         
     
Contingencies and commitments          
     
Contingent liability is disclosed when:        
      
- there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be con�rmed only by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Company; or           
   
- there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an out�ow of resources 
embodying economic bene�ts will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured with suf�cient reliability.        
      
Dividend and other appropriations        
      
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which the 
dividends are declared and approved. Appropriations of pro�t are re�ected in the statement of changes in 
equity in the period in which such appropriations are approved.      
        
Government grants          
    
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that 
the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants 
relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the pro�t or loss over the period necessary to match them 
with the costs that they are intended to compensate. 
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Share Capital 
 
Authorised Share capital  

2020 2019 2020 2019
  (Number of

 shares)
  (Number of

 shares)

  (Number of
 shares)

  (Number of
 shares)

 (Rupees)   

 15,000,000   15,000,000  Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each fully paid in cash 150,000,000   150,000,000  

5.2

5.2.1

5.2.2

5.3

 Issued subscribed and paid up capital

2020 2019 2020 2019
 (Rupees)   

973,100 973,100 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each fully paid in cash  9,731,000   9,731,000 
8,000   8,000  Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each issued for 

     consideration other than cash   80,000   80,000 
 12,218,900   12,218,900  Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each issued as fully 

     paid bonus shares   122,189,000   122,189,000

 13,200,000   13,200,000     132,000,000   132,000,000

 
    

As at December 31, 2020, the holding company KSB SE & Co. KGaA, having its registered of�ce at 
67227 Johann-Klein-Street 09, Frankenthal, Germany, held 7,772,975 (2019: 7,772,975) shares of the 
Company of Rs 10 each representing 58.89% of the issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of the 
Company. The Chief Executive Of�cer of KSB SE & Co. KGaA is Dr.-Ing. Stephan Timmermann and 
holding company is operational as at December 31, 2020.      
        
Shares issued for consideration other than cash were issued against property    
          
There has been no movement in ordinary share capital issued subscribed and paid up during the year 
ended December 31, 2020          
    

6. 

7.

2020 2019
RupeesNote  Rupees

Revenue reserves 

General Reserve:  
Opening balance 1,729,600,000

     76,000,000 
 
1,805,600,000
     29,512,034
 
 

1,729,600,000 
     96,298,096 

 
 

1,580,600,000 
   149,000,000 
 
 

  

 
  

1,835,112,034  1,825,898,096 

Long term loan 

Long Term Finance- Secured

 
 

 
-Diminishing Musharika - BankIslami Pakistan Limited  7.1 

7.2 
   218,750,000  

-Loan for wages and salaries - Allied Bank Limited

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities

 253,428,009
  250,000,000 
     -    

 
 472,178,009 
 

  250,000,000  
  (221,946,967)
 
 

 (125,000,000)
  

 250,231,042 
 
 

 125,000,000

 

5.

5.1
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7.1

7.2

7.3

8

During the prior years, the long term �nance was obtained in the form of Diminishing Musharika from 
BankIslami Pakistan Limited for the purpose of expansion of foundry amounting to Rs 500 million. Under 
the arrangement, principal amount of Rs 500 million is repayable in 16 equal quarterly instalments begin-
ning on February 16, 2018. During the year ended December 31,2020, persuant to State Bank of Pakistan 
circular No 13 dated March 26,2020 the Company has obtained one year deferrement of repayment of 
principal amount from Bank Islami Pakistan Limited. Interest is payable quarterly in arrears at the rate of 3 
months KIBOR plus 0.10 percent per annum. The average effective rate of markup charged during the year 
is 10.05% per annum (2019: 11.95% per annum). The amount is secured by way of exclusive charge over 
speci�c plant and machinery amounting to Rs 500 million. As at December 31,2020 the Company has repaid 
an amount of Rs 281.25 million (2019: 250.00 million).      
        
During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company availed the State Bank of Pakistan Re�nance 
Scheme for payment of salaries and wages from Allied Bank Limited with a limit of Rs 271.00 million. The 
loan is repayable in 8 equal quarterly installments starting from February 3, 2021 with a grace period of six 
months. The �nance is secured by exclusive equitable mortgage charge over land and bulidings situated at  
KSB Pumps Company Limited headof�ce upto an amount of Rs 213.00 million and the remaining short fall 
is covered temporarily through a stop gap arrangeement by reducing the running �nance facility until any 
other security is furnished to the bank. Subsequent to the approval of the State Bank of Pakistan the facility 
carried interest rate of 1% per anum. The effective rate of interest used for discounting of the loan is 7.7% 
per annum (2019: Nil).          

This represents Government grant recognised against the loan obtained from SBP Re�nance Scheme for 
payment of salaries and wages in respect of below market interest rate payable on the following facility: 
            
 
Long term �nancing facility availed from Allied Bank Limited under State Bank of Pakistan's (SBP) Re�nance 
Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries to the Workers and Employees of Business Concerns ('Re�nance 
Scheme'), amounting to Rs 268.82 million. The total facility available amounts to Rs 271.00 million. The 
interest rate applicable on this facility during the period  is 1% per annum;    
          
There are no unful�lled conditions or contingencies attached to this grant effecting its recognition at the 
reporting date.           
   
The bene�t has been measured as the difference between the fair value of the loan and the proceeds received. 
The reconciliation of the carrying amount is as follows:       
       

 
 

2020 2019
RupeesNote Rupees

The reconciliation of the carrying amount is as follows:

Deferred Grant

 

  
 

  

 
  

 

  
 

   

 
 
 

 

Opening balance           250,000,000  375,000,000 
Loan received during the year         268,818,846    -   
Repayments during the year         (31,250,000) (125,000,000)

            487,568,846  250,000,000
 

Discounting adjustment - deferred grant      8     (21,414,595)   -   
Interest charged using the effective rate of interest         8,460,727    -   
Interest payments paid during the year         (2,436,969)  

Closing balance          472,178,009  250,000,000 
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Opening balance         
Deferred grant recognised during the period/year           
Credited to pro�t or loss          

                
Current portion shown under current liabilities      
 
Closing balance

Employees' retirement and other benefits        

These are composed of:
        
Ex-gratia         
Gratuity         
Accumulated compensated absences
        
        
        
Ex-gratia        
        
The amounts recognized in Statement of Financial
Position is as follows: 
Present value of de�ned bene�t obligation        

Closing net liability        
        
The movement in the Present Value of the De�ned Bene�t 
Obligation is as follows:

Present value of de�ned bene�t obligation as at start of the year      
Current Service Cost        
Interest cost         
Bene�ts paid        
Actuarial gain from changes in �nancial assumptions       
Experience Adjustment        
Present value of de�ned bene�t obligation as at year end      
  
The amounts recognized in the statement of pro�t 
or loss are as follows:
        
Current service cost         
Net Interest cost for the year        
Total included in salaries, wages and amenities       
 
The amounts recognized in the other comprehensive
 income are as follows:
        
Actuarial gain from changes in �nancial assumptions       
Experience adjustments        
Total remeasurements chargeable in other comprehensive income     
   
              

2019
Note Rupees

2020
Rupees

33

9.1
9.2
9.3

9.1.1

 -   
 21,414,595 
 (4,845,510)

 16,569,085
 (12,200,537)

 4,368,548

 33,728,668 
 9,790,775 

 28,704,078
 

 72,223,521

 33,728,668 

 33,728,668

 31,603,291 
 1,026,471 
 3,340,025 

 (3,828,371)
 (8,502)

 1,595,754 
 33,728,668 

 

 -   
 -   
 -

 -
 -   

 -

 

31,603,291
22,477,333 

 36,610,524 
 

 90,691,148

31,603,291

31,603,291
 

 31,602,113 
 1,076,313 
 3,925,042 

 (3,958,316)
 (12,634)

 (1,029,227)

 31,603,291  

 1,026,471 
 3,340,025 
 4,366,496 

 1,076,313
3,925,042
5,001,355

 

 (8,502)
 1,595,754 
 1,587,252 

 (12,634)
 (1,029,227)
 (1,041,861)

9

9.1

9.1.1
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9.1.2

9.1.3

9.2

  

  

 

  
  

            
Present value of de�ned bene�t obligation as at start of the year      
Expense chargeable to P&L      
Remeasurements chargeable in other comprehensive income      
Bene�ts paid      
Bene�ts payable transferred to short term liability      
Present value of de�ned bene�t obligation as at the end of year
        

Sensitivity Analysis          
    
Signi�cant assumptions for the determination of the de�ned obligation are discount rate and expected salary 
increase. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the 
respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions 
constant.            
  
Year end sensitivity analysis (± 100 bps) on de�ned bene�t obligation

Present value of de�ned bene�t obligation       
Fair value of plan assets
      
Liability as at December 31      
      
Liability as at January 1       
Charged to statement of pro�t or loss      
Contribution by the Company      
Remeasurement loss chargeable in other comprehensive income      

Liability as at December 31      

            
 31,603,291 
 4,366,496 
 1,587,252 

 (3,828,371)
 -   

 33,728,668 
      
        

            
  31,602,113 

 5,001,355 
 (1,041,861)
 (3,958,316)

 -   
 31,603,291

      

2020 2019
RupeesNote Rupees

2020 2019
RupeesNote Rupees

  Impact on defined benefit obligation  

 Change in   Increase in  Decrease in
Assumption Assumption Assumption

  (Rupees )  (Rupees )  

Discount Rate 1%

9.2.1
9.2.2

  
Salary Rate 1%  

 33,118,264 
 34,368,321 

  183,507,387 
 (173,716,612)

 9,790,775
 

 22,477,333 
 20,332,858 

 (13,641,043)
 (19,378,373)

 9,790,775
 

 197,213,194 
 (174,735,861)

 22,477,333 

 35,360,142 
 21,478,160 

 (24,043,484)
 (10,317,485)

 22,477,333 
 

34,368,321
33,107,198 

Risk exposure

Gratuity 

The risk exposure of the scheme is same as the risk exposure to the company. 



KSB Pakistan / Annual Report 2020 Financial Statements 79

Present value of de�ned bene�t obligation as at start of the year      
Current Service Cost       
Interest cost        
Bene�ts paid       
Actuarial gain from changes in �nancial assumptions       
Experience Adjustment
       
Present value as at year end       
       
The movement in fair value of plan assets is as follows:       

Balance of De�ned Bene�t Obligation as at December 31,2019      
Total Company's Contribution during the year       
Interest income during the period       
Bene�ts paid       
       
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income       

Balance of De�ned Bene�t Obligation as at December 31,2020      
 
       
The amounts recognized in the statement of pro�t or loss are as follows:     
  
Current service cost        
Interest cost on de�ned bene�t obligation       
Less: Interest income on plan assets
       
Total included in salaries, wages and amenities       

       
Total remeasurement chargeable to Other Comprehensive Income     
  
Actuarial gain from changes in demographic assumptions      
Actuarial gain from changes in �nancial assumptions       
Experience Adjustments       
       
Return on plan asset, excluding interest income

Total remeasurement chargeable to Other Comprehensive Income

Plan assets are comprised of as follows:    
Debt (Investments)    
Balance at bank    

   197,213,194 
 18,571,467 
 20,329,744 

 (33,008,715)
 (481,317)

 (19,116,986)

 183,507,387

 174,735,861 
 13,641,043 
 18,568,353 

 (33,008,715)
   

 (219,930)

 173,716,612

 18,571,467 
 20,329,744 

 (18,568,353)

 20,332,858

 -   
 (481,317)

 (19,116,986)
 (19,598,303)

 219,930
 

 (19,378,373)

164,011,610 
 9,705,002

 
 173,716,612 

 

    188,260,714 
 18,385,824 
 23,474,377 

 (22,191,216)
 (646,061)

 (10,070,444)

 197,213,194

 152,900,574 
 24,043,484 
 20,382,039 

 (22,191,216)
  

 (399,020)

 174,735,861

 18,385,824 
 23,474,377 

 (20,382,039)

 21,478,162

 -   
 (646,061)

 (10,070,444)
 (10,716,505)

 399,020
 

 (10,317,485)

 168,689,428 
 6,046,433

 
 174,735,861 

2019
Note Rupees

2020
Rupees

The movement in the present value of de�ned bene�t 
obligation is as follows:

9.2.1

9.2.2

9.2.2.1
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9.2.3

9.2.4

9.2.5

  

  

  

  

  

 

  

   
   

The present value of de�ned bene�t obligation, the fair value of plan assets and the surplus or de�cit of
gratuity fund is as follows:              
 

     Rupees 

  2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

As at December 31     
      

  183,507,387 197,213,194 188,260,714   155,380,686  129,492,307 

Less:     

Fair value of plan assets  173,716,612 174,735,861 152,900,572 133,454,100   115,598,716 
 

    9,790,775  22,477,333 35,360,142  21,926,586
 

   13,893,591 
      

Experience adjustment on obligation -10% 5% 4% 4% 1%

Experience adjustment on plan assets 0.13% 0.23% -1.00% 1.00% -3.00%

Sensitivity analysis gratuity

expected salary increase as disclosed in note 4.2.1. The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based 
on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, 
while holding all other assumptions constant.

  Impact on defined benefit obligation  

 Change in   Increase in  Decrease in
Assumption Assumption Assumption

  (Rupees)  (Rupees)  

Discount Rate 1%
Salary Rate 1%

 174,671,775 
 193,767,783 

193,520,933
 174,291,292 

Risk exposure
           
Through its de�ned bene�t gratuity scheme, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most 
signi�cant of which are detailed below:

Changes in market yields on Government bonds - The discount rate used to compute the plan liabilities is 
based on the Government bond yields. A decrease in Government bond yields will increase the plan liabilities. 
            
In�ation risk - The Company's gratuity obligation is linked to the salary of the members of the scheme. 
Therefore, increases in the salaries due to higher in�ation will increase the plan liabilities.    
           
Employee turnover - The plan obligations are to provide bene�ts for the period of employment of the 
members. Therefore, lower employee turnover will increase the plan liabilities.

Life expectancy - The plan obligations are to provide bene�ts for the period of employment of the members, 
so increases in life expectancy will result in an increase in plan liabilities.      
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The present value of de�ned bene�t obligation, the fair value of plan assets and the surplus or de�cit of
gratuity fund is as follows:              
 

The amounts recognized in Statement of Financial Position is as follows:
Present value of de�ned bene�t obligation

Closing net liability        
        
The movement in the Present Value of the De�ned Bene�t 
Obligation is as follows: 
       
Present value of de�ned bene�t obligation as at start of the year      
Current Service Cost        
Interest cost         
Bene�ts paid        
Actuarial gain from changes in �nancial assumptions       
Acturial gain on Experience Adjustment        

Present value of de�ned bene�t obligation as at year end      
  
        
The amounts recognized in the statement of pro�t or loss 
are as follows: 
Current service cost         
Net Interest cost for the year        
Actuarial gain from changes in �nancial assumptions       
Acturial gain on Experience Adjustment        

Total included in salaries, wages and amenities       
 
        
Present value of de�ned bene�t obligation as at start of the year      
Expense chargeable to P&L        
Bene�ts paid        
Bene�ts payable transferred to short term liability       
 
Present value of de�ned bene�t obligation as at year end      
  
        
      

2019
Note Rupees

2020
Rupees

Accumulated compensated absences 

   
   

  Impact on defined benefit obligation  

 Change in   Increase in  Decrease in
Assumption Assumption Assumption

  (Rupees)  (Rupees)  

Discount Rate 1%
Salary Rate 1%

  26,871,046 
 30,789,688 

 

 30,789,688 
 26,839,158 

 
28,704,078

 
 28,704,078

 36,610,524 
 824,411 

 3,839,992 
 (4,954,521)

 (26,587)
 (7,589,741)

 28,704,078

 824,411 
3,839,992
 (26,587)

 (7,589,741)

 (2,951,925)

 36,610,524 
 (2,951,925)
 (4,954,521)

 -
   

 28,704,078 

 
 

 
 36,610,524

 
 36,610,524 

 33,890,537 
 949,687 

 4,307,011 
 (2,769,568)

 (42,990)
 275,847

 
 36,610,524

 949,687 
 4,307,011 

 (42,990)
 275,847

 
 5,489,555

 33,890,537 
 5,489,555 

 (2,769,568)
 -

   
 36,610,524 

 
Sensitivity Analysis          
    
Signi�cant assumptions for the determination of the de�ned obligation are discount rate and expected salary 
increase. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the 
respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions 
constant.            
  Year end sensitivity analysis (± 100 bps) on de�ned bene�t obligation

9.3

9.3.1

9.3.2

9.3.1
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Risk exposure 
        
The risk exposure of the scheme is same as the risk exposure to the company

Deferred tax liabilities

 

The liabilities for deferred tax comprises temporary 
differences relating to:        
        
Accelerated tax depreciation         
Accumulated compensated absences        
Ex-gratia        
Unused tax Losses        
        
Net deferred tax liability at the year end        

        
The gross movement in net deferred tax liability during the 
year is as follows:        
        
Opening Balance        
(Charged) / Credited to statement of pro�t or loss        
Credited to other comprehensive income        

Closing balance        

2020 2019
RupeesNote Rupees

90,202,800 
 (7,371,948)
 (9,122,654)

 (55,746,034)

 17,962,164

 57,884,316 
 (45,081,577)

 5,159,425
 

 17,962,164 
 

 98,225,800 
 (9,578,000)
 (7,663,820)

 (23,099,664)

 57,884,316

82,929,982
 (25,294,324)

248,658

57,884,316
 

Short term finances - secured         
     
The credit facilities available to the Company from various commercial banks aggregate to Rs 3,191.44 
million (2019: Rs 3,370.00 million). These include letters of guarantee, letters of credit, and cash �nance 
facilities, which can be used interchangeably. Furthermore, guidance limit amounting to Rs 168.00 million 
(2019: 168.00 million) has also been obtained. Moreover, as at December 31, 2020 the Company has unuti-
lized credit facilities amounting to Rs 1,305.53 million (2019: Rs 1,258.03 million).   
           
Mark up on cash �nance ranges from 3% to 15.16% (2019: 3% to 15.3%) per annum as per agreements 
with banks. While mark up on export �nance is charged at SBP rate plus 1.00% (2019: 1.00%) per annum. 
            
The credit facilities are secured by way of �rst pari passu charge over all present and future current assets of 
the Company amounting to Rs. 3,747 million (2019: Rs 3,747 million) and the guidance limit is secured by 
way of ranking charge amounting to Rs. 556.00 million (2019: Rs. 556.00 million).   
           

9.3.3

10

10.1

11

The Company has not recognized deferred tax asset amounting to Rs 89.12 million(2019: 44.85)in respect
of minimum tax under section 113 of the Incum Tax Ordinance, 2001 as suf�cient taxable pro�ts may not 
be available to set off before these are set to expire in the year 2025.
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Trade & Other Payables 

 
 

 

Trade creditors include amount due to holding company of Rs 153.02 million (2019: Rs 124.55 million) and 
associated undertakings of Rs 68.85 million (2019: Rs 61.33 million).     
         
Accrued liabilities include amount due to holding company of Rs 27.35 million (2019: Rs 31.06 million) and 
associated undertakings of Rs 11.67 million (2019: Rs 10.97 million).     
         

2019
Note Rupees

2020
Rupees

Trade creditors    
Accrued liabilities    
Advances from customers    
Workers' pro�t participation fund    
Workers' welfare fund    
Rent received in advance    
Accrued �nance cost    
Other liabilities    

 701,388,697 
 342,417,211 
 241,147,895 

 1,325,091 
 2,386,026 
 1,224,109 

 18,154,767 
 85,182,202

 
 1,393,225,998 

 12.1 
12.2 

12.3
12.4 

 

 619,436,790 
 342,380,928 
 320,229,129 

 6,345,709 
 16,611,220 
 3,770,992 

 35,889,890 
 58,056,039

 
 1,402,720,697 

Workers' profit participation fund    
 

2019
Note Rupees

2020
Rupees

Balance at beginning of the year    
Allocation for the period     
Interest payable on funds utilized by the company  
    
Less: Amount paid during the period
 
Balance at the end of the period

Workers' Welfare Fund    
    
Balance at beginning of the year    
Provision for the year    
    
Less: Amount adjusted during the year   
 
Balance at the end of the year

 6,345,709 
 1,244,030 

 81,061 
 7,670,800 

 (6,345,709)

 1,325,091 

 16,611,220 
 -   

 16,611,220 
 (14,225,194)

 2,386,026 

  42,880,930 
 2,386,026 

 45,266,956 
 (28,655,736)

 16,611,220 
 

13,880,828 
 6,279,016 

 66,693 
 20,226,537 

 (13,880,828)

 6,345,709 

 
32

 

Contract Liabilities     
 
Opening contract liability     
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract   
liability balance at the beginning of the period   
Contract liability arised during the year

Closing contract liability     
 

      
 8,486,428 

 6,650,570 
 1,044,124

 
 2,879,982

      
  20,164,000 

 11,677,572 
 -

   
 8,486,428 13.1

12

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

13
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This represents contract liability related to long term projects

Movement in provisions for other liabilities and charges during the year is as follows:          

Due to provident fund 

The �gures for 2020 are based on the un-audited �nancial statements of the Provident Fund. Investments out 
of Provident Fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 
2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

14.1

14.2

Balance at beginning of the year   
Contribution Due    
Less: Amount paid during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Disclosure related to provident fund

Size of the fund    
Cost of investments made    
Percentage of investments made

Fair value of investments    

Breakup of investments

Defence Savings Certi�cates  
Term Deposit Receipts  
Mutual Funds 

Provision for other liabilities & charges

Bonus to employees  
Sales incentive scheme  

Balance as at January 1, 2020   
Provisions made during the year   
Less: payments/adjustments made during the year

Balance as at December 31, 2020   
   
  

 47,778,980 
 43,000,000 
 (47,778,980)

 43,000,000 
      

  

 24,410,968 
 23,442,933 

 (24,410,968)

 23,442,933 
      

  

 72,189,948 
 66,442,933 

 (72,189,948)

 66,442,933 
      

  

 43,000,000 
 23,442,933

 
 66,442,933 

  

  47,778,980 
 24,410,968

 
 72,189,948 

  

 -   
 55,000,000 

 121,000,000

 176,000,000 

 10,000,000 
 55,000,000 

 126,000,000

191,000,000 

0%
31%
69%

5%
29%
66%

 223,253,573 
 176,000,000 

79%

 209,741,193 
    

 242,126,111 
 191,000,000 

79%

 228,659,227 
    

4,389,980 
49,448,960 

(49,530,139)

 4,308,801 

4,168,394 
 53,307,967 

 (53,086,381)

 4,389,980 

2020 2019
RupeesNote Rupees

2020 2019
RupeesNote Rupees

20192020
Rupees Rupees

20192020
%%

15.2 
15.3 

 Bonus to  Sales incentive  Total 
employees scheme

 Rupees  Rupees  Rupees

13.1

14

14.1

14.2

14.3

15

15.1
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Movement in provisions for other liabilities and charges during the year is as follows:          

 
 

 

Bonus to employees          
    
This provision represents bonus to unionized and management staff as approved by the Board of Directors. 
            
Sales incentive scheme          
    
The sales incentive is payable to staff in consideration of achieving speci�c target in a stipulated time period. 
All provisions as at December 31, 2020 are expected to be utilized in the next �nancial year.   
           
Contingencies and commitments         
     
Contingencies           
   
The Company has issued guarantees of Rs 829.28 million (2019: Rs 853.94 million) against the performance 
of various contracts.          
    
The Finance Act, 2017 has amended Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and introduced tax on 
every public company retrospectively from Tax Year 2017 at the rate of 7.5% of its accounting pro�t before 
tax for the year. However, this tax shall not apply in case of a public company, which distributes at least 
40% of its after tax pro�ts within six (6) months of the end of the tax year through cash or bonus shares.

The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting dated March 21, 2017 proposed a �nal cash 
dividend of Rs 112.20 million (i.e. 29.71% of after tax pro�ts) for the �nancial year ended December 31, 
2016, approved by the shareholders of the Company in the Annual General Meeting held on April 25, 2017 
prior to the aforementioned enactment, which is lower than the minimum distribution rate.   
           
The Company has �led Constitutional Petition (CP) before Lahore High Court (LHC) during the year 2018, 
to challenge the vires of Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and management believes that it has 
meritorious grounds to �le this writ petition and is con�dent of its outcome in the Company's favour. 
Accordingly, no provision has been made against the same in these �nancial statements.   
           
During the year ended December 31, 2018, National Accountability Bureau (NAB) initiated an inquiry 
related to the project undertaken with Punjab Saaf Pani Company (PSPC) by the Company for supply of 116 
�ltration plants in year ended December 2015. The Company �led a writ petition in the Lahore High Court 
and furnished the required deposit of Rs 60 million till completion of further inquiry.The matter is pending 
adjudication at Accountability Court, Lahore. Management, in consultation with their legal advisor, is 
con�dent that no �nancial liability is expected in this regard. Consequently, no provision in this regard has 
been made in these �nancial statements.        
      
The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue ('DCIR') has issued various orders relating to tax year 2015, 
2016 and raised demands, including default surcharge aggregating to Rs 18.24 million against the Company 
under sections 161 of Income Tax Ordinance 2001 ('ITO 2001') on account of non-withholding of taxes 
while making certain payments. Being aggrieved the Company �led appeals with the Commissioner Inland 
Revenue Appeals, which has been decided in favour of the Company on certain issues and certain issues have 
been remanded back vide order dated November 27, 2020 and January 29, 2021 relating to tax year 2016 
and 2015 respectively. The management and the taxation expert of the Company believes that there are 
meritorious ground available to defend the foregoing demand. Consequently, no provision has been recorded 
in these �nancial statements.          
     
The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue ('AdCIR') under section 122 of ITO 2001 vide order dated 
April 30, 2012 in respect of tax year 2011, raised a demand of Rs 22.36 million on account of disallowance 
of certain expenditures and tax credit. Being aggrieved, the Company �led appeal before the Commissioner 
Inland Revenue (Appeals) which was partially decided in Company's favour vide order dated November 8, 
2012. Being aggrieved the Company �led an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue ('ATIR'), 
which was decided in Company’s favour on February 19, 2019 and remanded back the amount of Rs 6.80 
million. The remand back proceedings have not yet been initiated. The management and the taxation expert 
 

 72,189,948 
 66,442,933 

 (72,189,948)

 66,442,933 
      

  

15.2

15.3

16

16.1

16.1.1

16.1.2

16.1.3

16.1.4

16.1.5
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of the Company believes that there are meritorious ground available to defend the foregoing demand. 
Consequently, no provision has been recorded in these �nancial statements.    
          
Subsequent to the year ended December 31, 2020, the additional Commissioner Inland Revenue raised 
demand of Rs. 350.8 million vide order dated January 12, 2021 in respect of Tax year 2015 under section 
122 of ITO 2001 on account of disallowances of certain expenditures and proration of expenses. Being 
aggrieved the Company �led an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals), which is pending 
hearing. The management and the taxation expert of the Company believe that there are meritorious ground 
available to defend the foregoing demand. Consequently, no provision has been recorded in these �nancial 
statements. 

Commitments

Letters of credit other than for capital expenditure approximately Rs 116.73 million (2019: Rs 171.53 
million).            

  
            
  
            
  

16.2

16.1.6
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The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated 
as follows:     
    
Cost of sales    
Distribution and marketing expenses    
Administration expenses    

2020 2019
RupeesNote Rupees

 

137,430,464 
 4,317,078 
 8,674,741

 
 150,422,283 

 

 141,368,746 
 8,364,550 
 5,221,983

 
 154,955,279 

29
30
31

Freehold land and building on owned land represents 89,157 square meters of factory land situated at Hazara 
Road, Hassanabdal and 1,163 square meters of head of�ce situated at 16/2 Sir Agha Khan Road, Lahore. 
          

 Disposal of certain items of property, plant and equipment

Year ended December 31, 2020                    Rupees 

Particulars    Accumulated  Book  Sale   Gain/(Loss) Mode of
of assets Sold to   Cost   depreciation   value   proceeds  on disposal disposal
       

Fixed assets sold having book value 
   greater than Rs 500,000        

       Company Policy
 

       
       

 

Toyota Fortuner 
LE 15 707 Saji Mahmood Awan 

Directors

 
      

       
       

5,400,894  4,590,760  810,134  1,669,000  858,866 

Laptop Sony Vaio Saji Mahmood Awan 

Match Engineering PVT Ltd
Match Engineering PVT Ltd
Mr. Salman Bashir Third Party
Insurance Claim Received 

Directors

  

        
Employees: 

     
     
     

     
     

     
     
     

      

       
       

       

       
        

Outsiders:

 

     

Company Policy

      

 

     
      

     
      

      
      

      
      

      
      

      

Other items sold having book 
   value less than Rs 500,000

Fixed assets sold having book value    
   less than Rs 500,000

 2,245,605 
 1,845,500 
 1,830,740 
 2,487,285 
 2,395,727 
 1,554,525 
 1,903,293 
 1,363,523 
 2,493,500 
 1,503,243 
 1,562,740 

  1,254,478 
 653,121 
 908,150 
 990,000 

 81,840,091 

 112,609,815 

 1,066,306 
 555,153 
 454,075 
 495,000 

 81,376,977 

 98,442,624 

 188,172 
 97,968 

 454,075 
 495,000 

 463,114 

 14,167,195 

 400,000 
 400,000 
 505,000 
 875,000 

 731,000 

 19,834,885 

  211,828 
 302,032 
 50,925 

 380,000 

 267,886 

 5,667,690 

199,000 
 

199,000 
 

-
 

 -   
 

  20,000 

 584,793 
 922,750 
 915,370 

 1,140,006 
 773,620 
 777,263 
 951,647 
 681,762 

 1,246,750 
 751,622 
 781,370 

  1,660,812 
 922,750 
 915,370 

 1,347,279 
 1,622,107 

 777,263 
 951,647 
 681,762 

 1,246,750 
 751,622 
 781,370 

   1,948,298 
 1,391,780 

 971,000 
 2,076,771 
 2,171,986 
 1,074,160 
 1,405,480 

 742,860 
 1,578,750 

 895,180 
 966,860

    287,486 
 469,030 
 55,630 

 729,492 
 549,879 
 296,897 
 453,833 
 61,098 

 332,000 
 143,558 
 185,490 

Company Policy
 Company Policy
Company Policy

 Company Policy
 Company Policy
 Company Policy
 Company Policy
 Company Policy
 Company Policy
 Company Policy
 Company Policy

Company Policy
 Company Policy
Company Policy

 Company Policy
 

 Company Policy

Toyota Corolla Altis  RI-57 I  shtiaq Ahmad 
Toyota Corolla GLI LEB-15-1141 Taimoor Rai 
Toyota Corolla GLi 1300CC RIA-16-536 Shahzad umer 
Toyota Corolla 1800CC RIE-16-53 Ashraf Sohail 
Honda BRV 1500CC  LEB-5416 Javed Umer 
Honda City Manual  KHI BFB-576 Ali asad 
Toyota Corolla GLI 1300CC- LEC-16-3904 Uzair Sajid 
Suzuki Swift 1328CC  LEH-16-7004 Zia Ullah 
Corolla Altis Grande  LEF-16-2389 Faryal Zafar 
Suzuki Swift 1328CC  RIE-16-98 Ali Raza Shah 
Honda City 1300CC  LE-17-1224 Adeel Ali Siddiqi 
  

Employees: 

 

Dell Laptop   Mamoon Riaz   
Laptop Dell Inspiron 5537  Afzaal Ali

 100,000 
 78,400 

 100,000 
 78,400 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 11,760 

 -   
 11,760 

Company Policy
Company Policy

Moulding Macine Bmm 
 Moulding Macine Bmm 
Faw X-pv Dual A/c E� 
Suzuki Cultus Ayl-556   

17.2

17.3

17.4
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 Year ended December 31, 2019                    Rupees 

Particulars    Accumulated  Book   Mode of
of assets Sold to   Cost   depreciation   value  

 Sale  
 proceeds  

Gain/(Loss)
on disposal  disposal

       

        
       

 

       
       

  
      

       
       

  
Fixed assets sold having book value   
   less than Rs 500,000         

Employees: 
     

     
     

     
     

     
     
     

     

      
       

       

       
        

Outsiders:

 

     
      

 

     
      

     
      

      
            
      

      
      

      

Other items sold having book 
   value less than Rs 500,000

Fixed assets sold having book value   
      greater than Rs 500,000

 54,500 
 67,385 
 54,500 

  69,465 
 908,150 
 854,165 

 

 34,733 
 454,075 
 478,332 

 

 34,732 
 454,075 
 375,833 

 

 17,000 
 426,000 
 565,000 

 

  (17,732)
 (28,075)
 189,167 

 
 

 1,770,500 
 1,325,040 
 1,752,500 
 1,770,500 
 1,815,890 
 1,824,000 
 1,439,065 
 1,066,601 
 1,282,000 
 1,662,000 
 1,549,865 
 1,691,750 
 2,025,090 
 4,820,233 

  885,250 
 662,520 
 876,250 
 885,250 
 718,789 
 912,000 
 791,485 
 533,301 
 641,000 
 831,000 
 774,932 
 845,875 

 1,012,545 
 2,304,674 

   885,250 
 662,520 
 876,250 
 885,250 

 1,097,101 
 912,000 
 647,580 
 533,300 
 641,000 
 831,000 
 774,933 
 845,875 

 1,012,545 
 2,515,559 

    1,307,780 
 760,660 

 1,287,620 
 1,307,780 
 1,550,847 
 1,037,769 

 706,320 
 507,500 
 794,760 

 1,220,360 
 1,052,360 
 1,206,920 
 1,049,759 
 2,515,559

 422,530 
 98,140 

 411,370 
 422,530 
 453,746 
 125,769 
 58,740 

 (25,800)
 153,760 
 389,360 
 277,427 
 361,045 
 37,214 

 -   

  27,250 
 11,231 
 27,250 

 

   27,250 
 56,154 
 27,250

 6,500 
 50,000 
 8,100

 (20,750)
 (6,154)

 (19,150)

Company Policy
 Company Policy
Company Policy

Company Policy
 Company Policy
Company Policy

Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy

  1,093,810 
 1,327,000 
 1,129,000 
 1,327,000 
 1,327,000 
 1,129,000 
 1,129,000 
 1,327,000 
 4,225,000 
 3,809,500 

 444,200 

 46,070,709 
 

 546,904 
 414,687 
 341,052 
 400,865 
 400,865 
 329,292 
 329,292 
 387,042 

 1,232,292 
 753,964 

 444,200 

 19,288,197 

 546,906 
 912,313 
 787,948 
 926,135 
 926,135 
 799,708 
 799,708 
 939,958 

 2,992,708 
 3,055,536 

 -   

 26,782,512 

 555,000 
 912,313 
 787,948 
 926,135 
 926,135 
 799,708 
 799,708 
 939,958 

 2,992,708 
 3,055,536 

 43,000 

 30,116,743 

 8,094 
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 43,000 

 3,334,231 

Company Policy
As per terms of contract 
As per terms of contract
As per terms of contract
As per terms of contract
As per terms of contract
As per terms of contract
As per terms of contract
As per terms of contract
As per terms of contract

Company Policy

Yamaha Motor Cycle Imran Ali 
 Honda CD 70  Syed Tariq Rasheed 
Yamaha Motor Cycle Khurram Shehzad 

Outsiders 
Honda Cd 70   Munir Masih 
FAW X-PV   Imran Ilyas 
Suzuki Cultus Vxr  Zohaib Khan  
 

Employees:

 

 

Toyota Corolla GLI Mudassar Ali 
Suzuki Swift DLX  Kamil Masood 
Toyota Corolla XLI  Saad bin Emaad 
Toyota Corolla GLI  Attique Ahmed 
Toyota Corolla GLi  Sher Nadeem 
Toyota Corolla GLI Automatic  Khalid Yous� 
Toyota Corolla Gli  Khalid Yous� 
Suzuki Cultus   Tauseef Babar 
Suzuki Swift 1328 CC Najam Saqib 
Honda City Aspire1500 CC Alam Syed 
Honda City 1300CC Hasan Bilal 
Honda City Aspire 1300 CC Ghulam Rasul 
Toyota Corolla GLI 1600CC Matraf Rasul 
BMW SDRIVE 18i  Mamoon Riaz 

MFAW Car 
Swift (DLX) 1300cc 
Cultus 1000cc 
Swift (DLX) 1300cc 
Swift (DLX) 1300cc 
Cultus 1000cc 
Cultus 1000cc 
Swift (DLX) 1300cc
Toyota REVO 4x4
Toyota Hiace 2500cc
   

Salman Aslam 
Transfer to Karachi water and sewerage Board 
Transfer to Karachi water and sewerage Board 
Transfer to Karachi water and sewerage Board  
Transfer to Karachi water and sewerage Board 
Transfer to Karachi water and sewerage Board 
Transfer to Karachi water and sewerage Board 
Transfer to Karachi water and sewerage Board 
Transfer to Karachi water and sewerage Board 
Transfer to Karachi water and sewerage Board
   

Rupees

Investment property     
    
Net carrying value basis    
    
Year ended December 31, 2020    

Opening net book value (NBV)    
Additions (at cost)    
Disposals (at NBV)    
Depreciation charge
    
Closing net book value (NBV)    

 

-   
 -   
 -   
 -

   
 -   

    

18
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Rupees
Gross Carrying value     
    
As at December 31, 2020    
    
Cost     
Accumulated depreciation

Net book value (NBV)    
    
Depreciation Rate % per annum    

Net carrying value basis    
    
Year ended December 31, 2019    

Opening net book value (NBV)    
Additions (at cost)    
Disposals (at NBV)    
Depreciation charge
    
Closing net book value (NBV)    

Gross Carrying value     
    
As at December 31, 2019    
    
Cost     
Accumulated depreciation
    
Net book value (NBV)    
    
Depreciation Rate % per annum 

 4,400,000 
 (4,400,000)

 -

 159,912 
- 

 -   
 (159,912)

 -

 4,400,000 
 (4,400,000)

 -
 
   

Rupees

The fair value of investment property amounts to Rs 64.79 million (2019: Rs 50.48 million) as per valuation 
carried out by independent valuer at the reporting date.       
      

Intangible Assets     
Net carrying value basis           
    
Year ended December 31, 2020    
Opening net book value (NBV)    
Additions (at cost)    
Disposals (at NBV)    
Amortisation charge
    
Closing net book value (NBV)

Gross carrying value basis
As at December 31, 2020  
  
    

 17,651,049 
 5,358,768 

 -   
 (8,926,766)

 14,083,051 

Cost    
Accumulated amortisation  
Net book value (NBV)  

Amortization Rate % per annum    
    

 42,057,302   
 (27,974,251) 

14,083,051 
  

 33.33%
 

4.85%

Note

19.1

18.1

19

4.85%
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The cost of fully amortised software which are still in use as at December 31, 2020 is Rs 15.844 million 
(2019: Rs 13.848 million).          
    

Reconciliation of the carrying amount of capital work in progress to:

Capital work in progress  
   
Advance for land  
Building  
Plant & Machinery  
Others  

Gross carrying value basis     
   
As at December 31, 2019      
  
Cost        
Accumulated amortisation      
  
Net book value (NBV)      
  
Amortization Rate % per annum     
   
The amortization charge for the year has been allocated as follows:
         

Cost of sales       
Distribution and marketing      
Administration expenses

  36,698,534 
 (19,047,485)

 17,651,049 
 

33.33%

2019
Note Rupees

2020
Rupees

2019
Note Rupees

2020
Rupees

 4,855,609 
 4,003,415 

 67,742
 

 8,926,766 

 1,606,403 
 2,307,482 

 -
 

 3,913,885 

 229,800 
 14,797,484 

 511,528 
 8,153,051

 
 23,691,863 

 229,800 
 -   

 6,669,000 
9,972,233

 
 16,871,033 

 29
30
31

 

 

 
 

 
Advance for land  
Building  
Plant & Machinery  
Advance for vehicles  
Others
  
Balance as at December 31 

  

2020   

Balance as at
 December 

31,2019

Balance as at
 December 

31,2020
Additions Transfers

   

 

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 229,800 
 -   

 6,669,000 
 -   

 9,972,233
 

 16,871,033 

 -   

 (6,669,000)
 (5,980,942)

 (25,407,106)

 (38,057,048)

  -   
 14,797,483 

 511,528 
 5,980,942 

 23,587,925
 

 44,877,878 

 229,800 
 14,797,483 

 511,528 
 -   

 8,153,052
 

 23,691,863 

19.1

19.2

20

20.1

20.1

Net carrying value basis  

As at December 31, 2019 

Opening net book value (NBV)  
Additions (at cost)   
Disposals (at NBV)   
Amortisation charge   

Closing net book value (NBV)

 2,451,988 
 19,112,946 

 -   
 (3,913,885)

 17,651,049 



Financial Statements92 KSB Pakistan / Annual Report 2020

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

  
  

 

These represent interest free loans to Executives and Director. Loan to Director, comprises of loan to Chief 
Financial Of�cer, which has been made in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2017. 
Loans are given for house building, purchase of vehicles and for use in marriages of employees and their 
dependents. These are repayable in monthly installments over a period of 24 to 36 months (2019: 24 to 36 
months). 

2019
Note Rupees

2020
Rupees

  -   
 888,405 

 2,013,130
 

 2,901,535

 (1,559,337)
 1,342,198

 69,566,944 
 70,909,142 

 
 

 83,302 
 2,208,120 
 2,848,987

 
 5,140,409

 (3,020,864)
 2,119,545

67,136,568
69,256,113 

 
 

 
 

 
Advance for land    
Building    
Plant & Machinery   
Advance for vehicles   
Others 
   
Balance as at December 31   
 
 

Long term loans and deposits   
 
Loans to employees - considered good  
  
Directors    
Executives    
Others

    
    
    
Less: Receivable within one year

    
Security deposits    
    
    
Reconciliation of the carrying amount of loans 
to:

    
Balance as at January 1    

Transfers to executives during the year  
  
Disbursements during the year   
 
Less: Repayments during the year

Balance as at December 31  

    
    
 

  

2019   

Balance as at
 December 

31,2018

Balance as at
 December 

31,2019
Additions Transfers

   

 

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees   

   

   

   

   

   

 229,800 
 11,464,012 
 4,598,356 
 1,535,000 

 11,384,647
 

 29,211,815 

 -   
 (19,350,219)
 (10,598,356)
 (1,535,000)

 (34,554,086)

 (66,037,661)

 -   
 7,886,207 

 12,669,000 
 -   

 33,141,672
 

 53,696,879 

 229,800 
 -   

 6,669,000 
 -   

 9,972,233
 

 16,871,033 

21.1
21.1 

 

26
 

21.2

                            D i r e c t o r                          E x e c u t i v e s 

2020 2019 2020 2019

 R u p e e s
   

   

    

   

   

    

   

 83,302 

 -   

 -   

 (83,302)

 -   

 1,083,310 

 -   

 -   

 (1,000,008)

 83,302 

 4,399,733 

 -   

 -   

 (2,189,613)

 2,210,120 

 2,210,120 

 -   

 -   

 (1,321,715)

 888,405 

21

21.1

21.1.1
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The maximum aggregate amount due from Director and Executives at any time during the year was Rs 0.08 
Million (2019: Rs 1.08 million) and Rs 2.21 million (2019: Rs 2.20 million) respectively.    
           
Security deposits includes Rs 60 million deposited with Lahore High Court on account of an inquiry initiated 
by the National Accountability Bureau (NAB) for supply of �ltration plants to Punjab Saaf Pani Company 
(PSPC) by the Company.

Most of the items of stores, spare parts and loose tools are of inter-changeable nature and can be used as 
machine spares or consumed as stores. Accordingly, it is not practical to distinguish stores from spares until 
their actual usage. 

This includes stock in transit amounting to Rs 38.38 million (2019: Rs 86.19 million).

The reversal of provision pertains to those speci�c provision against items in Work In Process which have 
either been sold or consumed during the year. 

2019
Note Rupees

2020
Rupees

 115,804,122
 

 115,804,122 

  73,912,997
 

 73,912,997 
 

Stores, spares and loose tools    
    
Stores, spares and loose tools    

 
 

2019
Note Rupees

2020
Rupees

2019
Note Rupees

2020
Rupees

2019
Note Rupees

2020
Rupees

  423,189,241 
 241,578,479 
 56,711,510 

 721,479,230 
 (44,956,003)

 676,523,227 

Stock in trade 

22.1 

23.1 

23.2 
 

23.2.1 
 

Raw Materials  
Work in process  
Finished goods  
 
Provision for obsolesence 

Provision for obsolescence

Trade debts

Opening provision    
Provision for the year    
Less: reversal of speci�c provision   
 
Closing provision    
 

 52,731,491 
 -   

 (7,775,488)

 44,956,003 
  

161,513,743 
 4,147,971 

 1,231,250,472 
 1,396,912,186

 
 98,650,981 

 1,495,563,167 

 (98,650,981)
 1,396,912,186 

 
  

 274,853,129 
 419,891 

 1,030,259,599 
 1,305,532,619 

 129,490,357 
 1,435,022,976 

 (129,490,357)
 1,305,532,619

 52,900,000 
 9,409,271 

 (9,577,780)

 52,731,491 
  

   512,784,241 
 277,209,525 
 56,752,430 

 846,746,196 
 (52,731,491)

 794,014,705 
 

Considered good    
Related parties - KSB group companies   
Related parties - common directorship   
Others    
 
   
Considered doubtful    
  
  
Less: Loss allowance    

24.1 & 24.2 
24.1 & 24.2 

24.3 

22

22.1

23

23.1

23.2

24

23.2.1

21.1.2

21.2
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2019
Rupees

2020
Rupees

 
 

Related parties - KSB group companies

    
KSB Pumps And Valves (Pty), South Africa  
KSB Taiwan Co., Limited    
KSB Australia     
KSB Italia     
KSB Pompa, Armatür Sanayi, Turkey  
KSB Sverige AB,Sweden    
KSB ZAMBIA LIMITED    
KSB Service LLC     
KSB ITUR ,Spain     
PT KSB Indonesia     
KSB Service GmbH    
KSB Pumps and valves Limited, Slovenia  
KSB SE & Co. KGaA, Germany   
KSB Singapore (Asia Paci�c), Singapore  
KSB Pumpy Armatury s.r.o., koncern, Czech Republic 
KSB Polska Sp.      
KSB Chile S.A.     
PT. KSB Sales Indonesia    
KSB Malaysia Pumps & Valves Sdn Bhd  
KSB Pumps Arabia Ltd. Saudi Arabia  
KSB Finland Oy     
KSB Inc.      
KSB Pumps Inc. Canada    
KSB Service Belgium S.A./N.V.   
KSB Philippines, Inc.    
KSB Limited     
 
      
Related parties - common directorship  
Security Papers Limited    
  

   

   

   

 

   

    

   

   
   

 

 29,786,279 
 26,970,339 
 19,615,433 
 18,134,530 
 12,150,283 
 11,260,878 
 7,591,117 
 7,187,283 
 6,883,941 
 5,544,704 
 4,167,788 
 3,162,134 
 2,978,436 
 3,764,950 

 943,895 
 531,234 
 548,541 
 279,158 
 12,820 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -

 161,513,743

 4,147,971 
4,147,971 

 165,661,714 

   

  32,316,218 
 467,603 
 21,765 

 3,372,393 
 -   
 -   
 -   

 7,661,075 
 15,183,077 
 11,822,135 
 10,929,028 
 5,549,723 
 4,542,900 

 35,115,158 
 -   

 13,848,639 
 14,625,892 

 270,620 
 1,615,640 

 87,168,749 
 10,719,150 
 8,932,625 
 7,059,104 
 3,413,972 

 203,681 
 13,982

 
 274,853,129 

 419,891 
419,891 

 275,273,020 

   
The maximum aggregate amount of trade receivable from related parties at the end of any month during the 
year was Rs 325.39 million (2019: Rs 327.42 million). No interest has been charged on the amounts due 
from related parties.          
    These customers have no history of default.              
Movement of loss allowance recognized in pro�t or loss during the year is as follows:   
           

Opening as at January 1     
Increase during the year     
Less: Write offs during the year    
Less: Speci�c provision written back during the year  
    
Closing as at December 31     
 

 129,490,357 
 23,518,930 
 (4,358,306)

 (50,000,000)

 98,650,981 
  
  
  

 119,927,555 
 12,413,269 

 -   
 (2,850,467)

 129,490,357 
  
  
  

2019
Note Rupees

2020
Rupees

 24.3.1 

24.1

24.1.1

24.2

24.3

Due from Related Parties - Considered good
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The write back of provision pertains to reversal of speci�c provision made in prior period.   

For age analysis of trade debts refer to note 43.1.2.1.1       
       
Included in trade debts is an amount of Rs 101.20 million (2019: Rs 101.20 million)receivable from Punjab 
Saaf Pani Company. The Company has �led writ petition in the Honorable Lahore High Court on September 
16, 2020 for recovery of the outstanding balances from the aforementioned company.

The closing loss allowances for contract assets as at December 31, 2020 reconcile to the opening loss 
allowances as follows:          
    

2019
Note Rupees

2020
Rupees

  735,882,090 
 (44,545,396)

 691,336,694 
 

 815,049,887 
 (1,041,794)

814,008,093 
 

2019
Note Rupees

2020
Rupees

 1,041,794 
 43,503,602

44,545,396 
 

 1,815,156 
 (773,362)

 1,041,794 

 
2019

Note Rupees
2020

Rupees

Contract Assets  
  
Current contract assets  
Less: Loss allowance  

Opening loss allowance as at January 1    
Increase / (Decrease) in loss allowance recognised in pro�t 
or loss during the year      
Closing loss allowance as at December 31
  

 

25.1 

21 

26.1 & 26.2 

26.3  

26.4  

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 

Current portion of long term loans to employees  
  
Short term advances to employees- considered good  
Advances to suppliers and contractors    
Considered good    
Considered doubtful    
    
    
    
Trade deposits and prepayments     
Considered good    
Considered doubtful    
    

    
Claims Recoverable from Governement   
Sales tax receivable    
Income tax receivable
    
Other receivables 

    
    
    

Less: Provision for doubtful amounts   
 

 1,559,337 

 12,310,877 

 67,452,536 
 681,339 

 68,133,875 

 6,002,343 

87,362,700 
 22,420,199 

 109,782,899 

 1,060,160 

 57,828,165 
 347,243,488 
 405,071,653 

 6,197,841 
 275,000 

 6,472,841 
 610,393,985 

 (23,376,538)

 587,017,447 

  3,020,864 

 11,589,642 

47,789,569 
 482,723 

 48,272,292 

 2,483,631 

69,397,790 
 20,758,815 
 90,156,605 

 13,433,454 

 44,355,536 
 308,494,194 
 352,849,730 

 3,773,377 
 275,000 

 4,048,377 
 525,854,595 

 (21,516,538)

 504,338,057 

24.3.1

24.3.2

24.4

25

25.1

26

Due from related parties

Letters of credit, deposits and opening charges

Considered good    
Considered doubtful
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2019
Note Rupees

2020
Rupees

 
 

   

   

   

 

   

    

   

   

    

Short term advances to employees are given without any collateral security. These represent interest free 
advances to employees for the purpose of the site expenses, local travels and foreign tours . Advances to 
employees exceeding rupees one million includes advances to Mr. Khalid Yousi� Rs 2.99 million(2019: Rs 
2.99 million) and Mr. Imran Siddique Rs 0.884 million (2019: Rs 1.3 million).    
          
Short term advances to employees includes the amount due from executives of Rs 6.65 million (2019: Rs 5.07 
million).            
  

The balances in saving accounts bear mark-up which ranges from 5.5% 
to 11.25% (2019: 8% to 11.25%) per annum.        
      

Due from related parties

Holding company  
KSB SE & Co. KGaA, Germany    
  

 

  

21,516,538 
 1,860,000 

 23,376,538 
 -

 
 23,376,538 

37,140,764 
 28,519,060 
 65,659,824

 
 446,706

 

  

19,656,538 
 1,860,000 

 21,516,538 
 -

 
 21,516,538 

169,902,794 
 11,510,286 

 181,413,080 

 1,191,159
 

 5,788,233  1,661,398 

6,002,343 

 66,106,530 
 

  182,604,239 

 

214,110 

214,110 822,233

-
673,769 
148,464 

 2,483,631 

 
 

2019
Note Rupees

2020
Rupees

  3,081,049,185 
 384,887,20

3,026,363,184 
 463,831,856 

3,465,936,385 
 (510,368,010)

 3,490,195,040 
 (451,325,997)

 651,036,901

3,606,605,276 

 716,662,499 

 3,755,531,542 

 2,955,568,375 3,038,869,043

Local Sales
  
Product Sales  
Project Sales  
  

Sales

Export sales

Less: Sales Tax

26.1

26.2

26.3

26.4

27

27.1

28

28.1

DP Industries BV

27.1
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The Company’s net revenue disaggregated by pattern of revenue recognition is as follows: 

The Company’s net revenue disaggregated by pattern of revenue recognition is as follows: 

                         Export sales via confirmed LC      Export sales via contract                         Total

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

    
Foreign jurisdiction wise sales
   Asia      
   Australia      
   Africa      
   Europe      
   South America      
   North America      

     
 

 26,773,750 
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -

26,773,750 

  -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -

   
 -   

 

  82,871,282 
 54,740,437 
 66,284,922 

 404,930,941 
 9,200,575 
 6,234,994

 
 624,263,151 

 
 

   350,941,010 
 22,476,093 

 117,863,262 
 195,966,073 
 18,756,159 
 10,659,902

 
 716,662,499 

 
 
 

   109,645,032 
54,740,437 
66,284,922 

404,930,941 
9,200,575 
6,234,994

 
 651,036,901 

350,941,010 
 22,476,093 

 117,863,262 
 195,966,073 
 18,756,159 
 10,659,902

 
 716,662,499

 

2019
Rupees

2020
Rupees

Revenue recognized at a point in time   
Revenue recognized over time  
  

 3,281,589,657 
 325,015,619

 
 3,606,605,276 

 3,309,179,291 
 446,352,251

 
 3,755,531,542 

The Company’s net revenue disaggregated by pattern of 
revenue recognition is as follows: 

Product Sales  
Pumps and valves  
Castings  
 

Services
Project Sales
 

 2,376,226,833
 539,076,874

 
 2,915,303,707

 
  366,285,950 

 325,015,619 

 3,606,605,276 
 
 

 462,830,964 
 446,352,251 

 3,755,531,542 
 
 

  2,420,746,557
425,601,770

 
 2,846,348,327

 
 

The following aggregated amounts of transaction prices relate to the performance obligations from existing 
contracts that are unsatis�ed or partially unsatis�ed as at December 31, 2020:

2022 2023 Total
Rupees Rupees Rupees

Revenue expected to be recognised   125,000,000 
 

2021
Rupees

  200,000,000 
 

  46,000,000 
 

  371,000,000 
  

28.1

28.1.1

28.1.2

28.1.3

28.2

Disaggregation of revenue
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Cost of sales includes contract cost amounting to Rs 330.58 million (2019: Rs 381.07 million).  
          
 

2019
Note Rupees

2020
Rupees

 
 

Cost of goods sold  

    
Raw material consumed    
Salaries, wages, amenities and staff welfare  
Staff training    
Electricity and power    
Stores and spares consumed   
Insurance    
Travelling and conveyance     
Postage and telephone    
Printing and stationery    
Rent, rates and taxes    
Repairs and maintenance    
Legal & Professional charges   
SAP user licence fee & other IT services  
Packing expenses    
Outside services    
Depreciation on  Property, plant and equipment 
Amortization of Intangible assets   
Warranties    
Other expenses

   

   

   

 

   

    

   

   

    

17.2
19.1

29.2 
  1,657,350,481 

 318,574,272 
 144,440 

 145,042,209 
 202,918,327 

 6,627,685 
 26,762,756 
 8,427,818 
 1,466,710 
 3,665,834 

 11,047,851 
 4,288,179 

 35,636,061 
 33,462,998 

 332,071,103 
 137,430,464 

 4,855,609 
 37,205,396 
 9,438,557 

 2,976,416,750

  1,443,632,288 
 315,193,850 

 568,924 
 141,235,488 
 306,391,120 

 6,550,931 
 47,067,467 
 8,775,640 
 2,988,435 
 4,057,419 

 13,217,055 
 667,833 

 36,657,315 
 31,432,764 

 359,663,064 
 141,368,746 

 1,606,403 
 16,561,225 
 6,735,387 

 2,884,371,354

   

 8,641,338 
 11,032,957 
 (9,579,558)
10,094,737 

  
  
  1,026,471 

 3,340,025

4,366,496 
  
  
  

1,076,313 
 3,925,042

5,001,355 
  
  
  

2019
Rupees

2020
Rupees

Opening work-in-process    
Less: Closing work-in-process   
Less:Decrease in work in process   
Cost of goods manufactured    
 

Opening stock of �nished goods   
Less: Closing stock of �nished goods   
Less: decrease in �nished goods
     

 277,209,525 
 (241,578,479)

 35,631,046 
 3,012,047,796 

   
 

 399,058,980 
 (277,209,525)

 121,849,455 
 3,006,220,809 

   
   56,752,430 

 (56,711,510)
 40,920

  3,012,088,716 
 

   
 

   74,126,489 
 (56,752,430)

 17,374,059
  3,023,594,868 

 
 

Salaries, wages, amenities and staff welfare    

Gratuity fund
Current service cost    
Interest cost    
Expected return on plan assets   
 
Ex-gratia
    
Current service cost    
Interest cost    

29

29.1

29.2

 8,954,151 
 9,801,896 

 (8,952,649)
9,803,398 
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In addition to above, salaries, wages, amenities and staff welfare include Rs 10.94 million (2019: Rs 11.57 
million) in respect of provident fund contribution by the Company. 

Salaries, wages, amenities and staff welfare include following in respect of retirement and other bene�ts: 
           
 

2019
Rupees

2020
Rupees

  397,486 
 1,851,435 

 (3,672,179)

 (1,423,258)

 446,353 
 2,024,295 

 109,443
 

 2,580,091 

2019
Note Rupees

2020
Rupees

Accumulated Compensated Absences    
  
Current service cost      
Interest cost      
Loss arising on present value of de�ned bene�t obligation  
    
  

2019
Rupees

2020
Rupees

   5,322,769 
 5,826,709 

 (5,321,877)

 5,827,601 

  4,596,456 
 5,868,594 

 (5,095,510)

 5,369,540 
 

Gratuity fund
      
Current service cost      
Interest cost      
Expected return on plan asset     
 
  

 

Distribution and marketing expenses  

Salaries, wages, amenities and staff welfare   
Staff training     
Insurance    
Travelling, conveyance and representations  
Rent, rates and taxes    
Publicity charges    
Electricity, gas and water    
Postage and telephone    
Printing and stationery    
Repairs and maintenance    
Legal and professional charges   
SAP user license fee and other IT services  
Contract services    
Forwarding expenses    
Commission expenses    
Loss allowance    
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 
Amortization of Intangible assets   
Royalty and Trademark    
Other expenses    

30.3 
17.2
19.1
30.2 

30.1 
 

   136,077,788 
 462,259 
 505,100 

 10,030,762 
 4,510,988 
 3,050,764 
 2,006,140 
 3,651,372 

 649,341 
 1,204,838 
 2,010,000 

 15,333,933 
 3,330,455 

 39,070,823 
 36,307,433 
 18,882,532 
 4,317,078 
 4,003,415 

 14,259,910 
 3,603,977

 
 303,268,908 

   131,942,819 
 437,356 
 509,517 

 17,046,177 
 4,091,184 
 1,581,362 
 2,932,442 
 3,732,023 

 838,972 
 1,566,805 

 550,000 
 15,773,370 
 4,384,806 

 38,181,099 
 43,259,472 
 13,499,903 
 8,364,550 
 2,307,482 

 16,463,406 
 3,622,204

 
 311,084,949 

   
Salaries, wages, amenities and staff welfare    

29.2.1

30

30.1



of the Company believes that there are meritorious ground available to defend the foregoing demand. 
Consequently, no provision has been recorded in these �nancial statements.    
          
Subsequent to the year ended December 31, 2020, the additional Commissioner Inland Revenue raised 
demand of Rs. 350.8 million vide order dated January 12, 2021 in respect of Tax year 2015 under section 
122 of ITO 2001 on account of disallowances of certain expenditures and proration of expenses. Being 
aggrieved the Company �led an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals), which is pending 
hearing. The management and the taxation expert of the Company believe that there are meritorious ground 
available to defend the foregoing demand. Consequently, no provision has been recorded in these �nancial 
statements. 

Commitments

Letters of credit other than for capital expenditure approximately Rs 116.73 million (2019: Rs 171.53 
million).            

  
            
  
            
  

Financial Statements 100 KSB Pakistan / Annual Report 2020

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

  
  

 

In addition to above, salaries, wages, amenities and staff welfare include Rs 5.839 million (2019: Rs 5.99 
million) in respect of provident fund contribution by the Company.     
         
This represents amount due to KSB SE & Co. KGaA, having its registered of�ce situated at 67227 
Johann-Klein-Street 09, Frankenthal, Germany, on account of royalty and trademark fee. Under the trade-
mark agreement KSB SE & Co. KGaA grants exclusive rights to the Company for use of its brand name with 
certain terms and conditions.         
     

 
 

   

   

   

 

   

    

   

   

    

236,284 
 1,100,580 

 (2,182,916)

 (846,052)

  
  
  

  237,422 
 1,076,753 

 58,214
 

 1,372,389 
 

  
  
  

2019
Rupees

2020
Rupees

Salaries, wages, amenities and staff welfare

Accumulated Compensated Absences    
  
Current service cost      
Interest cost      
Loss arising on present value of de�ned bene�t obligation  
    
  

 (26,481,070)

 43,503,602 

 1,860,000 

 18,882,532 

  
  
  

 12,413,265 

 (773,362)

 1,860,000 

 

  
  
  

Rupees
2020 2019

Rupees
This represents:

Reversal of loss allowance on debtors- net of provision  
Loss allowance on contract asset    
Loss allowance on advance, deposits, prepayments and 
other receivables      
   13,499,903 

2019

Note

Rupees
2020

RupeesAdministration expenses 
 
Salaries, wages, amenities and staff welfare   
Insurance    
Travelling, conveyance and representations  
Rent, rates and taxes    
Electricity, gas and water    
Postage and telephone    
Printing and stationery    
Repairs and maintenance    
Contract services    
Professional services    
SAP user licence fee & other IT services  
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 
Amortization of Intangible assets   
Depreciation on investment property   
Other expenses 

31.1 
 

31.2 
 
 17.2
19.1
 
 
 

    127,620,427 
 714,846 

 10,059,434 
 7,013,237 
 3,076,466 
 3,440,644 
 1,772,835 
 4,479,575 
 8,295,250 
 6,156,372 

 10,365,739 
 8,674,741 

 67,743 
 -   

 13,994,814
 

 205,732,123 
 

 130,331,373 
 724,798 

 18,469,870 
 6,633,599 
 3,075,252 
 5,706,514 
 2,075,066 
 4,241,860 
 9,052,813 
 9,775,561 

 10,662,799 
 5,221,983 

 -   
 159,912 

 13,844,409
 

 219,975,809 

   

Salaries, wages, amenities and staff welfare include following in respect of retirement and other bene�ts: 
           

30.1.1

30.3

30.2

31

31.1
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2019
Rupees

2020
Rupees

 

Audit and taxation services 

Other operating expenses  

2019
Rupees

2020
Rupees

 4,294,547 
 4,701,139 

 (4,293,827)

 4,701,859 

 5,148,030 
 6,572,826 

 (5,706,971)

 6,013,885 
 

Gratuity fund
      
Current service cost      
Interest cost      
Expected return on plan assets     
 
  

  190,640 
 887,977 

 (1,761,233)

 (682,616)
  
  

   265,912 
 1,205,963 

 65,200
 

 1,537,075
  
  
  

Accumulated Compensated Absences    
  
Current service cost     
Interest cost      
Loss arising on present value of de�ned bene�t obligation  
    
  

In addition to above, salaries, wages, amenities and staff welfare include Rs 6.136 million (2019: Rs 6.52 
million) in respect of provident fund contribution by the Company.     
         

The professional services include the following amounts relating to
 audit and taxation services:  

Statutory audit      
Review of half yearly �nancial statements    
Audit of funds, consolidation forms and sundry services   
Taxation services      
Out of pocket expenses      

Workers'  pro�t participation fund   
Workers' welfare fund   
Donations   
Exchange Loss   

 1,244,030 
 -   
 -   

 10,527,181
 

 11,771,211 

 6,279,016 
 2,386,026 

 255,000 
-
   

 8,920,042 

 842,625 
 256,800 

 1,025,000 
 1,015,893 

 475,000
 

 3,615,318 

  787,500 
 240,000 
 652,050 

 1,297,555 
 400,000

 
 3,377,105

31.1.1

31.2

32
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2019
Rupees

2020
Rupees

 7,006,354 
 -

   
 7,006,354 

 5,875,737 
39,797,933

   
 45,673,670 

Other operating income 

Income from financial assets:    
Pro�t on bank accounts    
Exchange gain    

2019
Note

Note

Rupees
2020

RupeesFinance cost
 

2019
Rupees

2020
RupeesIncome from non-financial assets:   

 
Commission     
Rental income on investment property  
Sale of scrap     
Pro�t on sale of property, plant and equipment 
Recognition of deferred government grant  
Reversal of provision for worker welfare fund  
Recovery of trade debts previously written off  
Reversal of provision for obsolete and slow moving 
stock - net of provision    
Provisions no longer considered necessary and 
unclaimed balances written back   
Sundry income     
   

 7,419,142 
 4,832,151 
 7,035,562 
 5,667,690 
 4,845,510 

 14,225,194 
 -

7,775,488
 

 23,613,607
 

 2,428,819

 77,843,163
 

 84,849,517 
 

 15,913,130 
 5,034,804 
 7,892,753 
 3,334,231 

 -   
 -   

 2,850,467 
 168,509

 
 -

   
 14,630,316

 
 49,824,210

 
 95,497,880 

 

Mark-up on short term �nances - secured   
Mark-up on long term loan - secured   
Mark-up on long term loan - secured   
Bank and other charges     
Interest payable on funds utilized by the Company  
    

 93,960,841 
 23,642,530 
 8,460,727 
 8,812,100 

 81,061
 

 134,957,259 

 126,315,530 
 36,052,509 

 -   
 8,103,757 

 66,693
 

 170,538,489 

33

34

8

34.1
34.2
34.3
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This represents mark-up paid under conventional mode of �nancing arrangements.    
          
This represents mark-up paid under islamic mode of �nancing arrangements.    
          
This represents mark-up charged using the effective rate of interest of 7.7% (2019:Nil) on SBP loan received 
for salaries and wages.          
    
            
  

 
 

   

 

 

   

    

   

   

    

Earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings per share 

Taxation

Current tax  
- Current year  
- Prior year  

Deferred tax  (45,081,577)  (25,347,806)

  7,254,334  29,034,913

 52,335,911 
 -

Rupees
2020 2019

Rupees

Note Rupees
2020 2019

Rupees

20192020
% %

 54,382,719 
 -

 52,335,911  54,382,719

Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit 

Applicable tax rate       
  
Tax effect under presumptive tax regime and others   
Effect of deferred tax not recognized on  Minimum Tax  
Effect of utilization of Tax Credits     
Permanent differences      
Effect of previously unrecognized deferred tax asset   
Effect of change in tax rates due to proration between FTR and NTR 
Others         

Average effective tax rate charged to statement of pro�t or loss  
      
        

29.00%

-171.49%
187.56%

0.00%
19.48%

-38.00%
3.77%
0.37%

30.69%

29.00%

-22.32%
38.99%
-0.62%
-0.82%

-19.76%
0.00%
0.36%

24.83%

Pro�t for the year    
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  
Earnings per share    

16,382,242 
 13,200,000 

 1.24 

 87,880,352 
 13,200,000 

 6.66 
5.2 

Rupees
Numbers
Rupees

A diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible instru-
ments in issue as at December 31, 2020 which would have any effect on the earnings per share if the option 
to convert is exercised.

34.1

34.2

34.3

35

35.1

36

36.1

36.2
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2019
Note Rupees

2020
Rupees

Cash generated from operations

Pro�t before taxation

Working capital changes  

(Increase)/decrease in current assets: 

Adjustment for:  

 23,636,576
  

 116,915,265
  

Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment   
Depreciation of Investment property     
Amortization of Intangible assets     
Loss allowance      
Reversal of loss allowance upon recovery of debts   
Pro�t on sale of property, plant and equipment   
Recognition of deferred government grant    
Reversal of provision for worker welfare fund    
Reversal of provision for obsolete and slow moving stock  
Reversal of provisions no longer considered necessary and 
unclaimed balances written back     
Exchange (gain) / loss      
Finance cost      
Provision for employees' retirement and other bene�ts   
Working capital changes       

 150,422,284 
 -   

 8,926,766 
 18,882,532 

 -   
 (5,667,690)
 (4,845,510)

 (14,225,194)
 (7,775,488)

 (23,613,607)

 10,527,181 
 134,957,259 
 21,747,429 
 75,972,449

 
 388,944,987 

17.2
18
19
30
33
33
33
33
33
33

32
34
9

37.1 

  154,955,279 
 159,912 

 3,913,885 
 13,499,903 
 (2,850,467)
 (3,334,231)

 -   
 -   

 (168,509)
 -   

 (39,797,933)
 170,538,489 
 31,969,072 

 (139,146,201)

 306,654,464

Stores, spares and loose tools    
Stock-in-trade      
Trade debts      
Contract asset      
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 

Increase/(decrease) in current liabilities:

Trade and other payables    
Contract liability    
Due to provident fund    
Provisions for other liabilities and charges

 36,735,165 
 (5,606,446)

 (81,179)
 (5,747,015)

(311,710,800)
 (11,677,572)

221,586
 (6,020,253)

 (41,891,125)
 125,266,966 
 (66,081,618)

 79,167,797 
 (45,790,096)

  38,661,496 
 161,640,064 
 59,191,414 

 (144,744,887)
 75,292,751 

 50,671,924   190,040,838

  25,300,525   (329,187,039)

   75,972,449    (139,146,201)

37

37.1
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 (670,300,329)
 66,106,530

 
 (604,193,799)

  
  
  

(1,086,456,479)
 182,604,239

 
 (903,852,240)

 
  
  
  

2019
Note Rupees

2020
Rupees

Plant capacity and production

Cash and cash equivalents  
      
Short term �nances - secured   
Cash and bank balances

    

   

   
   
    
  

 

The variance of actual production from capacity is due to product mix. 

 Operating segments     

  

 

  All non-current assets of the Company as at December 31, 2020 are located in Pakistan.

 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

     Non-Cash Changes   

  December 31,  Cash Acquisition Fair
Value

Changes

Fair
Value

Changes

 Reclassification
 of current

 portion

Reclassification
 of current

 portion

 December 31, 
  2019 flows  

 
 2020

      

  125,000,000 
 
   268,818,846   -     (15,390,837)

   
   (128,196,967) 

   128,196,967 
 

   250,231,042 
  Current portion of long term       

   125,000,000    (31,250,000)   -     -       221,946,967 
    1,086,456,479    (416,156,150)  -     -    -       670,300,329
        

    1,336,456,479 
 

   (178,587,304)
 

  -     -     -      1,142,478,338 
 

     Non-Cash Changes   

  December 31,  Cash Acquisition   December 31, 
  2018 flows    2019
      
       
    250,000,000 

 
   -     -     (125,000,000)  (125,000,000)

 125,000,000

 
 Current portion of long term       
    125,000,000 

 
   (125,000,000)
 

  -     -      125,000,000 
    841,760,397 

 
  244,696,082   -     -     -      1,086,456,479 

 
    1,216,760,397 

 
   119,696,082 

 
  -     -     -  1,336,456,479 

 Related party transactions    
    

 

                        Capacity                         Actual production 

2020 2020 20192019
   

6,000 6,000  2,949  3,239 
   

38

39

39.1

40

40.1

40.2

41

42

Related parties comprise of associated entities, entities under common control, entities with common 
directors, major shareholders, post employment bene�t plans and key management personnel, inclusive of 
directors, and their close family members. Amounts due from and to related parties are shown under respec-
tive notes to the �nancial statements. Amounts of assets sold during the year are mentioned in note 17.4. 
Amounts due from directors and key management personnel are shown under remuneration of directors and 
key management personnel is disclosed in note 43. Other signi�cant transactions with related parties are as 
follows:            
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Transactions with related parties

Related parties incorporated outside Pakistan

  
Relationship with the Nature of Transactions  2020 2019
   Company  Note Rupees Rupees

     
Holding Company  Sale of products    

   Purchase of products    
   Commission income    
   Royalty and Trademark    
   SAP user fee    
   Dividend Paid    
     

Associated Companies  Sale of products    
   Purchase of products    
   Commission  income    
   Commission expense    
     

Staff retirement benefits  Expense charged in respect of    
   Ex-gratia scheme  9.1   
   Gratuity fund  9.2   
   Accumulated compensated absences  9.3   
   Provident fund    

 167,430,157 
 276,217,825 

 7,063,635 
 14,259,910 
 61,335,733 
 11,659,462 

 446,612,342 
 190,509,589 

 355,505 
 22,887,553 

 4,366,496 
 20,332,858 
 (2,951,925)
 22,924,020 

  58,810,140 
 295,187,230 

 8,636,912 
 16,463,406 
 63,093,485 
 23,318,925 

 630,861,693 
 134,196,142 

 7,276,218 
 38,346,110 

 5,001,355 
 21,478,162 
 5,489,555 

 24,092,948 
 

Information about the related parties incorporated outside Pakistan with whom the Company had entered into 
transactions during the year is as follows:

42.1

42.2

Associated Companies

Name of Company
Country of
incorporation

Basis of 
Association

Aggregate
 percentage

of shareholding

42.2.1

KSB SE & Co. KGaA
KSB Pumps And Valves Ltd.
KSB Singapore (Asia Pacific) Pte Ltd
KSB Pumps Co. Ltd.
KSB Pumps And Valves (Pty) Ltd.
KSB Pumps Arabia Ltd.
KSB Italia S.P.A.
KSB Philippines, Inc.
KSB Sverige Ab
KSB Australia Pty Ltd
KSB Malaysia Pumps & Valves Sdn Bhd
KSB Chile S.A.
KSB Limited
KSB-Pompa, Armatür Sanayi
KSB Service Gmbh
KSB Pompy I Armatura Sp. z o.o
Pt. KSB Indonesia
KSB Colombia SAS
KSB Itur Spain Sa

Germany
Slovenia
Singapore
Thailand
South Africa
Saudi Arabia
Italy
Philippines
Sweden
Australia
Malaysia
Chile
United Kingdom
Turkey
Germany
Poland
Indonesia
Colombia
Spain

Holding Company
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control

58.89%
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil



KSB Pakistan / Annual Report 2020 Financial Statements 107

  

Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

The aggregate amount charged in the �nancial statements for the year for remuneration, including certain bene�ts, to the 
Chief Executive, full time working Director and Executives of the Company is as follows:

43

43.1

  

  

  
  

Number of persons  

                              Chief Executive                           Director                                   Executives

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Short term employee benefits

     

     
     
     
     
     
     
     

Post employment benefits      
     

Contribution to gratuity   
   and provident fund       

    
     
     

  1   1   1   1  46 50   

Managerial remuneration  

Bonus / sales incentive  

House rent  

Utilities  

Medical and other expenses

 29,400,792 

 7,500,000 

 4,339,399 

 1,392,669 

 1,514,283 

 44,147,143

 29,400,792 

 7,350,198 

 4,218,792 

 1,362,158 

 1,396,448 

  43,728,388

  4,762,720 

 -   

 2,143,224 

 476,272 

 213,333

 7,595,549

 7,144,080 

 1,786,020 

 3,214,836 

 714,408 

 320,000 

 13,179,344

 91,226,256 

 26,303,921 

 41,051,815 

 9,122,626 

 11,451,168 

 179,155,786

100,728,072 

 27,584,035 

 45,327,632 

 10,072,807 

12,697,991 

  196,410,537 

  5,390,145    5,390,145   952,544   1,309,748   18,288,420    18,466,813 

 

 49,537,288     49,118,533 

 

 8,548,093    14,489,092 

 

   197,444,206 

 

    214,877,350 

 

 

Name of Company
Country of
incorporation

Basis of 
Association

Aggregate
 percentage

of shareholding
KSB SAS
KSB De Mexico, S.A. De C.V.
KSB-Pumpy+Armatury s.r.o., Koncern
KSB Taiwan Co., Ltd.
KSB, Inc. - Western Division
KSB Middle East FZE
KSB New Zealand Limited
KSB Bombas Hidraulicas S.A.
KSB Shanghai Pump Co., Ltd
Dalian KSB Amr'I
KSB Valves (Changzhou) Co.,Ltd.
KSB BV
KSB Service LLC
KSB Service Belgium S.A./N.V.
KSB Finland Oy
KSB Hungary Kft.
KSB Tech Private Limited
KSB BRASIL LTDA. 
KSB ZAMBIA LIMITED 
KSB Vietnam Co., Ltd.
OOO "KSB"
DP PUMPS, Holland
KSB Compania Sudamrecina Bunious Aires

France
Mexico
Czech Republic
Taiwan
United States of America
United Arab Emirates
New Zealand
Brazil
China
China
China
Netherlands
United Arab Emirates
Belgium
Finland
Hungary
India
Brazil
Zambia
Vietnam
Russian Fed.
Holland
Argentina

Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control
Common Control

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
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2019
Note Rupees

2020
Rupees

Advances deposits and other receivables - AED 
Trade debts - AED    
Trade and other payables - AED

Net exposure - AED

Advances deposits and other receivables - AUD 
Trade debts - AUD    
Trade and other payables - AUD

Net exposure - AUD    

Advances deposits and other receivables - USD 
Trade debts - USD    
Trade and other payables - USD

Net exposure - USD

 34,668 
 940,326 

 (793,429)

 181,565 

 3,371 
 1,590,568 
 (777,036)

 816,903 

 
32,520 

 (1,772)

 30,748 

  -   
 200 

 (1,772)

 (1,572)
 

 -   

 (20,054)

 (20,054)

 -   
 -   

 (18,629)

 (18,629)

 
 

The Company also provides its Chief Executive, Directors and some of its Executives, company maintained 
cars and mobile phones. In addition, the house rent of Chief Executive mentioned above includes furnished 
accommodation and 1 Executives have also been provided with rent free accommodation

Bonus paid to the Chief Executive Of�cer and Director during the year ended December 31, 2020 amounts 
to Rs.8.44 million (2019: Rs. 6.42 million) and Rs. 1.16 million (2019:  Rs. 1.01 million) respectively. Bonus 
for the year ended December 31,2020 is subject to approval of Board of Directors.    
         

43.2

43.3

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
  

 

 
 

   

    

   

   
   
    
  

 

    

   

Aggregate amount charged in the �nancial statements for the year for fee to 4 directors (2019: 4 directors) 
was Rs.0.65 million  (2019: Rs 0.7 million).

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of �nancial risks: market risk (including currency risk, other 
price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management 
programme focuses on the unpredictability of �nancial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse 
effects on the �nancial performance.         
     
Risk management is carried out by the �nance department under the principles and policies approved by the 
Board of Directors (the Board). The Board provides principles for overall risk management, as well as 
policies covering speci�c areas such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of 
excess liquidity. All treasury related transactions are carried out within the parameters of these policies.

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash �ows of a �nancial instrument will �uctuate 
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.         
       
The Company operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency 
exposures, primarily with respect to the US dollar and the Euro. Foreign exchange risk arises from future 
commercial transactions and recognized assets and liabilities.      
        
  

43.4

44

44.1

44.1.1

44.1.1.1
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Advances deposits and other receivables - CNY 
Trade debts - CNY    
Trade and other payables - CNY

Net exposure - CNY    

Advances deposits and other receivables - EURO 
Trade debts - EURO    
Trade and other payables - EURO   
 
Net exposure - EURO
    

Advances deposits and other receivables - GBP 
Trade debts - GBP    
Trade and other payables - GBP   
 
Net exposure - GBP 

  
 2020 2019

 Rupees Rupees

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

 -   
 -   

 (6,306)

 (6,306)

 -   
 -   
-

 (6,306)

 2,272 
 172,006 

 (646,374)

 (472,096)

 42.83 
 43.51 

  41.07 
 42.15 

 -   
 -   
 -

   
 -   

 -   
-

 (606)

 (606)

 11,261 
 161,092 

 (527,436)

 (355,083)

The following signi�cant exchange rates were applied during the year:

If the functional currency, at reporting date, had �uctuated by 5% against the AED with all other variables 
held constant, the impact on pro�t before taxation for the year would have been Rs 0.043 million (2019: Rs 
0.039) higher/ lower, mainly as a result of exchange gains/ losses on translation of foreign exchange denomi-
nated �nancial instruments. Currency risk sensitivity to foreign exchange movements has been calculated on 
a symmetric basis.        

Rupees per AED

Average rate  
Reporting date rate  
  

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

  115.88 
 123.29

   104.98 
 108.46

Rupees per AUD  
  
Average rate  
Reporting date rate  
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If the functional currency, at reporting date, had �uctuated by 5% against the AUD with all other variables 
held constant, the impact on pro�t before taxation for the year would have been Rs 0.189 million (2019: Rs 
0.01) higher/ lower, mainly as a result of exchange gains/ losses on translation of foreign exchange denomi-
nated �nancial instruments. Currency risk sensitivity to foreign exchange movements has been calculated on 
a symmetric basis. 

If the functional currency, at reporting date, had �uctuated by 5% against the USD with all other variables 
held constant, the impact on pro�t before taxation for the year would have been Rs 1.45 million (2019: Rs 
6.23 million) higher/ lower, mainly as a result of exchange gains/ losses on translation of foreign exchange 
denominated �nancial instruments. Currency risk sensitivity to foreign exchange movements has been calcu-
lated on a symmetric basis. 

 

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

   157.34 
 159.83

 151.06 
 154.85 

Rupees per USD  
  
Average rate  
Reporting date rate  
  

   

 

 
 

 

    

   

   
   
    
  

 

    

   

  
  
  

  
 
  
 
  
  

   

2019
Rupees

2020
Rupees

If the functional currency, at reporting date, had �uctuated by 5% against the CNY with all other variables 
held constant, the impact on pro�t before taxation for the year would have been Rs 0.01 million (2019: Rs 
0 million) higher/ lower, mainly as a result of exchange gains/ losses on translation of foreign exchange 
denominated �nancial instruments. Currency risk sensitivity to foreign exchange movements has been calcu-
lated on a symmetric basis. 

   23.46 
 24.51

 21.73 
 22.24 

Rupees per CNY  
  
Average rate  
Reporting date rate  
  
  

 
 

   

   

   
   
    
  

 
   

2019
Rupees

2020
Rupees

If the functional currency, at reporting date, had �uctuated by 5% against the Euro with all other variables 
held constant, the impact on pro�t before taxation for the year would have been Rs 4.64 million (2019: Rs 
3.08 million) higher/ lower, mainly as a result of exchange gains/ losses on translation of foreign exchange 
denominated �nancial instruments. Currency risk sensitivity to foreign exchange movements has been calcu-
lated on a symmetric basis. 

 185.06 
 196.64 

 168.98 
 173.48 

Rupees per EURO  
  
Average rate  
Reporting date rate  
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Interest rate risk           
   
Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash �ows of a �nancial instrument will 
�uctuate because of changes in market interest rates.        
       
The Company has no signi�cant long term interest-bearing assets. The Company's interest rate risk arises 
from long term and short term borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Company to 
cash �ow interest rate risk.          
    
At the statement of �nancial position date, the interest rate pro�le of the Company's interest bearing �nancial 
instruments was: 

 
  

 
 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

Fixed rate instruments      
Term Deposit Receipt      
      
Floating rate instruments      
      
Financial assets      
Bank balances - savings      
      
Financial liabilities
Short term �nances - secured      
Long term �nances - secured      
Current portion of long term �nances- secured    
  

 20,000,000 

37,140,764
 

 670,300,329 
 250,231,042 
 221,946,967

  20,000,000 

 169,902,794 

 1,086,456,479 
 125,000,000 
 125,000,000 

 
Other price risk           
   
Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash �ows of a �nancial instrument will 
�uctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency 
risk), whether those changes are caused by factors speci�c to the individual �nancial instrument or its issuer, 
or factors affecting all similar �nancial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not exposed to 
equity price risk since there are no investments in equity securities. The Company is also not exposed to 
commodity price risk since it has a diverse portfolio of commodity suppliers. 

  
   

  
  
  
  
 
 
  
  

  

 
  

 

 

 
 

   

 

 
 
  

   

2019
Rupees

2020
Rupees

If the functional currency, at reporting date, had �uctuated by 5% against the GBP with all other variables 
held constant, the impact on pro�t before taxation for the year would have been Rs 0 million (2019: Rs 0.01 
million) higher/ lower, mainly as a result of exchange gains/ losses on translation of foreign exchange denom-
inated �nancial instruments. Currency risk sensitivity to foreign exchange movements has been calculated on 
a symmetric basis. 

  210.88 
 218.45 

  192.67 
 203.30

Rupees per GBP  
  
Average rate  
Reporting date rate  
  
  
  
  

44.1.1.2

44.1.1.3
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in accordance with limits set by the Board. The utilization of credit limits is regularly monitored and major 
sales to retail customers are settled in cash. For banks and �nancial institutions, only independently rated 
parties with a strong credit rating are accepted.       
       
 Exposure to credit risk  
            
The carrying amount of �nancial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to 
credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

Credit risk
            
Credit risk represents the risk of �nancial loss being caused if counter party fails to discharge an obligation. 
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and other receivables.      
         
Credit risk of the Company arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and �nancial 
institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables and committed trans-
actions. The management assesses the credit quality of the customers, taking into account their �nancial 
position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings 

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments      
        
The Company does not account for any �xed rate �nancial assets and liabilities at fair value through pro�t 
or loss, therefore, a change in interest rate at the statement of �nancial position date would not affect pro�t 
or loss of the Company.          
    
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for floating rate instruments      
        
If interest rates on short term running �nance, at the year end date, �uctuate by 1% higher/ lower with all 
other variables held constant, pro�t before taxation for the year would have been Rs 6.7 million (2019: Rs 
10.86 million) higher/ lower, mainly as a result of higher/ lower interest expense on �oating rate borrowings

 
 

  

   

   
   
    
  

 

 

   

2019
Rupees

2020
Rupees

Long term loans and deposits    
Trade debts      
Contract assets      
Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 
Balances with banks     
 

 70,909,142 
1,495,563,167 
 735,882,090 
 130,515,955 
 65,659,824

 
 2,498,530,178 

  69,256,113 
 1,435,022,976 

 815,049,887 
 117,105,313 
 181,413,080

 
 2,617,847,369

44.1.2
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The age of trade debts and related impairment loss at statement of �nancial position date is 
as follows:         
   

The loss allowance for trade debts from Government was determined as follows: 

 2020   2019  

Expected Gross Loss Expected Gross Loss
loss rate carrying  Allowance loss rate carrying Allowance

 amount   amount
% Rupees Rupees % Rupees Rupees

Impaired and not overdue    
0 - 30 days    
31 - 90 days    
91 - 180 days    
181 - 360 days    
over 360 days     

     
     

 28,323,994 
 46,426,888 
 16,192,225 
 49,250,333 
 35,078,488
435,986,430
 
 611,258,358 

 6.05%
6.05%
6.05%
6.05%
6.05%
15.52%

 3.30%
3.30%
3.30%
3.30%
3.30%

26.23%

  1,714,546 
 2,810,374 
 980,169 

 2,981,287 
 2,123,418 

 67,664,013
 

 78,273,807 
 

   19,303,640 
 73,079,726 

 103,441,200 
 81,598,991 

 110,770,537 
 362,290,857

 
 750,484,951 

 

    637,020 
 2,411,631 
 3,413,560 
 2,692,767 
 3,655,426 

 95,034,708 

 107,845,112 
 

 

 
 

 
The loss allowance for trade debts pertaining to related parties was determined as follows: 

2020 2019
Gross carrying Gross carrying 

amount amount

Rupees Rupees
 

Impaired and not overdue  
0 - 30 days  
31 - 90 days  
91 - 180 days  
181 - 360 days  
over 360 days  

 
  

 69,629,943 
 60,086,790 
 14,591,737 
 13,108,578 
 4,754,349 
 3,490,317

 
 165,661,714 

 149,075,827 
 17,195,094 
 6,995,521 

 99,806,341 
 2,145,721 

 54,516
 

 275,273,020 

 

 

 

   

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

 2020   2019  

Expected Gross Loss Expected Gross Loss
loss rate carrying  Allowance loss rate carrying Allowance

 amount   amount
% Rupees Rupees % Rupees Rupees
     

Impaired and not overdue      
0 - 30 days      
31 - 90 days      
91 - 180 days      
181 - 360 days      
over 360 days      

     
     

The loss allowance for trade debts other than Government and exclusive of related parties was 
determined as follows

 304,618,407 
 65,712,623 
 134,522,422 
 73,921,667 
 30,240,593 
 109,627,383
 
 718,643,095

 0.00%
0.48%
0.40%
0.45%
0.39%
17.91%

 0.00%
0.23%
0.31%
0.43%
0.53%

28.05%

  232,251 
 106,484 
 268,165 
 220,769 
 125,552 

 19,423,953
 

 20,377,174 

 111,140,159 
 83,803,484 
 71,597,035 
 30,117,328 
 38,099,631 
 74,507,368 

 409,265,005 

  -   
 196,721 
 222,758 
 129,659 
 200,503 

 20,895,604
 

 21,645,245 

 
 

44.1.2.1.1
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The related party balances have not been impaired since these are expected to be recovered within next six 
months and there is no history of default against these balances      
        
The age of loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables and related impairment loss at 
statement of �nancial position date is as follows:

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

- Not past due  
- Past due 0 - 180 days  
- Past due 181 - 365 days  
- Over 365 days  

 -   

 29,104,912 

 29,705,205 

 71,705,838

 

 130,515,955 

 -   

 22,554,038

 22,715,860

 63,545,591

 

 108,815,489

The age of loans, advances, deposits, prepayments 
and other receivables

 
 

- Not past due  

- Past due 0 - 180 days  

- Past due 181 - 365 days  

- Over 365 days  

The age of loans, advances, deposits, prepayments
 and other receivables from related parties

 
 

 
  

  
  
  
  

 

 

   

 

- Not past due  

- Past due 0 - 180 days  

- Past due 181 - 365 days  

- Over 365 days  

 -   

 -   

 -   

 22,695,199 

The age of impairment loss against loans, advances, 
deposits, prepayments and other receivables    

- Not past due  

- Past due 0 - 180 days  

- Past due 181 - 365 days  

- Over 365 days  

 -   

 5,798,144 

 -   

 204,199 

 -   

 2,318,057 

 -   

 165,574 

The age of loans, advances, deposits, prepayments
 and other receivables from related parties

 22,695,199

 -   

 -   

 -   

 21,033,815 

 
  21,033,815

  6,002,343    2,483,631 

 -   

 404,910 

 2,582,626 

 67,921,585 

 -   

 563,253

 1,102,802

 67,590,058

 70,909,121     69,256,113 

The age of long term loans and deposits at statement of �nancial 

position date is as fVollows:

44.1.2.1.2
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2019
Note Rupees

2020
Rupees

- Not past due  

- Past due 0 - 180 days  

- Past due 181 - 365 days  

- Over 365 days  

 735,882,090 

 -   

 -   

 -   

  

  815,049,887 

 -   

 -   

 -   

  

The age of contract assets

 735,882,090      815,049,887

The age of contract assets at statement of �nancial position date is 

as follows: 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

The loss allowance for contract assets was determined as follows: 

The credit quality of major �nancial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference 

to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rate:

The loss allowance for contract assets was determined as follows: 

 2020   2019  

Expected Gross Loss Expected Gross Loss
  loss rate carrying  Allowance loss rate carrying Allowance

 amount   amount
  % Rupees Rupees % Rupees Rupees
       

Impaired and not overdue 6.05%  735,882,090    44,545,396  0.13%   815,049,887 
 

   1,041,794 
 

0 - 30 days  -     -     -     -     -     -   

31 - 90 days  -     -     -     -     -     -   

91 - 180 days  -     -     -     -     -     -   

181 - 360 days  -     -     -     -     -     -   

over 360 days  -     -     -     -     -     -   
       
    735,882,090    44,545,396   815,049,887 

 
   1,041,794 

     

                       Rating     
Short Long Rating   
term  term  Agency  2020  2019

   Rupees Rupees
    

   

   

   

   

   

   

 

National Bank of Pakistan  

MCB Bank Limited  

United Bank Limited  

Deutsche Bank A.G.  

Habib Bank Limited  

BankIslami Limited  

 A1+ 

 A1+ 

 A1+ 

 A2 

 A1+ 

 A1 

   AAA  

  AAA  

  AAA  

  BBB+  

  AAA  

 A+ 

JCR-VIS 

PACRA

JCR-VIS 

Fitch

JCR-VIS

PACRA

 3,513,957 

 16,397,936 

 1,429,020 

 162,590 

 20,375,262 

 23,781,059 

  8,912,285 

 39,236,022 

 290,978 

 744,634 

110,807,981 

 21,421,180

 65,659,824   181,413,080 

44.1.2.1.4
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Due to the Company's long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after giving due 

consideration to their strong �nancial standing, management does not expect non-performance by these 

counterparties on their obligations to the Company. Accordingly, the credit risk is minimal.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Company will encounter dif�culties in meeting obligations associat-

ed with �nancial liabilities. 

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining suf�cient cash, the availability of funding through a

 
 

  

  
  
  
  

 

 

 

 

adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic nature of the Company's businesses, the 

Company's �nance department maintains �exibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed 

credit lines.

Management monitors the forecasts of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected 

cash �ow. This is generally carried out in accordance with practice and limits set by the Company. These 

limits vary by location to take into account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates. In 

addition, the Company's liquidity management policy involves projecting cash �ows in each quarter and 

considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet its liabilities; monitoring statement of �nancial 

position liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements; and maintaining debt 

�nancing plans.           

   

The table below analyses the Company’s �nancial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the 

remaining period at the statement of �nancial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts 

disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash �ows as the impact of discounting is not signi�-

cant.

            

The following are the contractual maturities of �nancial liabilities as at December 31, 2020
 

 Carrying   Less than   One to five   More than  

amount one year years five years

                            (Rupees)   
   

Trade and other payables  1,393,225,998    1,393,225,998   -   - 
Unclaimed dividends   10,083,405   10,083,405   -   - 

  670,300,329   670,300,329   -   - 
  472,178,009   221,946,967   250,231,042   - 

  2,545,787,741 
 

 2,295,556,699    250,231,042 
 

  -      
   

44.1.3
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44.2

44.3

   

 Carrying   Less than   One to five   More than  

amount one year years five years

                            (Rupees)   
   

Trade and other payables  1,402,720,697   1,402,720,697   -   - 
Unclaimed dividends   9,945,891 

 
  9,945,891   -   - 

   1,086,456,479   1,086,456,479   -   - 
   250,000,000 

 
  125,000,000   125,000,000   - 

 2,749,123,067   2,624,123,067   125,000,000   -  

 

 

  

  
  

  
  

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities       

       

The carrying values of all �nancial assets and liabilities re�ected in the �nancial statements approximate their 

fair values. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date.   

           

Financial instruments by categories        

      

   
 Financial assets at 

amortised cost

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

Assets as per statement of financial position  
Long term loans and deposits  70,909,142   69,256,113 

 Trade debts   1,396,912,186 
 

   1,305,532,619
Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables   587,017,447    504,338,057 

 Cash and bank balances   66,106,530    182,604,239 
  

  2,120,945,305 
 

   2,061,731,028 
        
 

 Financial liabilities at 
amortised cost

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

 

Liabilities as per statement of financial position
Trade and other payables   1,393,225,998 

 
   1,402,720,697 
 Unclaimed dividends   10,083,405   9,945,891 

    670,300,329   1,086,456,479
  472,178,009 

 
   250,000,000 

  
 2,545,787,741    2,749,123,067 

     

The following are the contractual maturities of �nancial liabilities as at December 31, 2019
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Fair value estimation          

    

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Speci�c valuation techniques used to value �nancial instruments include:

            

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).  

            

-  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,  

 either directly (that is, as prices)  or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).  

            

-  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable  

 inputs) (level 3).

   

 
 

  

  
  
  
  

 

 

 

 

The following is categorization of assets which are disclosed at fair value as at December 31, 2020: 

   

Valuation techniques used to measure level 3 assets       

        

The fair value of these assets is determined by an independent professionally quali�ed valuer. Latest valuation 

of these assets was carried out on December 31, 2020 by an independent professionally quali�ed valuer, M/s 

Tahseen Fazal Associates (Private) Limited. Level 3 fair value of building on freehold land has been 

determined using a depreciated market replacement cost approach whereby, replacement cost of the building 

has been adjusted using a suitable depreciation rate to arrive at present replacement cost. Any changes in fair 

values and/ or movement in the same is analysed at each reporting date.      

         

Valuation inputs and relationship to fair value        

       

The following table summarises the quantitative and qualitative information about the signi�cant 

unobservable inputs used in recurring level 3 fair value measurements. See paragraph above for the valuation 

techniques adopted.          

    

   

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets: 

Investment property  -     -       64,788,000 
 

    64,788,000 

44.4
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The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital plus debt. 

Debt is calculated as total loans and borrowings including any �nance cost thereon. Capital signi�es equity 

as shown in the statement of �nancial position.       

       

   

Capital risk management 
 

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit 

rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholders' value. The 

Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic condi-

tions. Capital includes ordinary share capital and reserves.       

        

 

Description                            Fair Value at Significant Quantitative Data / Range 
Dec 31, Dec 31, Unobservable and relationship to the 

2020 2019 inputs fair value  
   

Investment Property  64,788,000  50,480,650    Suitable 
depreciation 
rate to arrive 
at depreciated 
market 
replacement 
cost.     

The market value has been 
determined by using a unit 

depreciated cost of construction. 
Higher the estimated cost of 
construction of a new building, 
higher the fair value. Further, 
higher the depreciation rate, 
the lower the fair value of the 
building.   

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

2020 2019

 

  670,300,329  1,086,456,479 

Long term loan - secured   250,231,042   125,000,000 

   221,946,967   125,000,000 

   18,154,767   35,889,890 
 

Total Debt   1,160,633,105   1,372,346,369
 

Share Capital  132,000,000   132,000,000 

 1,825,898,096Reserves   1,835,112,034 
 

 
 

Total Equity   1,967,112,034 
 

  1,957,898,096
 

Total equity and liability   3,127,745,139 
 

  3,330,244,465 
 

Gearing ratio
 

37%
 

41%
 

 

 

Number of employees

Number of employees as at December 31, 2019

 

310 

 

295 

Average number of employees during the year 294 302 

44.5
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Summary of significant events and transactions      

            

The pandemic COVID-19 that rapidly spread all across the world which has not only endangered human 

lives but has also adversely impacted the global economy. On March 23, 2020, the Government of the Punjab 

announced a temporary lock down as a measure to reduce the spread of the COVID-19 including lockdown 

of businesses, intercity movements, cancellation of major events etc. These measures have resulted in an 

overall economic slowdown and disruptions to various businesses. The Government of Pakistan and State 

Bank of Pakistan also announced several monetary and �scal policy measures to mitigate the adverse 

economic impacts of the COVID-19.

Complying with the lockdown, the Company temporarily suspended its operations from March 23,2020. In 

our Company's case, the lockdwon was subsequently relaxed from April 06,2020. After implementing all the 

necessary standard operating procedures (SOPs) to ensure safety of employees, the Company henceforth 

resumed its operations and has taken all the necessary steps to ensure smooth and adequate continuation of 

 

  its business in order to maintain business performance despite slowed down economic activity.

The lockdown caused disruptions in supply and distribution chain affecting the sales of the products and 

services of the Company resulting in decrease in sales of the Company's products services and projects. In 

order to mitigate the effects of COVID-19, the management has adopted several measures comprising of 

product diversi�cation, cost reductions, utilization of State Bank of Pakistan Re�nance Scheme relating to 

Salaries and Wages and deferment of principal payment of long term loan relating to BankIslami Pakistan 

Limited for a period of one year for managing working capital requirements. The management has also 

assessed the accounting implications of these developments on these �nancial statements, including but not 

limited to the following areas:

-  expected credit losses under IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’;     

         

-  the impairment of tangible and intangible assets under IAS 36, ‘Impairment of non-�nancial assets’; 

            

-  the net realisable value of inventory under IAS 2, ‘Inventories’;     

         

-  the estimated cost to complete the project under IFRS 15 ‘ Revenue from Contract with Customers’; 

            

-  Provision for taxation in accordance with IAS 12, ‘Income taxes’     

         

-  provisions and contingent liabilities under IAS 37, including onerous contracts; and  

            

-  going concern assumption used for the preparation of these �nancial statements.

According to management’s assessment, there is no signi�cant accounting impact of the effects of COVID-19 

in these �nancial statements.
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Date of authorization for issue         

     

These �nancial statements were authorized for issue on March 17, 2021 by the Board of Directors of the 

Company.           

   

General            

  

Corresponding �gures have been rearranged and reclassi�ed, wherever necessary, for the purpose of better 

presentation. During the year the following major reclassi�cations were made:    

          

  Reclassification from component         Reclassification to component   
      

Description Note Description Note  2019
      Rupees
      

Administration expenses -  Distribution and marketing expenses
Amortization of intangible
assets

Administration expenses -
Amortization of intangible
assets

31     - Amortization of intangible
      assets

30    2,307,482 
       

 
31

 
Cost of sales - Amortization of intagible
                                  assets

 
29

  
  1,606,403 

Chairman  Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer

Subsequent events after reporting date

The Board of Directors have proposed a �nal dividend for the year ended December 31, 2020 of Rs. 0.5 

(2019: Rs. 1.5) per share, amounting to Rs. 6.6 million (2019: Rs. 19.8 million) at their meeting held on 

March 17, 2021 for approval of members at the Annual General Meeting to be held on April 27, 2021. The 

board has also proposed transfer of Rs. 22.5 million (2019: Rs 76 million) to general reserve from unappro-

priated pro�t. These �nancial statements do not re�ect this dividend payable and other appropriations.

Furthermore, there are no other signi�cant events that have occurred subsequent to the reporting date, other 

than those mentioned elsewhere in these �nancial statements.   

47
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47.2
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I, Mr. / Mrs. / Ms. _________________________________ s/o., w/o., d/o. _________________________________ 
hereby authorize KSB Pumps Company Limited to directly credit cash dividend declared by it, if any, in the below 
mentioned bank account:

i) Personal Information 

 Name of Shareholder 

 Folio No./CDC Participant ID A/c. No. 

 CNIC No. 

 Passport No. (in case of foreign shareholder) 

 Land Line Phone Number 

 Cell Number 

 Email Address 

ii) Bank Details 

 Title of Bank Account 

 Name of Bank 

 Branch Name & Address 

 IBAN 

 ISO Country Code 

 IBAN Check Digit 

 BBAN 

  

 Account Number 

 SEPA Member 

______________________
       Date___________________Signature of shareholder

Dividend Bank Mandate Form
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The Company Secretary

KSB Pumps Company Limited

16/2, Sir Aga Khan Road

Lahore-54000.

I/We_______________________________________________________________________________________________

of_________________________________________________________________________________________________

in the district of_________________________________________________________________ being member(s) of KSB

Pumps Co. Ltd. and holder(s) of _____________________________________shares as per Share Register folio number 

_________________________________and/or CDC participant I.D.________________________and sub account No.

_________________________________________hereby appoint_____________________________________________ 
 
of___________________________________________________________________________________ as my/our proxy

to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the company to be held on 
Tuesday 27th April 2021, at 3:30 p.m. at Hotel Four Points Sheraton 25 - 26 Egerton Road, Lahore, to transact
and at any 

Signed this ______________________________________________day_______________________________ of 2021.

Witness

Signature  __________________________________________ 
 
Name  ______________________________________________ 
 
Address  ____________________________________________ 
 
NIC No._____________________________________________  
 
Note:

A member of the company entitled to vote at this meeting may appoint another member as his/her proxy to attend 

before the time of meeting.

The instrument appointing a Proxy should be signed by the member or by his attorney duly authorised in writing. If 

The shareholders of the company through Central Depository Company or their proxies are requested to bring with 
them copies of their Computerized National Identity Card or Passport along with the participant’s ID number and 

Signature on
Rs 5.00
Revenue
Stamp

(No. of Shares)

Form of Proxy
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23,637

(7,254)

16,383

12,632

497

29,512

22,500

6,600

412

29,100
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3,606,605

594,517

158,594

23,636

16,382

1.24

3,755,531

731,937

287,454

116,915

87,880

6.66
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KSB Pumps Company Limited






